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SSHANG

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
Mandaluyong City

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of SHANG PROPERTIES INC. is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud of
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

Isla Lipana and Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders for the
period December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, have audited the financial
statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and
in their reports to the stockholders, have expressed their opinion on the fairess of
presentation upon completion of such audit.
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pwc Isla Lipana & Co.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Shang Properties, Inc.

Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall
EDSA. corner Shaw Boulevard

Mandaluyong City

Report on the Audits of the Separate Financial Statements
Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Shang Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

What we have audited
The separate financial statements of the Company comprise:

e the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020 and 2019;

the statements of total comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019;
the statements of changes in equity for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019;

the statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019; and

the notes to the separate financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Separate Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the separate financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Separate
Financial Statementis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of separate financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

.................................................................................................................

" Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de RoxasLA%éf}f%r%}i SERVICE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Shang Properties, nc.

Page 2

In preparing the separate finaneial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease , or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an anditor's
report that includes our opimon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of m ement’s use of the gomng concern basis of aceounting
and based on the audit evidence obtain ~ whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the separate financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate financial statements

including the disclosures, and whether the separate ﬁnanm%éﬁmﬁﬂitﬁﬁ&ww £
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presedtf@ROGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE

LARGE TAXPAYERS ASSISTANCE DIVISION
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Statements Required by Rule 68
Securities Regulation Code (SRC)
As Amended on October 20, 2011

Tathe Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Shang Properties, Inc.

Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall
EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard

Mandaluyong City

We have audited the financial statements of Shang Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) as at and for the
year ended December 31, 2020, on which we have rendered the attached report dated March 25, 2021.

In compliance with SRC Rule 68 and based on the certification received from the Company’s
corporate secretary and the results of work performed by us, the Company has five thousand one

hundred ninety-one (5,191) shareholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares as at
December 31, 2020.

Isla Lipana & Co.
Iﬁlda Ronnie de Guzman-Castro
Partner

CPA Cert. No. 89352
P.T.R. No. 0011287; issued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC AN. (individual) ~ general auditors 1769-A, Category A; effective until September 2, 2022
SEC AN. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A;
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.IN. 152-015-095
BIR A.N. 08-000745-44-2018; issued on October 19, 2018; effective until October 18, 2021
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
March 25, 2021

" Isla Lipana & Co , 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 8845 2728, F: +63 (2) 8845 2806, www.pwe.com/ph

mamber firn of the PwC network. PwG rafers Philippine member sematimes refer to the PwC neiwork. Each member firm



pwc Isla Lipana & Co.

Statement Required by Rule 68
Securities Regulation Code (SRC)
Amended on October 20, 2

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Shang Properties, Inc.

Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall
EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard

Mandaluyong City

We have audited the financial statements of Shang Properties, Inc. as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2020, on which we have rendered the attached report dated March 25, 2021. The
supplementary information shown in the Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend
Declaration, is presented for purposes of filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is
not required part of the basic statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibi  of management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic separate financial statements In our opinion, the supplementary information has been
prepared in accordance with Part 1, Section 5 of Rule 68 of the SRC.

Isla Lipana & Co.

Imelda Ronme de Guzman-Castro
Partner
CPA Cert. No. 89352
P.T.R. No. 0011287 issued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1769-A, Category A; effective until September 2, 2022
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.ILN. 152-015-005
BIR A.N. 08-000745-44-2018; issued on October 19, 2018; effective until October 18, 2021
BOA/PRC No. 0142, effective unti 21,2023

Makati City
March 25, 2021

" Isla Lipana & Co., 2gth Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 8845 2728, F: +63 (2) 8845 2806, www.pwe.com/ph
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Shang Properties, Inc.

Page 3

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on the Bureau of Internal Revenue Requirement

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic separate financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 26 to the separate financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a
required part of the basic separate financial statements, Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit
of the basic separate financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic separate financial statements taken as a whole.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Imelda Ronnie de Guzman-Castro.

Isla Lipana & Co.

Imelda Ronnie de Guzman-Castro
Partner
CPA Cert. No. 89352
P.T.R. No. 0011287; issned on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1769-A, Category A; effective until September 2, 2022
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A;
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.LN. 152-015-0905
BIR A.N. 08-000745-44-2018; issued on QOctober 19, 2018; effective until October 18, 2021
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

UREAU OF INTERMAL REv o1y
Makati City ® LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
March 25, 2021 LARGE TAXPAYERS ASSISTANCE DIVISIL

Date TSIS
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Statement Required by Section 8-A, Revenue Regulations No. V-1

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Shang Properties, Inc.

Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall
EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard

Mandaluyong City

None of the partners of the firm has any financial interest in Shang Properties, Inc. or any family
relationships with its president, manager, or shareholders,

The supplementary information on taxes and heenses 1s presented in Note 26 to the separate financial
statements.

Isla Lipana & Co.

; QAL.J
%ﬁw 1 ¢
I a Ronnie de Guzman-Castro
Partner
CPA Cert. No. 89352
P.T.R. No. 0011287; ‘ssued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1769-A, Category A; effective until September 2, 2022
SEC A.N. (firm} as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A;
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financizl statements
T.IN. 152-015-095
BIR A.N. 08-000745-44~2018" issued on October 19, 2018; effective until October 18, 2021
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
March 25, 2021

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
L& TAX  ERS SERVICE
LARGE TAXPAYERS ASSISTANCE DIV SION

1e
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" Isla Lipana & Co., 20th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T +63(2) 8845 2728, F: +63 (2) 8845 2806, www.pwe.com,/ph
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Shang Properties, Inc,

Statements of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2020  d December 31, 19
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2020 2019
ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2 132,031,110 280,738,936
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3 3,450,947 2,450,793
Trade and other receivables, net 4 2,591,896,350 1,468,712,445
Properties held for sale, net 5 12,082,779 13,395,279
Prepayments and other current assets 6 282,086,682 263,026,646

Total current assets 3,021,547,868 2,028,324,099

Neon-current assets

Investments and advances 7 16,788,094,865 17,013,799,065
Investment properties 8 14,565,680,839 14,228,882,687
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, net 9 187,083,642 193,183,642
Property and equipment, net 10 73,186,110 82,701,539
Retirement benefit asset 18 - 6,127,631
Other non-cumrent assets 11 208,066,924 470,967,336
Total non-current assets 31,522,112,380  31,995,661,960
Total assets 34,543,660,248  34,023,986,059
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 12 2,224,061,560 2,058,521,292
Current portion of bank loans i3 4,233,333,334 3,5563,333,333
Dividends payable 14 52,609,087 47,544,516
Total current liabilities 6,510,003,981 5,659,399,141
Non-current liabilities
ng-term bank leans, net of current portion 13 - 933,333,334
Deferred income tax liabilities, net 19 3,946,149,360 3,934,362,728
Retirement benefit liability 18 13,316,584 -
Depaosits from tenants 1,269,161 1,269,161
Total non-current liabilities 3,960,735,105 4,868,965,223
Total liabilities 10,470,739,086  10,528,364,364
Equity
Share capital 14 4,764,058,982 4,764,058,982
Share premium 14 1,210 073,869 1,210,073,869
Treasury shares 14 (6,850,064) (6,850,064)
Other comprehensive income 9, 18 57,211,054 67,367,115
Retained eamnings 14 18,048 427,321  17,460,971,793
Total equity 24,072,921,162  23,495,621,695
Total liabilities and equity 34,543,660,248 34,023,986,059

The notes on pages 1 to 51 are integral part of these separgmﬂﬁ]ﬁ?tﬁ{wgﬁp’ AL REVENUE

LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
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Shang Properties, Inc.

Staternents of Total Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2020 2019

Revehue
Rental 8,22 83,136,766 249,930,202
Sale of condominium units 864,966 1,660,714

84,001,732 251,590,918

Costs and expenses

Staff costs 15 260,791 69 336,330,948
Taxes and licenses 16 39,699,950 48,103,735
Depreciation and a 10 21,197,029 20,063,481
Cost of condominium units sold 5 1,312,500 2,467 500
Other operating expenses 16 97,224,180 109,606,958

420,224,728 516,572,622

Other income (expense)

Dividend income 20  1,445140517 1,781,553,850
Gain on fair value adjustment of investment properties 8 - 1,445,898,813
Interest expense 13 (46,199,930) (104,993,758)
Interest income 2,7 63,671,165 3,922,554
Miscellaneous 1 37,745,125 121,687,296
1,500,356,877 3,248,068,855
Income before share in net income of a joint veniure 1,164,133,881 2,983,087,149
Share in net income of a joint venture 7 186,533,652 101,237,114
Income before provision for income tax 1,349,667.433 3,084,324,263
Provision for income tax 19 (16,971,787) (364,918,967)
Net income for the year 1,332,605646 2,719,404,206

Other comprehensive (loss) income
[tems that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit
orloss
{Decrease) increase in fair vaiue of equity
investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income, net of tax 9 (5,185,000) 18,673,650
Derecognition of the fair value of equity investments

written-off, net of tax 9 - 1,079,500

Remeasurement {loss) gain on retiremen benefit

obligation, net of tax 18 (4,971,061) 580,973

(10,156,061) 20,334,123

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,322,539,585 2,739,738,419

Basic and diluted earnings per share 14 0.28 0.57

The notes on pages 1 to 51 are integral part of these separate financial statements.
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Shang Properties, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Income before provision for income tax 1,349,667,433 3,084,324,263
Adjustrnents for:
Interest expense 13 46,199,930 104,993,758
Depreciation and amortization 10 21,197,029 20,063,481
Retirement benefit expense 18 14,903,238 8,793,557
Unrealized foreign exchange loss, net 2 1,004,314 1,809,141
Loss on write-off of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 9,17 - 1,550,000
Gain on fair value adjustment of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss 3 (1,000,154) (176,828)
Gaih on sale of property and equipment 17 - (1,050,726)
Interest income 2,7 (63,671,166) (3,922,554)
Share in net income from a joint venture 7 (185,533,552) {101,237,114)
Gain on fair value adjustment of investment
Properties 8 - (1,445,898,813)
Dividend income 20 (1.445,140.517)  (1,781,553,950)
Operating [oss before working capital changes {262,373,444) (111,305,785)
Changes in working capital;
Trade and other receivables (1,092,504,267) 9,792,574
Properties held for sale 5 1,312,500 252,762,500
Prepayments and other current assets (21,199,741) 119,461,434
Other non-current assets 28,788,412 (47,980,912)
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 171,557,402 172,224,995
Cash (absorbed by) generated from operations (1,174,509,138} 394,954,806
Interest received 63,878,525 3,762,220
Contributions paid to retirement ptan 18 - (12,872,582)
Retirement benefits paid directly by the Company 18 (1,015,381) -
Retirement benefit liabilities released due to transfers 18 (1,545,157) -
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (1,113,191,151) 385,844,444
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received 20 1,414,343,517 1,764,4563,950
Decrease in investments and advances 7 1,421,999, 998 137,944,253
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 1,080,728
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income g - 66,500
Additions to;
Investment in a joint venture 7 {10,762,246)  (1,021,075,486)
Restricted fund 11 (465,888,000) {422,000,000)
Investment properties 8 (338,798,1562) {971,294,670)
Property and equipment 10 (11,681,540) (19,190,752)
Net cash provided by (used in} investing activities 2.011,213,577 (530,045,477)
Cash flows from financing activities
Availment of loan 13 2,100,000,000 3,145,000,000
Payments of:
Cash dividends 14 (740,175,547} {830,855,683)
Loan principal 13 (2,353,333,333)  (1,958,333,333)
Interest 13 {52,217.058) {105,932,524)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,045,725,938) 249,878 460
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
for the year {147,703,512) 105,677,427
Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1 280,738,936 176,870,650
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash S - S —
Equivalents ERMN A L(Rdod a4yt
Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31 2 LAP,@EPMJ(TU‘W [ R 280438 936
TAXPAYERS ASSISTANCE DIVISIUT

The notes on pages 1 to 51 are integral part of these sephﬁﬁgg
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Shang Properties, Inc.

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
As at and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In the notes, all amounts are shown in Philippine Peso, unless otherwise stated)

te1- e jon

Shang Properties, Inc. (“the Company”), a corporation duly organized and existing in the Philippines,
was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commssion (SEC) on
October 21, 1987 to acquire, own, develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage, exchange, lease or hold for
investment, real properties of all kinds.

The Company is the owner of the land being leased out to a related party that operates the main building
and main-wing parking building of Shangri-La Plaza Mall in Mandaluyong It slso owns the carpark
building located in the north wing of the same mall in Mandaluyong City to another related party. The
Company 1s also the developer of SPI Tower, an office condominium project located in Mandaluyong
City, that is expected to be completed in December 2024,

The Company’s registered office address, which is also its principal place of business, is at
Adm™ * on Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City.

The Company has its primary listing on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). It was registered on
June 13, 1991 with total listed shares of 4,764,058,082, which was initially issued at P1.18 per share. As

at December 31, 2020, the Company has 5,191 shareholders (2019 - 5,200). The details of the Company’s
shareholders are disclosed in the annual report.

COVID-19 pandemic

During the first quarter of 2020, local and worldwide social and economic activities were severely
affected bythe read and threat of COVID-19 pandemic. The Company took actions to minimize risk to
its employees, including restricting travel and instituting extensive work from home protocols in
response to the enhanced community quarantine (ECQ) mandated by the Philippine government.
Measures have been implemented to protect the health and safety of its employees, clients and partners,
to support business continuity and to manage financial impact to a minimum. These measures have
caused disruptions to businesses and economic activities, and their impact on businesses continue to
evolve. The ECQ began on March 16, 2020 and was further extended and modified by the government up
to June 15, 2020. While quarantine measures over highly urbamzed cities in the National Region
(NCR) were relaxed following the proclamation of a modified enhanced community quarantine effective
May 16, 2020, and subsequently, a general community quarantine effective June 1, 2020, operations
across various industries remain below full capacity in several areas.

Despite of these adverse effects, the Company assessed that the impact of this event is insignificant to
these 2020 separate financial statements, The Company continues to pay close attention to the
developments on the pandemic and will evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Company. Measures to manage financial and business risks are in place to ensure that the

impact of events that expese the Company to risks arising from COVID-19, if any, are kept to a minimal
extent.

The separate financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue in accordance with a

resolution of the Board of Directors on March 25, 2021. BUREAU OF INTERMNM REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAYEKS “E E
LARGE TAXPAYERS AS DAVISION
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Note 2 - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019
Cash on hand 132,767 132,768
Cash in banks 66,113,178 38,913,464
Cash equivalents 65,785,165 241,652 704

132,031,110 280,738,936

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include short-term,
highly liquid investments (e.g. time deposit placements) with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Deposits with banks and cash equivalents earn interest at prevailing market rates. Total interest income
earned and interest receivable for the year ended and as at December 31, 2020 amounted to P893,387
and P3,364, respectively (2019 - P3,922,554 and P210,724, respectively) (Note 4).

The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents are generally denominated in
Philippine Peso, US Dollar and Hong Kong Dollar. The Company’s foreign currency denominated cash
and cash equivalents as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Foreign  Exchange Peso Foreign  Exchange Peso
currency rate  Equivalent currency rate  Equivalent
US Dollar 372,140 4802 17,870,163 500,197 50.74 25,379,996
HK Dollar 2,000 6.39 12,780 2,000 6.52 13,040
17,882,043 25,393,036

Realized and unrealized foreign exchange loss charged to income for the year ended
December 31, 2020 amounted to P1,182,670 and P1,004,314, respectively (2019 - P719,559 and
P1,809,141, respectively) (Note 17).

Note 3 - Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The account represents shares of stock of various publicly listed companies based on current hid prices in

an active market (Level 1 valuation). Movements in the account for the years ended December 31 are as
follows:

Note 2020 2019

January 1 2,450,793 2,273,965
Gain on fair value adjustments (included in

Miscellaneous) 17 1,000,154 176,828

December 31 3,450,947 2,450,793

(2)



Note 4 - Trade and other receivables, net

Trade and other receivables, net, as at December 31 consist of:

Notes 2020 2019

Trade

Rental - related parties 20 46,954 147 57,321,620

Rental - third parties 951,819 339,607
Non-trade

Receivables from related parties 20 2,540,230,794  1,404,274,392

Advances to officers and employees 1,380,011 1,237,868

Interest 2 3,364 210,724

Cthers 4,508,258 7,460,277

2,594,028,393 1,470,844,488

Allowance for impairment of non-trade receivables (2,132,043) {2,132,043)

2,591,896,350  1,468,712,445

All receivables are expected to be collected within 12 months (current). They are carried at amortized cost
which approximates fair value as of reporting date.

Trade receivables
Rent receivables are non-interest-bearing and pertain to rental fees charged to the Company’s

subsidiaries, an affiliate and third parties for the use of commercial and carpark spaces. The normal
credit terms range from 30 to 60 days.

Receivables from related parties
Receivables from related parties comprise mainly advances for operating capital requirements or

expenses paid by the Company on behalf of the related parties. Further information on this account is
disclosed in Note 20.

Advances to officers and employees
This account represents noninterest-bearing cash advances that are settled via payroll deduction or
expense liquidation.

Other non-trade receivables
These pertain to advances to suppliers and contractors, receivables from a government agency and the

retirement fund. The carrying amounts of the Company’s trade and other receivables are all denominated
in Philippine Peso.

Note 5 - Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale consist of condominium units for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Movements in properties held for sale for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
January 1 13,395,279 15,862,779
Recognized cost of condominium units sold (1,312,500) (2,467,500)
December 31 12,082,779 13,395,279

Properties held for sale are stated at cost and no allowance for write-down is provided as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

The cost of condominium units sold plus other directly attributable costs recognized as Cost and expense
is shown in the statements of total comprehensive income.

(2)



Note 6 - Prepayvments and other current assets

Prepayments and other current assets as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019
Creditable withholding tax 254,023,952 244,253 676
Input VAT 26,272,897 16,267,789
Prepaid expenses 1,789,833 2,505,181

282,086,682 263,026,646

Prepaid expenses pertain to membership fees and dues, subscriptions and insurance.

(4)



Note 7 - Investments and advances

Investments and advances at December 31 consist of:

Ownership % Amount
2020 2019 2020 2019
Subsidiaries:
Property development;
Shang Properties Realty Corporation (SPRC) 100 100 950,036,621 950,036,621
Shang Wack Wack Properties, Inc. (SWWP!) 100 100 850,000,000 850,000,000
Shang Property Developers, Inc. (SPDI) 100 100 5,000,000 5,000,000
SPI Land Development, Inc. 100 - 1,000,000 -
SPI Property Developers, Inc. 100 - 1,000,000 -
SPI Property Holdings, Inc. 100 - 1,000,000 -
Leasing:
KSA Realty Corporation (KSA) 70.04 70.04 4333249902 4,333,249,902
Shangri-la Plaza Corporation {(SL.PC) 100 100 699,882,830 699,882,830
SPI Parking Services, Inc. (SPS!) 100 100 250,000 250,000
Real estate:
KPP Realty Corporation (KRC) 100 100 125,000,000 125,000,000
New Contour Realty, Inc. (NCRI) 100 100 50,000 50,000
Perfect Sites, Inc. (PSI) 100 100 250,000 250,000
Ivory Post Properties, Inc. (IPPI) 100 100 250,000 250,000
Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, inc. (SFBHI) 100 100 500,000 500,000
Shang Global City Holdings, Inc. (SGCHI) 100 100 500,000 500,000
Martin B Properties, Inc. (MBPI) 100 100 400,000 400,000
Property management:
KPPl Management Services Corporation
{(KMSC) 100 100 1,000,000 1,000,000
Shang Property Management Services, Inc.
(SPMSI) 100 100 50,000 50,000
Other supplementary business:
Gipsey, Ltd. (Gipsey) 100 100 2,095,810,078  2,095,810,078
EPHI Logistics Holdings, Inc. (ELHI) 100 60 900,000 900,000
Guidebo Properties, Inc. 60 100 62,500 62,500
Laguna Hills Property Ventures, Inc. 100 100 62,500 62,500
0,066,254431 9,063,254 431
Associate:
Real estate:
Ideal Sites and Properties, Inc. (ISPI) 40 40 250,000 250,000
Joint venture:
Real estate:
Shang Robinsons Properties, Inc. (SRP1) 50 50 1,317,778,398 1,121,482,600
Deposits for future share subscription, and advances
to subsidiaries, associate, and joint venture 6,937,319,721  B,362,319,719
Allowance for impairment losses (1,833,507,685) (1,533,507,685)

15,788,094,865 17,013,799,065

The following subsidiaries and associates are owned through:

(a) The Rise Development Company, Inc. (TRDCI) - A wholly owned subsidiary of KRC.
(b) Silver Hero Investments Limited (SHIL) - A wholly owned subsidiary of Gipsey.

(¢) Shang Global City Properties, Inc. (SGCPI) - 59.4% owned by SGCHI and 0.6% owned by SFBHI.

Both SGCHI and SFBHI are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.
(d) Sky Leisure Properties, Inc. (SLPI) - A wholly owned subsidiary of PSI.

(5)



Except for Gipsey and Silver Hero Investments Limited (SHIL), which were incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (BVI) and use Hong Kong Dollar (HK$) as their functional currency, all the other
subsidiaries were incorporated and registered in the Philippines which use Philippine Peso as their

functional currency.

The Company takes effective and absolute control over key decisions, operating strategies, and key
policies of KSA, SGCPI, and ELHI. In compliance with the provisions of PAS 27, “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements”, investment in subsidiaries is accounted for using the cost method in

these separate financial statements.

There has been no movement in the allowance for impairment losses as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the subsidiaries and associates to transfer cash
assets, pay dividends or pay advances to the Company and between subsidiaries.

The summarized financial information of subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interest as at and

for the year ended December 31, 2020 are as follows:

KSA SGCPI
Total current assets 820,027,926 558,370,087
Total non-current assets 10,668,871,953 9,076,570,849
Total assets 11,488,899,879 9,634,940,936

Total current liabilities

(616,029.103)

(1,486,150,528)

Total non-current liabilities (2,744,250,925) (1,290,233,352)
Total liabitities (3,360,280,028) (2,776,383,880)
Net assets 8,128,619,851 6,858,557 056
Non-controlling interest share in net assets 2,435,334, 507 2,743,422 822
Revenue 1,435,989,656 1,081,762,155
Cost and expenses (70,079,425) (2,189,630,915)
Other expense (1,081,116) (204,824,327)
Income (foss) before provision for income tax 1,364,829,115 (1,312,693,087)
Income tax (expense) benefit (263,035,391) 366,508,509
Net income (loss) for the year 1,101,793,724 (946,184,578)
Other comprehensive loss (107 625) {1,967,738)
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 1,101,686,099 (948,152,316)
Non-gontroliing interest share in total
comprehensive income (loss) for the year 330,065,155 (379,260,926)
KSA SGCPI
Cash flows provided by (used in):
Operating activities 1,141,854,238 {302,908,282)
Investing activities {671,663) (71,452,196)
Financing activities (828,577,695) 146,159 927

(6)



The summarized financial information of subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interest as at and

for the year ended December 31, 2019 are as follows:

KSA SGCPI
Total current assets 462,514,679 881,210,512
Total non-current assets 10,673,621,504 9,820,274 434

Total assets

11,136,136,183

10,701,484,946

Total current liabilities (457,006,457) (1,369,367,257)
Total non-current liabilities (2,802,195,974) (1,525,408,317)
Total liabilities (3,259,202 431) (2,894,775,574)
Net assets 7,876,933,752 7,806,708,372
Non-controlling interest share in net assets 2,359,929,352 3,122,683,749
KSA SGCPI
Revenue 1,429,812,199 3,701,852,718
Cost and expenses (71,929,445) {3,469, 666,393)
Other income, net 89,508,516 (163,685,699)
Income before provision for income tax 1,447 .391,270 68,500,626
Income tax expense (279,232,769) {25,143,078)
Net income for the year 1,168,158,501 43,357,548
Other comprehensive loss (54,383) (3,892,437)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,168,104,118 39,465,111
Non-controlling interest share in total
comprehensive income for the vear 349 963,994 15,786,044
KSA SGCPI
Cash ffows provided by (used in):
Operating activities 1,247 ,497.746 979,260,721

Investing activities
Financing activities

(2,369,718)
(1,330,000,000)

(144,178,230)
(1,396,972,328)

(7)



The summarized financial information of the associate as at and for the years ended December 31 are as

follows:
2020 2019

Total current assets 1,712,445 905,385
Total non-current assets 1,294,783 1,463,653
Total assets 3,007,228 2,369,038
Total current liabilities {6,938,557) (5,957,681)
Total non-current liahilities - -
Total liabilities {(6,938,557) (5,957 681)
Net assets (3,931,328) (3,588,643)
Revenue 16,218 118,452
Cost and expenses (189,715) {187,874)
Loss before income tax (173.487) (69,422)
Income tax benefit 14,810 8,080
Net loss (158,687) (61,342)
Other comprehensive loss (183,681) (9,419
Total comprehensive loss (342,368) (70,761)
Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities 789,076 (20,260)

Investing activities 73,708 82,656

Investment in a joint venture

On March 22, 2018, the Company entered into a Joint Venture Agreement (the “Agreement”) with
Robinsons Land Corporation (RLC) for the construction and development of a property into a mixed-use
condominium project (later known as Aurelia Residences). Within two (2) months from the effective
date of the Agreement, the parties shall establish the joint venture company (“JVC”) and shall execute the
Articles and By-Laws of the JVC. On, May 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Certificate of Incorporation of

the JVC, Shang Robinsons Properties, Inc. (SRPI). SRPI is jointly controlled by the Company and RLC,
each holding 50% inferest.

The authorized capital stock of SRPI is P3 billion divided into 3 billion common shares with par value of
P1 per share.

On April 19, 2018, the Company subscribed and paid in full the amount of P1 billion equivalent to 1
billion common shares at P1 per share.

The registered office address of SRPI, which is also its principal place of business, is at Cyber Sigma,
Lawtlon Avenue, Taguig Cily.

SRPI engages in: (i) the business of developing a property into a mixed-use development, (ii) the
marketing and sale of the residential condominium units in the project, (iii) and the lease of serviced
apartment units and/or commercial units in the project.

SRPI commenced operations in 2019 and had presold 37% of its Aurelia Residences condominium units.
As at December 31, 2020, the Aurelia Residences Project is 7% complete (2019 - 3.21%). In 2020, the
Company’s share in net income of the joint venture amounted to P185,533,552 (2019 - P101,237,114).

In 2019, advances amounting to P1 billion were extended to SRPL These advances mature on

April 1, 2023 and bear interest at a rate of 4%. Interest income earned from these advances amounted to
P62,777,778 in 2020 (2019 - nil).

(8)



Summarized financial information of the JVC as at and for the years ended December 31 are presented

below:
2020 2019
Summarized statements of financial position
Current assets 9,050,807 444 9,080,241,934
Current liabilities (3,850,530,594) (3,164,578,330)
Non-current assets 521,597 386 317,765,929
Non-current liabilities (3,167,337,600)  (4,049,960,000)
Net asseis 2,554 536 636 2,183,469,533
2020 2019
Summarized statements of fotal comprehensive income
(Gross revenue 929,357,646 493,523,933
Net income for the year 371,067,103 202,474,229
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 371,067,103 202,474,229
2020 2018
Summarized statements of cash flows
Operating activities 267,341,203 1,581,136,028
Investing activities - (1,289,885)
Financing activities (659,553,876) 1,060,541,673

Critical accounting judgment - Assessing control over subsidiaries

The Company or its subsidiaries makes an assessment whether or not it controls an investee by
considering all relevant facts and circumstances that indicates that the Company or its subsidiaries is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
atfect those returns through its power over the investee. The Company has determined that it controls its

subsidiaries.

Critical accounting judgment - Recoverability of investment and advances

The Company’s investments and advances are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the investment may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss would be recognized whenever evidence exists that the carrying value is not recoverable.

Management believes that the current level of allowance for impairment losses as at December 31, 2020

and 2019 is sufficient to cover non-recoverable amount,

Significant accounting judgment - joint control assessment

Management has assessed that in the joint venture agreement, the contractual arrangement gives the
investors control of the arrangement collectively, and decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of both entities, and therefore, joint control exists. Furthermore, the rights and
obligations considering the structure and legal form of the arrangement indicates that the Company has
rights to the net assets of SRPI and therefore, the arrangement is classified as a joint venture.

(9)



Note 8 - Investinent properties

This account consists of properties that are either held for capital appreciation or for rental purposes or
both. The Company’s investment properties are carried at fair value.

Details of investment properties as at December 31 and their movements during the years are as follows:

Land Building Total
January 1, 2018 11,270,822,390 540,866,814 11,811,689,204
Gain on fair value adjustment 1,445,898,813 - 1,445,898,813
Capitalized subseguent expenditure 500,500,000 470,794 670 971,284 670
December 31, 2019 13,217,221,203  1,011,661,484 14,228,882,687
Capitalized subseqguent expenditure 336,798,152 336,798,152

December 31, 2020 13,217,221,203  1,348,459,636 14,565,680,839

The Company’s investment properties in 2020 and 2019 consist of parcels of land, carpark building and
condominium units. The land and carpark building are being leased out to subsidiaries and third parties.

On September 5, 2019, the Company acquired additional land in Mandaluyong City for a total contract
price of P500,500,000. The land will be developed for future use as investment property.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the fair values of the properties are based on valuations performed by
an independent external appraiser duly certified by the management. The valuation models are in
accordance with that recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee. The fair value
of the condominium units is based on internal appraisals.

The Company has no restrictions on the realizability of its investment properties and no contractual
obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and
enhancements.

The current use of these properties is their highest and best use.

The following table presents the valuation techniques and unobservable key inputs used to value the
Company's land property:

Range of
unobservable inputs Relationship of
Fair value as at Valuation Unobservabie  (probability -weighted unobservable
Property December 31, 2020 technigue inputs average)  inputs to fair value
Land where the main P5,871,373,900 Direct income Rental value P1,700 per square The higher the
wing and east wing of {2019 - capitalization meter rental value and
Shangri-La Plaza mall P5,871,373,900) (2019 - P1,700) occupancy rate,
is located Oceupancy rate 86%  the higher the fair
(2019 - 96%) value.
Expense-revenue 23% The higher the
ratio {2019- 23%) expense- revenue
ratio and discount
Discount rate 12%  rate, the lower the
{2019 - 12%) fair value.

The fair value of the land property where the Shangri-La Plaza mall is located is calculated using the
direct income capitalization approach (Level 3). In applying the direct income capitalization approach,
the stabilized net operating income (NOI) of each property is divided by an appropriate capitalization
rate. Discount rate is based on actual location, size and quality of the property and taking into account
any available market data at the valuation date. Stabilized NOI is computed at revenue less property
operating expenses adjusted for items such as average lease up costs, long-term vacancy rates,
non-recoverable capital expenditures, management fees, straight-line rents and other non-recurring
items.
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Generally, an increase in stabilized NOI will result in an increase in the fair value of an investment
property. An increase in the discount rate will result in a decrease in the fair value of an investment
property. The discount rate magnifies the effect of a change in stabilized NOI, with a lower discount rate
resulting in a greater impact of a change in stabilized NOI than a higher discount rate.

The following are the significant unobservable inputs:

* Rental value average rental rate per square meter paid by tenants based on the asking price in the

market;

* Discount rates reflecting current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of
cash flows;

* Occupancy rate based on current and expected future market conditions after expiry of any current
lease; and

* Expense - revenue ratio total direct operating expenses for the entire property based on budget.

The fair values of the Company’s other land properties and carpark building are determined using the
market comparison approach (Level 2). Under the market comparison approach, a property’s fair value is
estimated based on comparable transactions adjusted for bargaining allowance, marketability, location,
size and terrain. The market comparison approach is based upon the principle of substitution under
which a potential buyer will not pay more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute
property. In theory, the best comparable sale would be an exact duplicate of the subject property and
would indicate, by the known selling price of the duplicate, the price for which the subject property could
be sold. The unit of comparison applied by the Company is the price per square meter (sqm).

The amounts recognized in the statements of total comprehensive income for investment properties for
the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Rental revenue 83,136,766 249,930,202
Direct operating expenses {18,191,051) {18,554,878)
Profit arising from investment properties carried at fair value 64,945 715 231,375,324

Direct operating expenses include real property taxes and expenses related to carpark operation.

There is no restriction on the Company’s title on investment properties and no investment properties
were pledged as security for liabilities.
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Critical accounting estimate - determination of fair values of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined by independent real estate valuation experts
using recognized valuation techniques. In some cases, fair values are determined based on recent real
estate transactions with similar characteristics and in the location of those of the Company’s assets. In
the absence of such information, the Company determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
value estimates. In making its judgment, the Company considers information from a variety of sources
including:

a) current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location (or subject
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences:

b) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

c) stabilized net operating income based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the same location and condition, and using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amounts and timing
of the cash flows.

The Company also considers whether there are significant changes in market and property conditions in
assessing the fair value of investment properties

The significant method and assumptions used by the appraisers in estimating fair values of investment
properties are disclosed above. The fair values, which are also the values of investment properties as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are disclosed above.

Fair value gain on investment properties represent significant amounts both in value of property and
income. Any +/-1% change in (assumption) increases/decreases total assets and income before tax by
P142.27 million (2019 - P142.27 million).

Critical accounting judgment - Distinction between properties held for sale, investment properties, and
property and equipment

The Company determines whether a property is to be classified as a property held for sale, an investment
property, or property and equipment through the following;:

» Properties held for sale comprise properties that are held for sale in the ordinary course of business.
These are condominium units that the Company acquired or developed and intends to sell.

* Investment properties comprise land and buildings which are not occupied, substantially for use by,
or in the operations of, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business of the Company, but are held
primarily to earn rental income or capital appreciation.

» Property and equipment generate cash flows that are attributable not only to them but also to the
other assets used in the operations of the Company.

In making its judgment, the Company considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent of the other assets held by the Company.

Some properties comprise a portion that is to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. If these portions cannot be sold
separately at the reporting date, the property is accounted for as an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied
in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property. The Company considers each property separately in making its judgment.



Note 9 - Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, net

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), net at December 31, consist of:

2020 2019
Unqguoted securities 78,349,278 78,349 278
Quoted securities 7,551,515 7,551,515
Acquisition cost 85,900,793 85,900,793
Cumulative changes in fair value 101,182,849 107,282,849
Fair value at December 31 187,083,642 193,183,642

Ungquoted equity securities include unlisted shares of stock which are measured at fair value. The fair
values of the unquoted equity securities are based on the net asset value of the underlying assets which
are mainly investment properties consisting of land and buildings measured and carried at fair value of
underlying assets. The fair value measurements have been categorized as Level 3 with the following
significant unobservable inputs in the computation of the fair value of investment properties: (1) rental
value average rental rate, (2) discount rates, (3) occupancy rate, (4) expense - revenue rafio, and (5)
comparable transactions adjusted for bargaining allowance, marketability, location, size and terrain. The

net asset value per share of unquoted equity securities ranges from P1,043 per share to P465,054 per
share.

In 2019, the Company sold its unquoted equity securities at cost of P66,500. None was sold in 2020.

The quoted equity securities consist of investments in various golf club shares and stocks. These are
carried at fair values which are based on the quoted market prices (Level 1) as at the reporting date.

The Company wrote-off quoted equity securities in 2019 with cost of P1,550,000 and cumulative changes
in fair value of P1,270,000. There were no similar transactions during 2020. (Note 17)

The cumulative changes in fair values of unquoted and quoted equity shares are presented as part of
other comprehensive income in the statements of financial position.

The movements in the cumulative changes in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI for the years ended
December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019

January 1 93,435,172 73,682,022
(Loss) gain on fair value adjustment (6,100,000) 21,969,000
Derecognition - 1,270,000
87,335,172 96,921,022

Deferred income tax effect 915,000 (3,485,850)
December 31 88,250,172 03,435,172




Note 10 - Property and equipment, net

Details of property and equipment, net, as at December 31 and their movements during the years are as

follows:
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building Leasehold Transportation other
improvements  improvements equipment equipment Total
Cost
January 1, 2019 38,124,240 62,816,521 40,972,692 37,659,608 179,573,059
Additions 4,634,794 4,634 287 7,259,821 2,661,850 19,190,752
Disposals - - (5,668,473} - (5,668,473)
December 31, 2019 42,758,034 67,450,808 42 564,040 40,321,456 193,005,338
Additions 1,299,895 3,540,090 - 6,841,555 11,681,540
December 31, 2020 44 058,929 70,990,898 42,564,040 47,163,011 204,776,878
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2019 20,017,886 16,605,141 27,567,352 31,808,350 95,998,729
Depreciation 1,310,354 10,158,636 4,921,938 3,672,553 20,063,481
Disposals - - {5,668,471) - (5,668,471)
December 31, 2019 21,328,240 28,763,777 26,820,819 35,480,903 110,393,739
Depreciation 1,310,354 10,856,804 5,426 639 3,603,232 21,197,029
December 31, 2020 22,638,594 37,620,581 32,247 458 39,084,135 131,590,768
Net book values at
December 31, 2019 21,430,794 40,687,031 15,743,221 4,840,553 82,701,599
December 31, 2020 21420, 335 33,370,317 10,316,582 8,078,876 73,186,110

As at December 31, 2020, the Company has fully depreciated property and equipment still in use with
acquisition cost of P62,881,957 (2019 - P57,361,480).

There are no restrictions on the Company’s title on property and equipment and no property and

equipment pledged as security for liabilities.

Critical accounting estimate - Useful lives of property and equipment

The useful life of each item of the Company’s property and equipment is estimated based on the period
over which the asset is expected to be available for use. Such estimate is based on collective assessment
of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated
useful life of each asset is reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commereial obsolescence and legal or other limits
on the use of the asset. Itis possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in the amounts and timing of recorded expenses brought about by changes in the
factors mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated useful life of any property and equipment or
investment property would increase the recorded operating expenses and decrease non-current assets.

In 2020 and 2019, there were no changes in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and
investment properties. As at December 31, 2020, property and equipment have a carrying value of
P73,186,110 (2019 - P82,701,599).
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Critical accounting judgment - Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company reviews its non-financial assets for any indicator of impairment in value. This includes
considering certain factors such as significant changes in asset usage, significant decline in assets’ market
value, obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, significant underperformance relative to expected
historical or projected future operating results and significant negative industry or economic trends. If
indicators of impairment have been identified, the Company determines the recoverable amount of the
asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Given historical profitable operations and profit projections, the Company has assessed that there are no
impairment indicators with respect to the non-financial assets as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Note 11 - Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019
Restricted fund 887,888,000 422,000,000
Deposit to contractors 19,212,500 47.980,912
Refundable deposits 966,424 986,424

908,066,924 470,967,336

Restricted fund
On December 12, 2019, the Company set aside funds amounting to P422,000,000 representing the first

installment for a 50% share in an investment. In 2020, the Company set aside additional funds
amounting to P465,888,000 for the second installment.

Deposit to contractors

Deposit to contractors as at December 31, 2020 pertains to cash paid by the Company for the
construction of SPI tower.

Refundable deposits
Refundable deposits are cash paid by the Company for deposits to utility companies which are expected
to be returned after a specified period, or when certain conditions are satisfied.

Note 12 -~ Accounts pavable and other current liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities as at December 31 consist of:

Notes 2020 2019
Trade
Accounts payable 32,086,730 13,436,215
Accrued expenses 33,204,761 49,244 119
Payable to contractors and suppliers 44 347 825 44 347,825
Accrued interest 13 11,781,241 17,798,369
Non-trade
Payable to related parties 20 2.075,061,652 1,001,188,067
Retention payables to contractors 12,905,708 10,666,850
Payable to regulatory agencies 7,881,171 11,811,807
Output vaiue added tax (VAT) 2,488,936 5,972,622
Others 4,303,536 4,055,418

2,224,061,560 2,058,521,292

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 to
60 days and within the next financial year, respectively.

(15)



Payable to contractors and suppliers represents progress billings from various contractors for the
material and labor costs incurred to date with normal credit terms of 30 to 60 days, but may go beyond
as agreed.

Output VAT represents tax due and payable after deducting  corresponding input VAT.

crued expenses consist of accruals for advertising and promotions, insurance, other employee benefit
related cost and other general and administrative expenses. Others pertain mainly to taxes, insurance
and statutory contributions payable to Social Security System (“SSS”), Home Development Mutual Fund
(“HDMF”) and Philippine Health Insurance Corporation (“Phithealth”).

Note 13 - Bank loans

Bank loans as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Current portion 4,233,333,334 3,553,333,333
Non-current portion 933,333,334

4,233,333,334 4,486,666,667

Movements in the bank loans as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
January 1 4,486,666,667 3,300,000,000
Additions 2,100,000,000 3,145,000,000
Payments (2,353,333,333)  (1,958,333,333)
December 31 4,233,333,334 4,486,666,667

On July 30, 2012, the Company obtained a 10-year loan facility from a local bank amounting to P5.00
billion. This amount is payable in 24 equal quarterly installments commencing on the 17th quarter from
the initial borrowing date at a fixed interest rate of 4.00% per annum for the three (3) years effective
September 17, 2015.

On July 31, 2018, the Company obtained another 6-month loan from a local bank amounting to P500
million payable on January 31, 2019 at a fixed rate at 4.50% per annum. OnJanuary 2019, the loan
was extended for 6 months payable on July 31, 2019. On July 31, 2019,  Company paid the entire
amount of the loan.

The loan agreement requires the Company to comply with certain covenants and financial ratios until the
loans are fully paid. Failure to comply the covenants will render the full amount of loans due and
demandable. As at December 31, 2019, the Company is fully compliant with the loan covenants.

As at Decemnber 31,2020 the Company has not reached the debt-service coverage ratio requiremnent
specified in the loan agreement. The Company, however, was able to secure a waiver from the bank on
the immediate declaration of the loan as due and demandable.

Total drawdown from the above facility amounted to P3.70 billion as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
As at December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance of the loan amounted to Pg33 million
{2019 - 1.47 billion).



The Company availed of the following short-term loans which are payable within a period of 12 months:

Qutstanding Qutstanding
Payment Starting Maturity Interest Balance as of Balance as of
term date date rate Extension Loan amount December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
2020
3months  §-May-20 6-Aug-20 4.75% No extension period 200,000,000 - -
3months  10-Jun-20 B-Sep-20 4.50% No extension period 200,000,000 - -
3months  24-Jun 22-5ep-20  4.50% Extended until 200,000,000 200,000,000 -
March 21, 2021
3months  11-Sep-20  10-Dec-20  3.75% Extended until 200,000,000 200,000,000 -
March 10, 2021
3menths  11-Sep-20  10-Dec20  3.75% Extended until 200,000,000 200,000,000 -
March 10, 2021
3months  6-Oct-20 4-Jan-21 3.70% No extension period 400,000,000 400,000,000 -
Imonths  12-Nov-20  10-Feb-21 3.50% No extension period 250,000,000 250,000,000 -
3months  10-Dec-20  10-Mar21 3.50% No extension period 450,000,000 450,000,000
Sub-total 2,100,000,000 1,700,000,000 -
2019
6 months  14-Jun-19  11-Dec-19 5.75% Extended until 1,000,000,000 - 1,000,000,000
June 30, 2020
6 months  28-Mar-19  24-Sep-19  6.00% Extended unil 1,100,000,000 1,106,000,000 1,100,000,000
March 17, 2021
6months  1-Aug-19  28-Jan-20  5.40% No extension period 125,000,000 - -
6 months  14-Aug-12  10-Feb-20  5.30% No e n period 170,000,000 - 170,000,000
3months  7-Oct-19 6-Jan-20 4.75% No extension period 250,000,000 - 250,000,000
dmonths  11-Dec-19  10-Mar-20  4.15% Extended until 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000
January 7, 2021
Sub-total 3,145,000,000 1,600,000,000 3,020,000,000
Totat

3,300,000,000

3,020,000,000

The repayments of the total loans as at December 31 are scheduled as follows:

ear 2020 2019
2020 - 3,553,333,333
2021 4,233,333,334 533,333,333
2022 - 400,000,001

4,233,333,334 4,486,666,667

Interest expense charged to profit or loss amounted to P

shown mn the statements of total comprehensive income,

Movements in the accrued interest recorded as acerued interest u
current liabilities account

46,199,930 in 2020 (2019 - P104,993,758) as

nder accounts payable and other
r the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Note 020 2019
January 1 17,798,369 18,737,
Interest expense 46,199,930 104,993,758
Payments (52,217,058) (105,932,524)
December 31 12 11,781,241 17,798,369




Note 14 - Equity

(a) Share capital, share premium and treasury shares

Details of share capital and share premium at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Shares Amount
Authorized, at P1 par value per share
Common shares 8,000,000,000 8,000,000,000
Issued and outstanding shares
Common shares 4,764,058,982 4,764,058,982
Share premium 1,210,073,869 1,210,073,869

5,974,132,851 5,974,132,851

In 2007, the Board of Directors approved the redemption of 2,140,645 common shares at redemption
price of P3.20 per share or a total of P6,850,064 and the amount is presented as treasury shares in the
staternents of financial position.

(b) Retained earnings

As at December 31, 2020, total unrestricted retained earnings amounted to P18,048,427,321

(2019 - P17,460,971,793). The Company’s unrestricted retained earnings exceeded its share capital by
P12,074,294,470 (2019 - P11,486,838,942). The excess retained earnings include accumulated fair value
gain of P9,868,058,867 (2019 - P9,868,058,867) which are not considered available for dividend
declaration. The management of the Company plans to use the excess retained earnings to support the
Company’s working capital requirements, planned business growth and expansion strategies. Further the

Company annually declares dividends in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 11, Series of
2008.

The Company’s Board of Directors approved the declaration of the following cash dividends for the years
ended December 31 and until the approval of these financial statements:

Shareholders of

Date of declaration record as at Payment date Total Per share

2021

March 25 April 9 April 16 380,953 467 0.080

2020

Aprit 1 April 17 May 12 535,715,813 0.113

August 20 September 8 September 24 209,524,305 0.044
745 240,118 0.157

2019

March 6 March 21 March 29 502,382,385 0.106

September 16 September 30 October 10 333,334,164 0.070
835,716,549 0.176

As at December 31, 2020, dividends payable amounting to P52,600,087 (2019 - P47,544,516) presented
in the statements of financial position pertain to dividends declared by the Company to its shareholders.
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(¢} Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share, which are the same due to absence of dilutive potential common
shares, for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Net income for the year 1,332,695,646 2,719,404,296
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 4,761,818,337 4,761,918,337
Earnings per share __0.28 0.57

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating, complies with externally imposed capital requirements, and maintains healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economiec
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholder, return capital to shareholder or issue new shares. There were no changes in the
Company’s strategies and policies during 2020 and 2019,

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt, including long-term loan less
cash and cash equivalents, divided by capital. Capital pertains to total equity. The gearing ratio as at
December 31 is presented below:

2020 2019

Net debt
Bank loans 4,233,333,334 4,486,666,667
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 132,031,110 280,738,936
4,101,302,224 4,205,927 731
Total equity 24,072921,162  23,495,621,695
Gearing ratio 17.04% 17.90%

The Company was able to meet its capital management objectives.

Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply with certain
financial covenants. Details of the Company's compliance with these covenants are disclosed in Note 13.

Note 15 - Staff costs

The components of staff costs for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Note 2020 2019

Salaries and wages 225,651,686 293,838,648
Employee benefits 16,228,801 22,895,420
Retirement benefit expense 18 14,903,238 9,793,557
Others 4,007,344 9,803,323
260,791,069 336,330,048
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Note 16 - Other operating expenses

The components of other general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31 are as

follows:

Note 2020 2019

Professional fees 60,958,369 58,888,547
Carpark expense 6,112,037 6,542,921
Rent 22 4,714,888 4,610,159
Janitoriai, security and other services 4,466,601 3,628,873
Repairs and maintenance 3,931,430 4,595,386
Utilities 2,799 417 3,160,986
Supplies 2,654,474 2,015,156
Telephone and communication 2,065,062 3,289,528
Membership fees and dues 1,811,395 2,650,600
Transportation and travel 1,316,599 6,639,281
Insurance 1,307,611 1,057,721
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 519,371 1,889,783
Condominium dues 476,332 1,286,796
Reproduction charges 529,398 653,920
Donations 419,758 5,500,000
Others 3,141,438 3,297,291
87,224 180 109,606,958

Taxes and licenses pertaining to payment of business taxes, permits, real property taxes and other taxes
incurred by the Company in 2020 amounted to P39,699,950 (2019 - P48,103,735) as shown in the

statements of total comprehensive income,

Note 17 - Miscellaneous

The components of this account for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Notes 2020 2019
Management fees 20 42,485,252 125,353,654
Income from release of pension liability due to transfers 18 1,545,157 -
Gain on fair value adjustments of financial assets at
FVTPL 3 1,000,154 176,828
Gain on sale of property and equipment - 1,050,726
Bank charges {335,406) (519,836)
Foreign exchange loss, net 2 (2,186,984) (2,528,700)
Loss on write-off of financial assets at FVOCI 9 - {1,580,000)
Wrrite-off of receivable from retirement fund (4,764.655) -
Others 1,607 (295,376)
37,745,125 121,687,296

The Company incurred a loss amounting to P4,764,655 in 2020 arising from write off of receivables from

paid retirement benefits out of its operating fund in the previous years.

Note 18 - Retirement benefit asset

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit plan, providing death, disability and
retirement benefits for all of its regular employees. Under the plan, the normal retirement age is 60
years old and completion of at least five years of service. Normal retirement benefit consists of a lump

sum benefit equivalent to 100% of the employee's final pay for every year of service.



The funds are administered by a trustee bank under the supervision of the Company’s Treasury
Department (Treasury). The management is responsible for investment of the assets. It defines the
investment strategy as often as necessary, at least annually, especially in the case of significant market
developments or changes to the structure of the plan participants. When defining the investment
strategy, it takes into account the plans objectives, benefit obligations and risk capacity. The investment
strategy is defined in the form of a long-term target structure (investment policy).

The retirement benefit obligation is determined using the “Projected Unit Credit Cost” (PUC) method.
Under the PUC method, the annual normal cost for the portion of the retirement is determined as the
amount necessary to provide for the portion of the retirement benefit accruing during the year.

The actuarial present value of the retirement benefit obligation under the plan is measured in terms of
actuarial assumptions for discount rate, salary increases, retirement rates and mortality using the 2019
Philippine Intercompany Mortality Table. The discount rates used is a single weighted average rate
based on rates as published in the Bankers Association of the Philippines Peso Bloomberg Valuation
(PHP BVAL) at various tenors as at December 31, 2020. Rate for intermediate durations were
interpolated. The rates were then weighted by the expected benefit payments at those durations to arrive
at the single weighted average discount rate.

The plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

a) Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to high quality corporate bond yields; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create
a plan deficit. Currently the plan's investments are in the form of investments in debt instruments and
cash deposits to universal and commercial banks. Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the
board of the pension fund considers it appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets is invested
in investments in debt instruments and cash deposits to universal and commercial banks.

b) Interest rate risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using single weighted average rate based on PHP-BVAL rates. A decrease in rate will
increase the defined benefit obligation. Hence, the present value of defined benefit obligation is directly
affected by the discount rate to be applied by the Company. However, the Company believes that due to
the long-term nature of the pension benefit obligation, the investment holdings of the plan is an
appropriate element of the Company’s long-term strategy to manage the plan efficiently.

¢) Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the retirement benefit obligation.

d) Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the retirement
benefit obligation.



Management performs an Asset-Liability Matching Study (ALM) annually. The overall investment policy
and strategy of the Company’s defined benefit plan is guided by the objective of achieving an investment
return which, together with contributions, ensures that there will be sufficient assets to pay retirement
benefits as they fall due while also mitigating the various risk of the plan, The Company’s current
strategic investment strategy consists of 45.76% treasury investments, 14.52% corporate investments,
22.98% equity securities, 16.70% money market deposits and trust funds and 0.04% cash.

The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching
the expected cash outflows arising from the pension obligations. The Company has changed its fund
management in 2019 and has changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods.

The Company does not use derivatives to manage its risk. Investments are well diversified, such that the
failure of any single investment would not have a material impact on the overall level of assets.

The Company’s plan assets consist of investment in debt and equity instruments, money market deposits
and trust funds, and cash in banks. The Company believes that equities offer the best returns over the
long term with an acceptable level of risk.

The actuarial valuation of the Company’s retirement plan was performed by an independent actuary.
The latest actuarial valuation report prepared was for the year ended December 31, 2020. The principal
assumptions used by the actuary for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Discount rate 3.31% 4.63%
Salary increase rate 3.00% 4.00%

The details of the retirement benefit (liability) asset and expense as at and for the years ended December 31
are as follows:

2020 2019
Retirement benefit (liability) asset (13,316,584) 6,127,631
Retirement benefit expense 14,903,238 9,793,557

The amounts of retirement benefit (liability) asset recognized in the statements of financial position are
determined as follows:

2020 2019
Fair value of plan assets 95,300,363 108,364,884
Present value of defined benefit obligation (108,616,947) (102,237,253)
Retirement benefit (liability) asset (13,316,584) 6,127,631

The movements in the remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan under other comprehensive loss for
the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
January 1 (37,240,083) {38,070,043)

Remeasuremenis (7,101,515) 829,960
(44,341,598) (37,240,083)

Deferred income tax effect 13,302,480 11,172,026
December 31 (31,039,118) (26,068,057)
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The components of retirement expense for the years ended December 31 recognized in the statements of

total comprehensive income are as follows:

Note 2020 2019
Current service cost 15,361,761 10,404,722
Net interest cost (458 523) (611,165)
Retirement benefit expense 15 14,903,238 9,793,557

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for the years ended December 31 are as

follows:

2020 2019
January 1 102,237,253 87,757,761
Net interest cost 3,946,868 4,971,848
Current service cost 15,361,761 10,404,722
Benefits paid by the Company from operating funds (1,015,381) {1,746,768)
Benefits paid by the Company from retirement funds (17,642,699) -
Remeasurement losses (gains) from:
Experience adjustments 6,358,871 (4,580,792)
Changes in financial assumptions 915,431 5,430,482
Released obligation due to employee transfers (1,545,157) -
December 31 108,616,947 102,237,253
Changes in the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31 are as follows:
2020 2019
January 1 108,364,884 89 976,407
Interest income 4 405,391 5,683,013
Return on plan assets 172,787 1,679,650
Contributions - 12,872,582
Benefits paid from plan assets {17,642,699) (1,746,768)
December 31 95,300,363 108,364,884

Apart from the benefit payments to certain qualified employees advanced by the Company and the
contributions to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had no other

transactions with the plan.

Details of plan assets as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Cash in banks 29,821 47,046
Investments in debt instruments:
Treasury notes and bonds 49 253,236 49,593,592
Corporate notes and bonds 7.542 873 15,734,602
Investments in equify instruments 26,188,270 24,892 867
Money market deposits and trust funds 12,286,163 18,096,777
95,300,363 108,364,884

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s plan assets (investment in equity and debt instruments)
are determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market (classified as Level 1 in the

fair value hierarchy).

There are no plan assets invested in related parties as at and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and

2019.



Expected contribution to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending December 31, 2020
amounts to P14,059,712.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 9.32 years.

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefits as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Less than a year 23,485,285 33,983,469
Between 1 and 5 years 62,726,422 55,429,579
Between 5 and 10 years 69,090,034 50,663,483
Qver 10 vears 135,457 778 159,885 688

290,759,519 299,962,219

Critical accounting estimate - Deterrning retirement benefit obligation

The Company maintains a qualified defined benefit retirernent plan. The calculations of retirement costs of
the Company are dependent upon the use of assumptions, including discount rates, expected return on plan
assets, interest cost, future salary increases, benefits earned, mortality rates, the number of employee
retirements, the number of employees electing to take lump-sum payments and other factors.

Actual results that differ from assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and,
therefore, generally affect recognized expense and the recorded obligation in future periods. While the
Company believes that the assumptions used are reasonable, differences n actual experience or changes in
assumptions may materially affect the Company’s retirement obligation and future expense.

In determining the long-term rates of return, the Company considers the nature of the plans’ investments,
an expectation for the plans’ investment strategies, historical rates of return and eurrent economic forecasts.
The Company evaluates the expected long-term rate of return annually and adjusts such rate as necessary

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions are as
follows:

Increase (decrease)

2020 2018
Discount rate
Increase by 1.0% (103,596,478} (98,173,136)
Decrease by 1.0% 114,248,181 106,777,729
Salary increase rate
Increase by 1.0% 114,832,051 107,368,597
Decrease by 1.0% (102,966,713) (97,558,484)

The sensitivity is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant,

In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method
at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the retirement benefit asset
recognized within the statements of financial position. The methods and types of assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prior years.



Note 19 - Income taxes

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31 follows:

2020 2019
Current 2,139,701 7,139,458
Deferred 14,832,086 357,780,509
16,971,787 364,919,067
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019

Deferred income tax assets;
Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) 7,139,458 7,139,458
Accrued expenses 12,686,685 14,489,025
Unamortized past service cost 8,621,445 6,490,989
Aliowance for impairment of receivables 639,613 639,613
Net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) 76,861,658 76,861,658
105,948,859 105,620,743

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on cumulative fair vaiue adjustments of

Investment properties 4,021,055,182

4,021,055,182

Interest income from advances to related parties 18,833,333 -
Financial assets at FVOCI 14,054,103 14,969,103
Retirement benefit asset {2,145,693) 3,683,342
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 301,294 275,844
4,052,098,219 4,039,983,471

Net deferred income tax liabilities 3,846 149 360

3,934,362,728

Realization of the future tax benefits related to the deferred income tax assets is dependent on many
factors, including the Company’s ability to generate taxable income in the future. The unrecognized

deferred income tax assets as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019
MCIT 2,139,701 -
_NOLCO 143,629,496 91,303,712
Unrecognized deferred tax assets 87,894,267 3,934,362,728
Movements in net deferred income tax liabilities for the years ended December 31 are as follows:
2020 2019
January 1 (3,934,362,728)  (3,572,847,382)
Charged to profit or loss (14,832,086) (357,780,509)
Credited {charged) to other comprehensive income 3,045 454 (3,734,837)
December 31 (3,946,149,360)  (3,934,362,728)




The details of deferred income tax assets on NOLCO at December 31 are as follows:

Year incurred Year of expiry 2020 2019
2016 2019 - 82,401,766
2017 2020 146,790,411 146,790,411
2018 2021 157,555,295 157,558,295
2019 2022 256,205,528 256,205,528
2020 2025 321,209,689 -

881,760,923 642,953,000

Expired {146,790,411) (82,401,766)
Total 734,970,512 560,551,234
At 30% tax rate 220,491,154 168,165,370

In compliance with the Tax Reform Act of 1997, the Company is required to pay the MCIT or the normal
income tax, whichever is higher. The details of the MCIT that can be carried forward on an annual basis
and credited against normal income tax payable within three (3) immediately succeeding vears from the

period when the MCIT was paid.

Year incurred Year of expiry 2020 2019
2016 2019 - 4,289,203
2019 2022 7,139,458 7,139,458
2020 2023 2,139,701 -
9,279,159 11,428,661
Expired - (4,289,203)
9,279,159 7,139,458

A reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate and the effective
income tax expense as shown in the profit or loss for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2020 2019
Income tax at the statutory income tax rate 404,900,230 925,297,279
Adjustments resulting from:
Unrecognized NOLCO and MCIT 98,502,608 -
Expired MCIT - 4,289,203
Other non-deductible expenses 1,909 835 917,953
Derecognition of fair value of equity investments at
FVOCI 1,429,397 465,000
Gain on fair value adjustment of financial assets at
FVTPL (300,046) (53,049)
interest income subjected to final tax rate (268,018) (1,159,100)
Share in net income from joint venture (565,660,066) (30,371,134)
Dividend income (433,542,155)  (534,466,185)
Effective income tax expense 16,971,787 364,919 967

Critical aceounting judgment - Income tax

A certain degree of judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes, as there are
certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the

ordinary course of business.



The Company recognizes liabilities for tax audit issues when it is probable. The liabilities are based on
estimates whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Further, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and
reduces them to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Event after reporting date
Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises Act (CREATE)

The Bicameral Conference Committee, under the 18th Congress of the Philippines, approved the
reconciled version of the House Bill No. 4157 and Senate Bill No.1357 or the CREATE. The Committee
report on CREATE was ratified by the Senate and House of Representatives on February 3, 2021. Among
the salient provisions of CREATE include changes to the Corporate Income Tax (CIT) as follows:

* Reduction of CIT rate to 20% applicable to domestic corporations with total net taxable income not
exceeding P5 million and with total assets not exceeding P10o million (excluding land on which the
business entity’s office, plant and equipment are situated);

Reduction of CIT rate to 25% shall be applicable to all other corporations subject to regular CIT; and

*  Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate shall also be amended to 1%, instead of 2%, for he period
beginning July 1, 2020 until June 30, 2023.

As at December 31, 2020, the CREATE bil is still pending ratification by both the Philippine Congress
and Senate, and consequently pending approval of the President of the Republic of the Philippines. As
such, the Company has assessed that the proposed tax law is not enacted or substantively enacted as at

December 31, 2020. For financial reporting purposes, the enactment of CREATE after the reporting date
is deemed non-adjusting subsequent event.

Had the reduced CIT rates been applied on the December 31, 2020 financial statermnents of the Company
the reduced income tax rate would have resulted 1n lower deferred tax liabilities, net, lower in income tax

expense, and higher net income. As at report date, an estimate of the financial effect of the CREATE law
cannot be made yet.
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In the normal course of business, the Company transacts with related parties. The following are the

significant transactions and outstanding balances with related parties as at and for the years ended
Decentber 31:

2020 2018
Qutstanding Outstanding
receivables receivables
Transactions (payahles) Transactions {payables) Temms and conditions
Subsidiaries

Rental income (a) 52,423,703 40,533,905 143,976,651 26,529,292 Balances fo be collected in cash
and are due generally within 60
days. These are non-interest
bearing and are not covered by
any security.

Management fees (b) 20,853,358 70,891,347 105,670,390 50,741,698 Balances fo be collected in cash

Administrative recharges by 278,153,265 213,018,943 188,789,761 88,465,011  and are due generally within 30

the Company days. These are non-interest

Dividend income 1,433,340,000 68,000,000 1,781,548,010 49,000,000 bearing and are not covered by
any security.

Advances (150,000,000} {1.720,000,000) 170,000,000 (1,570,000,000) Balances are to be settled in

Administrative recharges to 51,112,458 (353,332,634) 62,919,206  (327,086,687) cash and are generally due

the Company within 30 days. These balances

Rental expense (d) 4,714,888 (1,216,394) 4,610,159 (3.498,494) are non-interest bearing and not

covared by any guarantee.
Entities under common control

Rental income (a) 26,154,458 6,420,242 100,961,283 30,792,328 Balances to be collected in cash
and are due generally within 60
days. These are non-interest
bearing and are not covered by
any security.

Dividend income 11,797,500 16,939,500 - 5142500 Balances fo be collected in cash
and are due generally within 30
days from date of declaration.
These are non-interest bearing
and are not covered by any
security.

Advances (c) 842,076,000 1,986,263,554 - 1,144,187,554 Balances are to be collected in

Management fees (b) 21,631,894 53,047,161 19,683,264 2,978,436 cash and are generally due

Administrative recharges by 257,185,947 132,070,289 62,163,810 63,759,193  within 30 days. These balances

the Company are non-interest bearing and not
covered by any guarantee,

Administrative recharges to 174,792 (512,624) 3,974,481 (622,886) Balances are to be settled in

the Company cash and are generally due

Condominum dues () 476,332 - 1,286,796 - within 30 days. These balances
are
non-interest bearing and not
covered by any guarantee.

Retirement fund
Contributions - - 12,872 582 Refer to Note 18.
Key management personnel
Salaries and other shori-term 69,888,564 - 45 453 358 Salaries and wages are settled
employee benefits B in cash at the period incurred.
Other shoit-term benefits are
payable within the cumrent year.
There were no stock options or
cther long-{term benefits
provided in 2020 and 2019 nor
amounts due to/from key
management personnel as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019,
Post-employment benefits 4,677,699 - 4,723,941 - Refer to Note 18,




Significant agreements with related parties are as follows:
a) The Company has the following rental agreements with its subsidiaries and affiliate:

e Aportion of the Company’s land where the main wing of the mall is located is being leased to
SLPC for a period of 25 years from January 6, 1993. On September 19, 2017, the agreement was
renewed by both parties to another 5 years until January 6, 2023. Rental income is calculated at
10% of SLPC’s annual rental revenue from mall operations plus 50% of the carpark’s net income.

* OnJanuary 16, 2002, SPSI entered into an agreement with the Company and SLPC. Under the
agreement, SPSI is granted limited usufructuary rights over the parking spaces of the Company
and SLPC for a consideration equivalent to 95% of the SPSI’s gross revenue less direct and
indirect expenses relating to the Company’s parking facilities. The agreement is effective until
December 31, 2002 and shall be renewed automatically on a yearly basis.

» A portion of the Company's land is being leased by EDSA Shangri-La Hotel and Resort Ine.
(ESHRI), where the EDSA Shangri-La Manila Hotel (the Hotel) is located. The lease is for a
period of 25 years commencing on August 28, 1992 and renewable for another 25 years at the
option of ESHRI. On August 16, 2017, the agreement was renewed by ESHRI to another 25 years
until August 27, 2042. Rental revenue is based on a fixed percentage of the Hotel’s room, food
and beverage, dry goods and other service revenue.

b) The Company has management service agreement with its subsidiaries wherein the former shall
provide human resource administration services for shared employees and project costs. The
subsidiaries shall pay the Company management fees at actual cost-plus taxes (Note 17).

¢) The outstanding balance as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounting to P1,144,187,554 represents

cash advances made by Classic Elite Holdings Limited from the Company for working capital and
project development.

d) The Company leases its office space from SLPC for a period of three (3) years that ended on
May 17, 2019 and was extended for another three (3) years that will end on May 16, 2022. The

Company agrees to pay SLPC for a fixed monthly rental amounting to P472.77 per square meter with
an annual escalation of 5%.

e) The Company pays dues to The St. Francis Shangri-La Place Condominium Corporation for real
property tax, association dues and condominium dues for condominium units owned by the
Company in The St. Franeis Shangri-La Place.

There were no write-offs or provisions made in relation to related party transactions and balances as at
and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2010.

Note 21 - Provisions and contingencies

On July 14, 1993, a complaint was initially filed before the Regional Trial Court (RTC) - Pasig by the
principal contractor of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall against the Company and the Board for the recovery of
the balance of alleged unpaid construction work, compensatory and moral damages, legal fees and
litigation costs totaling about P122,000,000, exclusive of interest.

In 1998, the parties were directed by the RTC to undergo arbitration which resulted in a promulgation in
2007 of the Arbitral Tribunal Decision that awarded to the principal contractor the sum of P38,518,503,
net of the award to Company amounting to P8,387,484.

Both parties appealed this decision to the Court of Appeals (CA) in 2008. In a resolution issued in 2009,
the CA awarded to the principal contractor P24,497,556, unpaid progress billings based on the original
scope of work and denied the Company of its motion for partial reconsideration.



In 2009, both the Company and the Principal Contractor filed separate Petitions for Review in Certiorari
to the Supreme Court. The Company prayed for a reversal of the decision of the CA and for payment of
liquidated damages by the Principal Contractor. On the other hand, the Principal Contractor filed a
motion to modify the decision of the CA and to be awarded the full amount of their claim.

On January 10, 2020, the Company, through counsel, received a copy of the Supreme Court decision that
resolved both Petitions for Review. On January 24, 2020, the Company filed in the Supreme Court a
motion for partial reconsideration of said SC decision, which to this date has not been resolved.

The Company has other pending legal cases which are being contested by the Company and their legal
counsels. Management and the legal counsels believe that the final resolution of these cases will not have
a material effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

Critical accounting estimate - Provision

As at December 31, 2020, the Company recognized provision for a certain legal case. The estimate of the
probable costs for the resolution has been developed in consultation with outside legal counsel handling
the Company's defense in this matter. Disclosure of additional details beyond the present disclosures
may seriously prejudice the Company's position. Thus, as allowed by PAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, only general disclosures were provided.

Critical accounting judgment - Contingencies

The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimates of the probable costs for
the resolution of these claims have been developed in consultation with the outside legal counsel
handling the defense in these matters and are based upon analyses of potential reports. Based on
management’s assessment, these proceedings will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial

position and performance.

Note 22 - Lease commitments

(a) Company as a lessor

The Company entered into operating lease agreements with related parties covering the freehold land, a
building and its improvements. The Company also leases certain commercial areas at The St. Francis
Shangri-La Place to third parties. The lease agreements, where the Company is the lessor, provide for a
fixed monthly rental or a certain percentage of gross revenue.

Rental revenues for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Note 2020 2019
Percentage basis 20 78,578,251 244 937,934
Fixed monthly rental 4,558,515 4,992,268

83,136,766 249,930,202

Total future minimum lease collections under the non-cancellable operating lease with fixed monthly
rental as at December 31 are:

2020 2019

Within one (1) year 5,262,508 3,625,284
One to two (1 to 2) years 9,513,973 -

14,776,481 3,625,284

(20)



Critical accounting judgment - Operating lease commitments - Company as lessor

The Company owns parcels of land and a carpark building located in Mandaluyong City which are leased
out to its subsidiaries, an affiliate, and third parties. The Company has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains
all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.

(b) Company as a lessee

The Company leases its office space from SLPC and incurred rent expense amounting to P4,714,888 in
2020 (2019 - P4,610,159) (Note 20).

Total future minimum lease payments forth  non-cancellable operating lease as at December 31 are:

2020 2019

Within one (1) year 5,673,541 4,027,969
One to two (1 to 2) years 2,166,261 5,604,771
Two to three (2 to 3) years - 3,610,436
7,839,802 13,243,176

Critical accounting judgment - Low value leases

Payments associated with leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense
in the profit or loss. Management considered lease agreements with third parties as low value leases.

Note 23 - Net debt reconciliation

The net debt reconciliation as at December 31 is presented below:

Notes 2020 2019
Bank loans, January 1 13 4,486,666,667 3,300,000,000
Cash flows (253,333,333) 1,186,666,667
Bank loans, December 31 13 4,233,333,334 4,486,666,667
Accrued interest 12 11,781,241 17,798,369
Cash and cash equivalents 2 (132,031,110} (280,738,936)
Net debt 4 113,083,465 4,223,726,100

Movements in financing liabilities comprising the net debt are disclosed in the related notes to the
separate financial statements.

Note 24 - Financial risk man nt

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by
the Company’s management under policies approved by its Board of Directors. These policies cover
financing structure, foreign exchange and interest rate risk management, guarantees and credit support,
as well as treasury control framework. There are no changes in the Company’s risk management plans
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.



24.1.1 Market risk
{a) Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s exposure on currency risk is minimal and limited only to foreign currency denominated
cash in banks and cash equivalents. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates of these asset is not
expected to have a significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

The Company’s foreign currency denominated cash in banks and cash equivalents as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 and net foreign exchange gains/losses for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are disclosed in Note 2.

(b} Price risk

The Company’s exposure to price risk is minimal and limited only to financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 3) and FVOCI (Note 9) presented in the statement of financial position. Changes in
market prices of these financial assets are not expected to have a significant impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Company.

{¢) Cashflow and fair value interest risk

Interest rate risk refers to risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments include long-term loan
(Note 13). These financial instruments are not exposed to fair value interest rate risk as these are carried
at amortized cost. Likewise, these instruments are not exposed to variability in cash flows as these carry
fixed interest rate, to be repriced every 30 to 180 days as agreed by the parties.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
financial instruments at the end of each reporting period. The sensitivity rate in the analysis is the same rate

used in reporting 1 risk internally to key management personnel and represents the Company’s
best estimate the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

At December 31, 2020, if interest rates on bank loans had been 100 basis points lower or higher with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been higher by/lower by P4,619,993
(2019 - higher by/lowe by P10,499,376), mainly as a result of higher/lower 1nterest expense on floating-
rate bank loans. Management uses 100 basis points as threshold in assessing the potential impact of
interest 1 the operations.

24.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets
amortized cost. The Company manages the credit risk arising from these financial assets as follows:

{a} Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
The Company only maintains banking relationships with top and reputable universal and commercial
banks in the country. Universal and commercial banks represent the largest single group, resource-wise,

of financial institutions in the Philippines.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of PFRS g, the
impairment loss has been assessed to be immaterial.



(b) Trade and other receivables, net (Note 4)

The Company’s rental income is concentrated mainly to its related parties and is subject to normal credit
terms. Credit nsk is minimized since the related parties are paying on normal credit terms and no
history of default. The Company also enter into lease agreements with recognized and creditworthy third
parties. Itis the policy of the Company that all customers who trade on credit terms are subjected to
credit verification procedures and are required to put up security deposits and pay advance rentals, if
necessary. The Company does not offer credit terms to third parties without the specific approval of
management. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis with the result that
the exposure of the Company to bad debts is not significant.

The Company applies the PFRS g simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime e  ected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

All of the Company’s trade receivables had been assessed to be fully performing as of reporting
date. Management has determined based on its historical loss experience that the expected credit loss on
these fully performing trade receivables is not material for financial reporting purposes.

Allowance for impairment

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each class of
receivables presented above. There were no trade and other receivables pledged as collaterals as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

(c) Other financial assets at amortized cost

The Company’s maximum credit risk exposures arising from other financial assets at amortized costs are
shown below:

Notes 2020 2019
Receivables from related parties 4 2,540,230,794 14 274,392
Advances to officers and employees 4 1,380,011 1,237,868
Iinterest receivable 4 3,364 210,724
Others 4 4,508,258 7,460,277
Refundable deposits 11 966,424 986,424
Total 2,547,088,851 1,414,169,685
Allowance for impairment of other receivables 4 (2,132,043) (2,132,043)

2,544,956,808 1412037642

Critical accounting estimate - Impairment of other financial assets at amortized cost

The loss allowance for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rafes.

Substantially all other financial assets at amortized cost as disclosed above are performing. Performing
accounts are those whose credit risk is in line with original expectations of the Company. The 12-month
ECL has been used as a basis for provisioning. The management has assessed that the related ECL has
been deemed insignificant for financial reporting purposes.

24.1.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Company maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents m order to fund its operations. The
Company menitors its cash flows and carefully matches the cash receipts from its condomimum sales and
leasing operations agamst cash requirements for its operations. The Company utihizes its borrowing
capacity, if necessary, to further bolster 1ts cash reserves.



The table below analyzes the Company’s finaneial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in

the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

The following table shows the Company’s financial instruments as at December 31 based on its

contractual maturity profile:

2020 2019
Financial liabilities maturing within one year
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 2,213,691,453 2,040,736,863
Current portion of bank loans,
including future interest payable 4,398,256,469 3,698,587,830
Dividends payable 52,609,087 47,544 516
6,664,657,009 5,786,869,218
Financial liabilities maturing beyond one year
Long-term bank loans, net of current portion,
including future interest payable - 953,377,186
Deposits from tenants 1,269,161 1,269 161
1,269,161 054,646,347

6,665,826,170

6,741,515,565

*Excluding payable to governmeni agencies and outpui value added tax

Note 25 - Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these separate financial statements are set

out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

25.1 Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS in general includes all applicable PFRS,
Philippines Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations
Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council (FRSC) and adopted by SEC.

The separate financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL, FVOCI and investment properties.

(34)



The preparation of separate financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or

complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as
follows:

Determination of fair values of investment properties (Note 8)
Useful lives of property and equipment (Note 10)
Determining retirement benefit obligation (Note 18)
Assessing control over subsidiaries (Note 7)

Recoverability of investment and advances (Note 7)

¢ Distinction between properties held for sale, investment properties, and property and equipment
(Note 8)

» Impairment of non-financial assets {Note 10)

Provision {(Note 21)

Contingencies (Noie 21)

Operating lease commitments - Company as lessor (Note 22)
Low value leases (Note 22)

¢ Income tax (Note 19)

The Company has also prepared consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS for the
Parent company and its Subsidiaries (the “Group”). In the consolidated financial statements,
subsidiary undertakings - which are those companies in which the Group, directly or indirectly, has
an interest of more than half of the voting rights or otherwise has power to exercise control over the
operations - have been fully consolidated.

Users of these separate financial statements should read them together with the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as at and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 in order to obtain full
information on the financial position, results of operations and changes in financial position of the

Company as a whole. The consolidated financial statements of the Group can be obtained from SEC
or from the Parent’s website: www.shangproperties.com.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(a) New amendments adopted by the Company
The Company has adopted certain amendments for the first-time effective January 1, 2020:

Definition of Material - Amendments to PAS 1 and PAS 8
Definition of a Business - Amendments to PFRS 3

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Amendments to PFRS 7, PFRS g and PAS 39
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
Covid-19-related Rent Concessions — Amendments to PFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have material impact on the amounts recognized in the current
and prior periods and is not expected to significantly impact future periods.

Further, on December 15, 2020, SEC issued Memorandum Circular No. 34, Series of 2020 providing
relief to the real estate industry by deferring the application of the provisions of the PIC Q&A 2018-12
with respect to the accounting for significant financing component, the exclusion of land in the
caleulation of PoC and IFRIC Agenda Decision on Over Time Transfers of Constructed Goods under

PAS 23, Borrowing Cost, for another period of three years or until 2023. The Company did not avail any
of the reliefs provided by the memorandum.
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(b) New standards and interpretations effective after December 31, 2020 not yet adopted by the
Company

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for
December 31, 2020 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company. These standards
are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.

25.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks that earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

25.3 Finanecial instruments

Financial assets

{a) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value either through other comprehensive income (*OCI”)
or through profit or loss, and

» those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
Investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business
model for managing those assets changes.

(b) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are direetly attributable to the acquisition of the

financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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(c) Subsequent measurement
(i) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

» Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other
income (expense) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
in other general and administrative expenses in the separate statement of total comprehensive
income.

The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost consist of cash and cash equivalents (Note 2), trade
and other receivables (Note 4) and refundable deposits classified under other non-current assets
(Note 11) in the separate statement of finaneial position.

» FVOCL: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCIL. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest incorne and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in other
income (expense). Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in miscellaneous
under other income (expense), and impairment expenses are presented in other general and
administrative expenses in the separate statement of total comprehensive income.

The Company does not have debt instruments at FVOCI as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

¢ FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in profit or
loss and presented within other income (expense), in the period in which it arises.

The Company does not have debt instruments at FVTPL as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
(ii) Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the Company’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company’s policy is to designate
equity investments as FVOCI when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate
investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when
representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income
when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.
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At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s financial assets measured at FVOCI represent unquoted
shares of stock of related parties and quoted investments in various golf club shares and stocks. These
are classified in the separate statement of financial position (Note 9).

(d) Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the PFRS g simplified approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of counterparties over a period of 36 months
before January 1, 2018 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Company has assessed that the
impact of forward-looking information on the loss rates applied is immaterial.

Impairment losses on receivables are presented in other general and administrative expense in the
separate statement of total comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries are credited to miscellaneous
income.

Financial liabilities

{a) Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories: financial liabilities at fair value at FVTPL

(including financial liabilities held for trading and those that designated at fair value); and financial
liabilities at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities that are not classified at FVTPL fall into this category and are measured at amortized
cost.

The Company’s long-term loan (Note 13) and accounts payable and other current liabilities (excluding
payable to government agencies and output value added tax) (Note 12} are classified under financial
liabilities at amortized cost.

(b) Initial recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date (the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset).

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction

costs. Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value, and
transaction costs are recognized as expense in profit or loss.

The Company recognizes a financial liability in the statement of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

Derecognition of financial instrument
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have

expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.
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Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation is discharged or is cancelled or has expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of finaneial instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.
There are no offsetting arrangements as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

25.4 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables arising from regular sales with credit term of 30 to 60 days and other receivables are
recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at cost using the effective interest methed,
less any provision for impairment.

The Company applies the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognized within operating expenses in the statement of total comprehensive income. When a
receivable remains uncollectible after the Company has exerted all legal remedies, it is written-off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are

credited against other general and administrative expenses in the statement of total comprehensive
income,

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 month before
January 1, 2018 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

Refer to Note 25.3 for other relevant accounting policies on trade and other receivables.
25.5 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are properties heing constructed or acquired for sale in the ordinary course of
business, rather than for rental or capital appreciation, and are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value (NRV). NRYV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based
on market prices at the reporting date, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs to sell.

Cost of condominium units held for sale represent accumulated costs of the unsold units of the
completed projects. Cost includes those directly attributable to the construction of the projects such as
cost of land, direct materials, borrowing costs, professional and consultancy fees, and project
management costs, which are allocated 1o the unsold units.

Properties held for sale are derecognized when they are sold or there are no future benefits to the

Company. The carrying amount of those properties held for sale is recognized as an expense, reported as
cost and expenses in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.
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25.6 Prepayments and other assets

Prepayments are expenses paid in cash and recorded as assets before they are used or consumed, as the
service or benefit will be received in the future. Prepayments expire and are recognized as expense either
with the passage of time or through use or consumption.

Creditable withholding taxes are carried at face amount or at nominal amount. Creditable withholding
taxes are included in current assets, except when these are expected to be utilized more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period, in which case these are classified as non-current assets.
The Company’s creditable withholding taxes are part of the prepaid taxes under prepaid expenses and
other current assets in the balance sheet. Creditable withholding taxes are derecognized when utilized or
applied against income tax due.

Other current assets include assets that are realized as part of the normal operating cycle and are
expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period.

Restricted fund represents cash deposit with a third party for a purchase of a property.

Restricted fund is derecognized upon full payment to the third party. The Company then determines
whether the property is to be classified as property held for sale, an investment property, or property and
equipment depending on the usage of the property,

25.7 Investments and advances
{a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Company has control.

The Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company.,
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Investment in a subsidiary in the separate financial statements are accounted for using the cost method
in accordance with PAS 27 (Amended), Separate Financial Statements. Under this method, income from
investment is recognized in profit or loss only to the extent that the investor receives distributions from
accumulated profits of the investee arising after the acquisition date. Distributions received in excess of

such profits are regarded as a recovery of investment and are recognized as reduction of the cost of the
investment.

The Company recognizes dividend income from investments in profit or loss when its right to receive
dividends has been established.

When the Company ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investment in associate is
initially recognized at cost. It is subsequently carried in the separate financial statements at cost, less
allowance for impairment losses.
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Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognized at
cost in the statement of financial position.

Under the equity method of accounting, the interests in joint ventures are initially recognized at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the group’s share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint
ventures are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Investment in associates and joint ventures are derecognized upon disposal. Gains and losses on

disposals of these investments are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are included in profit or loss.

Impairment of investment is presented in Note 25.10.
(c) Deposits for future share subscriptions

Deposits for future share subscriptions represents amounts received from subsidiaries which will be
settled by way of issuance of the Company’s own shares at a future date. These are recognized upon
receipt of cash and measured at face value or nominal amount.

Deposit for future share subscription is derecognized once share has been issued,
Refer to Note 25.3 for relevant accounting policies on advances to subsidiaries and associate.

25.8 Investment properties

Investment property is defined as property held by the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for: (a) use in the production of supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the common course of business.

The Company’s investment properties are held for capital appreciation and is not occupied by the
Company. The Company has adopted the fair value model for its investment property (Note 8).

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value as determined by an independent
firm of appraisers. Fair value is based on direct income capitalization approach and market comparison
approach, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Company uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by the independent appraiser. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property or for which the market has become less active continues to be measured at
fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are of recognized in the statement of total comprehensive income within gain/loss
on fair value adjustment of investment properties.

An investment property is derecognized from the statement of financial position on disposal or when the

investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal.
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Removal of an item within investment property is triggered by a change in use, by sale or disposal. If an
investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property and equipment (Note 25.9)
and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Gain or loss
arising from disposal is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset. Gain or loss on disposal is recognized in profit or loss in the period of the disposal.

Ed

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property is classified as
investment property.

Impairment of investment properties is presented in Note 25.10.
25.9 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and amortization, and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items, which comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of total comprehensive income within other general and administrative
expenses during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives (in years), as follows:

25 or lease term,

Building and leasehold improvements whichever is shorter
Transportation equipment 3to 5
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 2105

Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

The assets’ residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed periodically, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 25.10).

The carrying amount of an item of property and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal at which time the cost and related accumulated
depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized under other income or expense in the statement of total
comprehensive income.

Depreciation or amortization ceases at the earlier of the date when the asset is classified as either
investment property or property held for sale and the date the asset is derecognized.

Fully depreciated and amortized property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no
longer in use, and no further depreciation and amortization are charged to the statement of total
comprehensive income.
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25.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Asset that has an indefinite useful life such as investment in a subsidiaries and assoclates not
subject to amortization is evaluated regularly for impairment. Assets that have definite useful lives
and are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately idenfifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that are previously impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date. Subsequent reversals are credited to miscellaneous income in the statement of total
comprehensive income.

The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in subsidiaries and associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the subsidiaries and
associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in profit or loss. An allowance is set-up for
any substantial and presumably permanent decline in value of investments.

25.11 Accountis payable and other current liabilities

Accounts payabie and other current liabilities are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable and other current
liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, these are presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable and other current liabilities are measured at the original invoice amount as the effect of
discounting is immaterial,

Relevant accounting policies for classification, recognition, measurement and derecognition of accounts
payable and other current liabilities are presented in Note 25.3.

25.12 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any

non- cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized and charged to
profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

25.13 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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The fair value of a non-financial asset is measured based on its highest and best use. The asset’s current
use is presumed to be its highest and best use.

The fair value of financial and non-financial liabilities takes into account non-performance risk, which is
the risk that the entity will not fulfill an obligation.

The Company classifies its fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the

significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:

* quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

* inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2); and

* inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

The appropriate level is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry Company, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in Leve] 1. The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and listed financial assets
at FVOCI financial assets are classified under Level 1 category.

The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the asset
or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3. The Company’s unlisted financial assets at
FVOCI financial assets are included in Level 3,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and applies the
technique consistently. Commonly used valuation techniques are as follows:

« Market approach - A valuation technique that uses prices and other relevant information generated
by market transactions involving identical or comparable (i.e., similar) assets, liabilities or a group of
assets and liabilities, such as a business,

» Income approach - Valuation techniques that convert future amounts (e.g., cash flows or income and
expenses) to a single current (i.e., discounted) amount. The fair value measurement is determined
on the basis of the value indicated by current market expectations about those future amounts.

» Cost approach - A valuation technique that reflects the amount that would be required currently to
replace the service capacity of an asset (often referred to as current replacement cost).

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

* Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

e The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves.

* The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at
the reporting date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

o  Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.
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The investment properties of the Company are classified under Level 2 and 3 category.
25.14 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense comprises current and deferred income taxes. Tax is recognized in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date where the Company operates and generates taxable income, Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the separate financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, NOLCO) and unused
tax credits (MCIT) to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilized. The Company
reassesses at each reporting date the need to recognize a previously unrecognized deferred income tax
asset. Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized in full for all taxable temporary differences, except to the
extent that the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally, the Company is unable to
control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place
that gives the Company the ability to control the reversal of the temporary difference not recognized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are derecognized when relevant temporary differences have
been realized and settled, respectively. The Company reassesses at each reporting the need to recognize
previously unrecognized deferred income tax asset.

25.15 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when: the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.
Provisions are derecognized when the obligation is paid, cancelled or has expired.
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Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even

if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest
EXDETSE,

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probabie that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, the reversal is recognized in the statement of total comprehensive income within the same line
item in which the original provision was charged.

25.16 Equity

(a) Share capital

Share capital consists of common shares, which are stated at par value, that are classified as equity.

Share premium is recognized for the excess proceeds and subscriptions over the par value of the shares
issued.

{b) Treasury shares

Where any member of the Company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently
sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs
and the related income tax effects, is included in equity.

(¢) Retained earnings

Retained earnings includes current and prior years' results of operations, net of transactions with
shareholders and dividends declared, if any.

(d) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to Company’s shareholder is recognized as a liability in its separate financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors.

25.17 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner as basic earnings per share, however, profit
attributable to common shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential common shares,
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.18 Employee benefits
(a) Retirement benefits

The Company maintains a defined benefif retirement plan determined by periodic actuarial calculations.
This defined benefit retirement plan is funded through payments to a trustee-administered fund and
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. A defined benefit plan is a retirement plan that defines an
amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit retirement
plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. In cases when the amount determined results in a surplus (being an excess of the
fair value of the plan assets over the present value of the defined benefit obligation), the Company
measures the resulting asset at the lower of: (a) such amount determined; and (b) the present value of
any economic benefits available to the Company in the form of refunds or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest of government bonds
converted into zero coupon rates that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity which approximate the terms of the related retirement liability.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustm s and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits,
The Company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Company
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the
case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees e ected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
the reporting date are discounted to present value,

(c} Short-term employee benefits

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for short-term employee benefits which include
salaries, paid sick and vacation leaves and bonuses. Bonuses are based on a formula that takes into
consideration the resulting qualified profits. The Company recognizes a provision when contractually
obliged or when there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Laabilities for employee benefits are derecognized when the obligation is settled, cancelled or has expired.
25.19 Revenue and expense recognition

The Company assesses whether it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company when
the contract price is collectible. Collectability of the contract price is demonstrated by the buyer’s
commitment to pay, which is supported by the buyer’s initial and continuous investments that motivates
the buyer to honor its obligation. Collectability is also assessed by considering factors such as collections
and credit standing of the buyer.



Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company has
concluded that it is acting as principal in its revenue arrangements.

{(a) Rental income

Rental income from operating leases (the Company is the lessor) is recognized as income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term or based on a certain percentage of gross revenue of the lessees,
whichever is applicable. When the Company provides incentives to its lessees, the cost of incentives are
recognized over the lease term, on a straight-line basis, as a reduction of rental income.

When the revenue recognition criteria are not met, cash received from lessees are recognized as advance
rental, until the conditions for recognizing rental income are met.

(b) Sale of condominium units and cost of condominium units sold

Revenue from condominium sales are recognized in full (i.e., point in time) once the Company has
assessed that the contract meets all criteria for revenue recognition.

Cost of condominium units sold is recognized simultaneously with revenue. Cost of condominium units
sold pertains only to the cost of the property as all other expenses are shouldered by the buyer.

(c) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss for all interest-bearing financial instruments
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the finanecial instrument or when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

Once a financial asset or a Company of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognized when earned, net of final tax.
(d} Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
(e} Miscellaneous income

Miscellaneous income is recognized when earned.

(f) Cost and expenses

Cost and expenses are recognized when these are incurred.
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25.20 Leases
(a) Company is the lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease or based on a certain percentage of gross revenue of the lessees, whichever is applicable. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Assets under these
arrangements are classified as investment property in the statement of financial position (Note 25.8).

(b Company is the lessee

The Company has adopted PFRS 16 Leases using the modified retrospective approach from
January 1, 201¢, as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard (Note 25.1).

Aside from exemptions in the standard for short-term and low-value leases which are recognized as
operating leases under the provisions of PAS 17, lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. Payments for leases of properties and office equipment are discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

25.21 Foreign currency transactions and translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the separate financial statements of the Company are measured using the curreney of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The separate

financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the functional and presentation currency
of the Company.

{b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Philippine Peso using the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liahilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

25.22 Related party relationships and transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control the other party, directly or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between and/or among entities
which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between and/or among the reporting
enterprises and their key management personnel, directors, or its shareholder. In considering each
possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not
merely the legal form.
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25.23 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the separate financial statements. These are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economie benefits is remote. Contingent assets are
not recognized in the separate financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economie benefits is
probable.

25.24 Events after the reporting period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the reporting
date (adjusting events) are reflected in the separate financial statements. Post year-end events that are

not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the separate financial statements when material.

Note 26 - Supplementary information required by Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

The following information required by Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 is presented for purposes of
filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the basic separate financial statements.

(a) Output value-added tax (VAT)

The Company is a VAT-registered company with VAT output declaration of P21,687,405 for the year
based on the Vatable sales amounting to P180,728,375.

The Vatable sales shown above is based on gross receipts of the Company following the provisions of
Sec. 4.106-3 of RR No. 14~2005 (also known as the Consolidated Value-Added Tax Regulations of 2005),
Sale of Real Properties, while the gross revenue in the statements of comprehensive income is measured
in aceordance with the Company’s accounting policy for revenue recognition.

(b) Input VAT

Movements in input VAT for the year ended December 31, 2020 follow:

Beginning balance 16,266,524
Current year's purchases:
Capital goods subject to amortization 31,433,642
Purchases other than capital goods
tnput tax applied against output tax (21,687 ,405)
Total input VAT 26,012,761

{c) Documentary stamp tax

Documentary stamp taxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to P18,180,525 which
mainly pertain to taxes on dividends and cash advances.

(d) All other local and national taxes

All other local and national taxes acerued and paid for the year ended December 31, 2020 consist of:

Real property tax 12,079,015
Transfer tax 2,466,358
Mayor's permit 2,180,535
Registration fee 831,595
Community tax 10,500
BIR registration 500
Others 248,839

17,817,342

(50)



The local and national taxes are presented as part of taxes and licenses in the statement of total

comprehenstve income,
(e} Withholding taxes

The amount of withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year amounted to:

Paid Accrued Total
Creditable withholding tax 11,913,803
Withholding tax on compensation 76,258,981 4,829,055 81,088,036
Expanded withholding tax 14,334,221 1,287,779 15,592,000
Final withholding taxes 60,862,443 445,349 61,307,792
Fringe benefit tax 2,641,095 1,348,988 3,990,083

(f) Tax assessments and cases

There are no outstanding tax assessments and cases under preliminary investigation, litigation and/or

prosecution in courts or bodies outside the BIR as at December 31, 2020.



Shang Properties, Inc.

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings for Dividend Declaration
As at December 31, 2020
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Annex 68-C

Unappropriated Retained Earnings beginning

Fair value adjustment of investment properties in prior years,

net of tax
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted, beginning
Net income based on the face of audited financial statements 1,332,695,646

Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax

Equity in net income of associate/joint venture (129,873,486)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those

attributable to cash and cash equivalents) -
Unrealized actuarial gain -
Fair value adjustment (M2M gains) 700,108
Fair value adjustment of Investment property resulting to gain -
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP — gain -
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained

earnings as a resuit of certain transactions accounted

under the PFRS -

Add: Non-actual losses
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax) -
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP — loss -
l.oss on fair value adjustment of investment property

17,460,971,793

(9,868,058,867)

(after tax) -
Net income actually earned during the period 1,203,522,268
Add {Less):
Realized remeasurement loss during the year -
Dividends declarations during the year (745,240,118)

Appropriations of retained earnings
Reversal of appropriateness -
Other reserves from restatement due to PAS19 Revised -
Treasury shares (6,850,064)
TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

7,592,912,926

1,203,522,268

(752,090,182)

8,044,345,012
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA Greenbills
Mandaluyong City

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of SHANG PROPERTIES INC. is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 20189, in accordance
with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consclidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud of error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements

including the schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders
or members,

Isla Lipana and Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders for the
period December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, have audited
the consolidated financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in their reports to the stockholders, have expressed their
opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit,
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Independent Auditor’s Report BUREAU OF INTER ALREV UE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of LAR  TAXPAVERS ASSISTANCE DIVISION
Slgang Properties, Inc, and Subsidiaries

Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall ¢

EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard Date TSIS

Mandaluyong City

Our Opinion ARAGON

In our opinion, the accompanying consclidated financial statements present fairly, 1n all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Shang Properties, Ine. (the “Parent Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and e consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), as
modified by the application of the financial reporting reliefs issned and approved by the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC), as described in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise:

the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020 and 2019;
the consolidated statements of total comprehensive income for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2020;

 the consolidated statements of changes in equity for each of the three years 1n the period ended
December 31, 2020;

* the consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020; and

+ the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Standards on Auditing (PSA). Ou
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have

fulfilled our other ethieal responsibilities 1n accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics.

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 8845 2728, F: +63 (2) 8845 2806, www,pwc,com/ph

Isle: Lipana & Co. Is the Phiippine member fim of the PWC network, PwC refers to the Phidppine member firm, and may somelimas refer 1o the PwC network, Each
member firm Is a separaie legal entity. Plaasa sas wwav.pwe.comistructure for further details.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Page s

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the basis of
preparation of the financial statements. The financial statements as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2020 have been prepared in accordance with PFRS, as modified by the application of
the financial reporting reliefs issued and approved by the SEC in response to the COVID-19
pandemic. The details of the financial reporting reliefs availed by the Group and the impact on the

consolidated financial statements are discussed in detail in Note 31. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where
management made subjective judgments; for example, in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently
uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including among other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of
the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key andit matters identified in our audit are summarized as follows:

¢ Valuation of investment properties; and
Revenue recognition on condominium sales based on percentage of completion (PoC).

BUREAU OF INTER AL REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
TAXPAYERS ASSISTANCE DIVISION

Date TSIS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiares
Page 3

Key Audit Matters

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matters

a) Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements for the details of the investment
properties and discussion on eritical
accounting estimates and assumptions.

As at December 31, 2020, total investment
properties, carried at fair value, amounts to
P34.9 billion which accounts for about 55%
of the total consolidated assets of the Group.
The determination of fair values by an
external appraiser involves significant
estimation using assumptions such as
property prices for similar market listing in
the area, occupan  rate, rental rate and
discount rate. A fair value assessment is
performed regularly based on the
requirements of PFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, and Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) 40, Investment Property.

£ RMALREVENU:
tl. -~

’ LAAUE(?AX:'AY S ERVICE
ERGAS 1 ANCEDIMIS!

TS5

ARAGON

We have addressed the matter by obtaining the latest
appraisal report. We have assessed the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology used as
well as the reasonableness of the significant inputs
and assumptions used in the fair valuation. In
particular, comfort over the reliability of the
appraiser reports was obtained through independent
verification of significant fair value assumptions and
inputs specifically:

» similar market listing in the area by comparing to
records of recent sales and offerings of similar
land;

¢ occupancy rate by agreeing to management’s
records and historical actual information;

e expense-revenue ratio by comparing to the
historical experience of the Group’s leasing
operations;

s rental rate by comparing to prevailing market
rents on leasing transactions of comparable
properties; and

e discount rate by comparing to published market
yields.

‘We have also assessed the reasonableness of these
assumptions given the current market and economie
conditions.

We have evaluated competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent appraiser engaged by
the Group by reviewing its profile, licenses and client
portfolio.

‘We have also verified the appropriateness and
sufficiency of the disclosures in accordance with
PEFRS 13 and PAS 40.

We have concluded that the valuation methodology
used by the Group is appropriate and the significant
inputs and assumptions used in the valuation are
reasonable. We did not note any significant issues in
the evaluation of the work of the independent

appraiser and of the appropriateness and sufficiency
of the disclosures.
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Key Audit Matters

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matters

b) Revenue recognition on condominium sales
based on PoC as a measure of progress

Refer to Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements for the discussion on eritical
accounting estimates and assumptions.

The revenue arising from condominium sales for
the year ended December 31, 2020 amounts to
P3.01 billion which aceounts for about 48% of
the consolidated total revenues. Tt is therefore,
material to the consclidated financial
statements,

Revenue from sale of condominium is recognized
over time using the output method in accordance
with the guidance set in PFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers, and Philippine
Interpretations Commitiee Questions and
Answers (PIC Q&A) 2016-04. Under the output
method, revenue is calculated with reference to
the PoC of the project. In the case of the Group,
PoCis determined based on the actual physical

of the project. Hence, revenue
recognition on condominium sales require
significant judgment and estimation.

addressed the matter by understanding
the process employed by the Group in estimating
the actual physical completion of the
condominium project as performed by
independent quantity surveyors. We have
evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent quantity surveyors
engaged by the Group by reviewing their profile,
professional licenses and client portfolo.

We have examined the detailed accomplishment
reports that provide information and analysis
about the status of ongoing projects. We have
also performed interviews with project
engineers. Furthermore, as part of our analytical
procedures, we compared PoC reported by
surveyors with PoC derived based on total actual
costs incurred-to-date in relation to the total
estimated project cost. We inspected relevant
contracts, confractors’ billings, invoices, and
other supporting documents to verify the
reasonableness of the recorded actual costs.

We have cancluded that revenues from
condominium sales are appropriately recorded
in accordance with the related standards. We did
not note any significant issues in evaiuating the
work of the independent quantity surveyors,
examining detailed accomplishment reports,
interviews with project engineers, analytical
procedures and inspection of supporting
documents,
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A
and Annual Report, but do not include the consolidated financial staternents and our auditor’s
report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, as modified by the application of the financial reporting
reliefs issued and approved by the SEC, as described in Note 31 to the financial statements, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of

consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
ability of each entity within the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
‘'ssue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance 1s a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of t olidated financial
statements. BUREAL 6% B lhdf‘\
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Iden and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going coneem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of each entity within the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause an entity within the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in accordance with PFRS, as modified by the

application of the financial reporting reliefs issued and approved by the SEC, as described in
Note 31 the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communieated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Imelda Ronnie de Guzman-Castro,

Isla Lipana & Co.

Jéelda Ronnie de Guzman-Castro

Partner
CPA Cert. No. 89352
P.T.R. No. 0011287; issued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC AN. (individual) as general auditors 1769-A, Category A; until September 2, 2022
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A;
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.LLN. 152-015-095
BIR A.N. 08-000745-44-2018; issued on October 19, 2018; effective until October 18, 2021
BOA/PRCReg No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
March 25, 2021
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Statements Required by Rule 68
Securities Regulation Code (SRC)

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall
EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard

Mandaluyong City

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shang Properties, Ine, and Subsidiaries as at
and for the year ended December 31, 2020, on which we have rendered the attached report dated
March 25, 2021. The supplementary information shown in the Reconciliation of Retained Earnings
Available for Dividend Declaration, Map of the Group of Companies within which the Reporting
Entity Belongs, effective as at December 31, 2020, as additional components required by Part I,
Section 5 of Rule 68 of the SRC, and Schedules A, B, C, D, E, F and G, as required by Part II, Section 6
of Rule 68 of the SRC, are presented for purposes of filing with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary
information is the responsibility of management and have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic consohdated financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary
information has been prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the SRC.

Isla Lipana & Co.

Hnoie £, Gt

Imélda Ronnie de Guzman-Castro
Partner
CPA Cert. No. 89352
P.T.R. No. 0011287; issued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1769-A, Category A; effective until September 2, 2022
SEC AN. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A;
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.L.N. 152-015-005
BIR A.N. 08-000745-44-2018; issued on October 19, 2018; effective until October 18, 2021
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
March 25, 2021

- - -
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Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 8845 2728, F: +63 (2) 8845 2806, www.pwe.com/ph

Isla Lipana & Ce. is the Philipping member firm of the PwC network. PwC refers to the Philippine member firm, and may sometimes rafer to the PwC natwork. Each
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Statements Required by Rule 68
Securities Regulation Code (SRC

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall
EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard

Mandaiuyong City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Shang Properties, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Group) as at December 31, 2020 and
2019 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 25, 2021. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary Schedule on
Financial Soundness Indicators, including their definitions, formulas, calculation, and their
appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are the responsibility of the Group’s
management. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating performance
defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures presented by other compames. This schedule is presented for the purpose of
complying with the Revised SRC Rule 68 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and is
not a required part of the basic consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS.
The components of these financial soundness indicators have been traced to the Group’s consolidated
financial staternents as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2020 and no material exceptions were noted.

Isla & Co.

A £ Qoton,

Imelda Ronnie de Guzman-Castro
Partner
CPA Cert. No. 89352
P.T.R. No. 0011287; issued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1769-A, Category A; effective until September 2, 2022
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A,
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.I.N 152-015-095
BIR AN 08-000745-44-2018; issued on October 19, 018; effective until October 18, 2021
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
March 25, 2021

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T. +63 (2} 8845 2728, F: +63 (2) 8845 2806, www.pwe.com/ph
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Shang Properties, Inc, and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2020 and 2019
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Total equity

Total liabillties and equity

Notes
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,548,970,914 2,640,088,800
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 33,626,210 36,278,844
Trade and other receivables, net &  4,996,338,314 5,219,296,083
Properties held for sale 8  3,413,065216 2,876,245 361
Prepaid taxes and other current assets 7 1,663214,222 1,314,018,515
Total current assels 11,656,214,876 12,085,927,703
Non-current assets
Investments in and advances to associates and a joint venture 8 2317911271 2,121,615473
Investment properties 10 34913873065 32,803,376,768
Real estate development projects 10 - 1,487,613,661
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, net 11 797,568,496 803,668,496
Property and equiprment, net 12 11,684,592,560 12,811,489,580
Goodwill 13 269,870,864 269,870,864
Deferred income tax assets, net 25 465,150,772 22 1,785
Other non-current assets 14 797 64
Total non-current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilitles
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 15 5,683,894,606 6,169,431,637
Current portion of:
Installment payable 16 142,751,080 443,917 972
Barnk laans 16 4,283,333,333 3,553,333,333
Deposits from tenants 17 614,727,181 391,914,057
Deferred lease income 17 41,298,111 45 303,980
Income tax payable 25 124,336,401 250,763,007
Dividends payable 19 74,031,392 47,544 516
Total current liabilities 10,964.472,104  10,902,208,502
Non-current llabllitles
Accrued employee benefits 24 89,798,059 55,145,025
Bank loans, net of current portion 16 1,596,172,131 2,374,627,758
Deferred income tax liabilities, net 25  B,018,041,563 7,865,210,146
Advance rentals, net of current portion 29 232,961,550 112,000,606
Deposits from tenants, net of current portion 17 540,045,750 725,830,874
Deferred lease income, et of current portion 17 54,099,337 47 351,275
Total non-current liabilities 10,531,118 ¢ 84
Total liabilities 21,495,590,
Equity
Share capital 18  4,764,058982 4,764,058 ,982
Share premium 18 834,439,607 834,439,607
Treasury shares 18 (6,850,084) (6,850,064)
Equity reserves 9 (141,132,606) (141,132,6086)
Other comprehensive income 11,24 219,550,748 236,182,784
Retained earnings 18 30,053,959 054
Totai equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 35,724,025,721
Non-controliing interests g 5 341446

The notes on pages 1to 74 are iEtEginMg FiheReehhsuti et iklancial statements.
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Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Total Comprehensive Income
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020

(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2020 2019 _2018
Revenues
Condominium sales 3,009,946,505  4,428,329.649  4,991,248,279
Rental and cinema 10 2,128,780,05%  3,353,266,040  3,017,331,251
Hotel operation 1,081,762,155  3,580,220,504  3,171,907.725
6,220488,711  11,361,826,193  11,180,487,255
Cost of sales and services
Condeminium sales 1,685,000,495 2,696,938,381  3,000,561,223
Rental and cinema 100,248,382 169,393,067 246,411,337
Hotel operation 1,891,378,118 3212676342  3.023,783,595
20 3,636,626 995 6,079,007,790 6,270,756,155
Gross profit 2,583,861.716 5282818403  4.909,731,100
Operating expenses
Staff costs 21 530,048,537 476,405,566 438,271,316
Taxes and licenses 182,712,177 209,219,439 203,394,325
Depreciation and amortization 12 38,416,213 33,625,702 23,032,736
Insurance 7,145,262 17 3351421
Other operating expenses 22 740,367,083
e (charges)
Interest income 23 382,943,112 217,586,055 190,828,895
Foreign exchange (losses) gains, net 3 (3,729,088) (7,757,080) 24,186,733
Gain on fair value adjustment of investment
properties, net 10 - 276,697,387 879,994,277
Other miscellaneous income, net 23 315,522,194 130,139,136 374,556,513
694 736218 616,665,488 1,469 566,418
Share in net income of associatas and a Joint venture 8 185,533,552 101,237,114 -
interest expense and bank charges 23 {139,646,572) {272,338,811) (358,741,709)
Income hefore income tax 1,825,795,642 4476579075  4,832,376,024
Income {ax expense 25 (404,215,860) (1,054,810,382) (1,271,761,567)
Net Income for the year 1,421,579782 3421768693  3,560,614.457
Net income attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company 1,469,965012  3,056,001,858  3,012,328,190
Non-controlling interests 9 (48,385,230} 365,766,835 548,286,267
1,421,579,782  3,421768,693 3,560,614 457
ltems that will be subseguently rectassified to
profit or loss
Translation adjustments (291,113) (932,813) (338,985)
ltems that will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
(Decrease) increase in fair value of equity
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax 11 (4,460,505) 19,943,650 7,760,500
Remeasurement {loss) gain on retirement benefit
24 1
(17,451,375} 16,195,502
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,404, 128,407  3.437,964,195
Total comprehenslive income attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company 1,453,332976  3,072,213,653  3,021,5983,755
Non-controlling interests Q (49,204,569) 365,750,542 548,286,267
1404128407  3437,964,195  3,569,880,022
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to shareholders of the Parent Company 26 0.309 0.642 0.633
-
BUREAU OF IN AL REVENU,

The notes on pages 1 to 74 are integral part df
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Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020

(All amounts in Philippine Pesoc)

W

Notes 2020 2019 2018
Gash flows from operating activities
Income befare income tax 1,825,795,642 4,476,579,075 4,832,376,024
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 12 1,112,674,834 1,115107,861  1,041,599,457
Interest expense 23 138,803,721 271,398 458 357,809,248
Proviston for probable losses 22 100,150,239 - -
Retirement benefit expense 24 38,105,630 37,765,035 38,161,019
Provision for restrucluring 22 33,985,773 - -
Loss on fair valve adjustment of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,23 2,652,634 5,145,472 4,545,027
Provislon for doubtful aceounts 5,22 9,113,149 170,000 8,468,256
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gatn) 3 2,522 480 4,958,704 {16,419,512)
Gain on sale of properly and equipment 23 (357,808} {1,080,728)  (206,643,583)
Amortization of deferred lease income 17 (40,478,445) {37,686 644) {30,434,852)
Dividend income 23 (13,002,470} (55,541,739) (48,440,301)
Share in net of associates and a joint venture 8 (185,633,552)  (101,237,114) -
Interest income 23 (382,943,112)  (217,586,055)  (190,828,895)
Gain on fair value adjustment of investment properties 10 (276,697 387) (879,984 2T7)
Operating income before working capital changes 2,641,588,727 5221324938 4,910,287 652
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables 208,110,388 (1,937,313,040) (52,262,791)
Properties held for sale (692,236,187) 800,401,309 2,557,995,862
Prepaid taxes and other cumrent assets (349,195,707) 60,990,622 (272,776,044)
Real estate development projects - (45,181,174) (3,086,726,897)
Other non-current assets 44,140,926 (80,602,627) 21,641,516
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (340,014,434) 516,712,135 (752,634,597)
Accrued employee benefits (12,725,357) 51,1186 -
Instaliment payable {301,166,892) (97,243,761) (95,349,484)
Advance rentais 13,820,918 217,340,128 19,539,880
Deposits from tenants 45149 228 32,156,643 10,854 586
Net cash generated from operations 1,257,480,610 4,678,636,289  3,250,569,703
Income tax paid (609,634,380)  (722,631,847)  (440,320,188)
interest received 381,526,486 218,510,740 53,446,209
Contributions paid to retirement plan 24 - {52,653,236) (8,409,257)
Retirerent benefits paid directly by the Group 24 {1,333,401) (3,617,203} (20,215,578)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,028,038,315 4,118,244 743 2 835,070,889
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to
Property and equipment 12 (152,201,324)  (125,092,093) (75,080,688}
QOther non-current assets 14 (465,888,000) (171,705,000}  (250,295,000)
Advances to a joini venture 8 (10,762,246) (1,019,985,374) (1,000,0(:0,000)
Investment propertles 10 (367,685,862) (1,109,209,440) (489,888,876)
Financial assets atf other comprehensive
income 11 - 1,866,500 -
Dividends received 23 13,002,470 55,541,739 48,440,301
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 23 703,857 2341134 269,640,000
Net cash used in investing activities (682,831,105} (2,368/146,534) (1,497,182263)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of:
Loan principat 16 (2,603,333,333) (3,208,333,333) (3,687,083,333)
Interest 16 (106,057,131) (246,480,8921) (322,790,651)
Cash dividends paid to:
Shareholders 19 (718,753,2 (925,518,202)
Non-controlling sharehalders of subsidiaries 9 60 (317,576,000)
Proceeds from loan availment 16 00 1
Net cash used in financing activities {1.132,803,706) (1,539,147,937) (3,952,968,186)
Met (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
for the year (1,087,595496) 21 (2,615,079,560)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 3 2,640,088,900 5,030,757,380
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 22 512
Cash and cash eguivalents at December 31 3
i e
The notes on pages 1 to 74 are integral part of th fimegn
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Shang Properties, Inc, and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019

and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020
(All amounts are shown in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

ote1 - eral i atio

Shang Properties, Inc. (the “Parent Company”), a corporation duly organized and existing in the
Philippines, was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission

(SEC}) on October 21, 1987 to acquire, own, develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage, exchange, lease or hold for
investment, real estate of all kinds.

The Parent Company's registered office address, which is also its principal place of business, is at
Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City.

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries' (together, the “Group”) businesses include property
investment and development, hote] operation, real estate management, leasing, mall and carpark
operations, and other supplementary businesses.

COVID-19 Pandemic

During the first quarter of 2020, local and worldwide social and economic activities were severely
affected by the spread and threat of COVID-19 pandemic. The Group took actions to minimize risk to its
employees, including restricting travel and instituting extensive work from home protocols in response to
the enhanced community quarantine (ECQ) mandated by the Philippine government. Measures have
been implemented to protect the health and safety of its employees, clients and partners, to support
business continuity and to manage financial impact to a minimum. These measures have caused
disruptions to businesses and economic activities, and their impact on businesses continue to evolve. The
ECQ began on March 16, 2020 and was further extended and modified by the government upto

June 15, 2020. While quarantine measures over highly urbanized cities in the National Capital Region
(NCR) were relaxed following the proclamation of a modified enhanced community quarantine effective
May 16, 2020, and subsequently, a general community quarantine effective June 1, 2020, operations
across various industries remain below full capacity in several areas.

As a result, the Group (as a lessor) has pravided rent concessions to assist its tenants in coping with the
business disruption caused by the national lockdown imposed during the pandemic. The rent concessions
are assessed by the Group’s tenant management division on a quarterly basis and are subject to
reassessment if same consideration should still be applied depending on the current of the tenants.
These rent concessions are recognized as reduction in the Group’s Rental and cinema revenue. The Group
continues to pay close attention to the developments on the pandemic and will evaluate its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group, Measures to manage financial and business risks are in

place to ensure that the impact of events that expose the Company to risks arising from COVID-19, if any, are
kept to a minimal extent.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors dated March 25, 2021. BUREAU OF INTER RE NU

LA TAXPAYERS SERVICE
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Note 2 - Segment information

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed according to the nature of the products
and services marketed. Each segment represents a strategic business unit that offers different products
and serves different markets. The Group has operations only in the Philippines. The Group derives
revenues from three (3) main segments as follows:

(a) Property development

This business segment pertains to the development and sale of condominium units. The subsidiaries
operating in this segment are as follows:

 Shang Properties Realty Corporation (“SPRC”) is the developer of The Shang Grand Tower Project
(TSGT), located in Makati City, The St. Francis Shangri-La Place Project (TSFSP) and the One
Shangri-La Place Project (OSP), both located in Mandaluyong City.

» Shang Property Developers, Inc. (“SPDI”) is the developer of Shang Salcedo Place Project (SSP),
located in Makati City.

*  The Rise Development Company Inc. (“TRDCI”) is the developer of The Rise Makati Project, located
in Makati City.

» Shang Wack Wack Properties, Inc. (“SWWPI”) is the developer of Shang Residences at Wack Wack
Project, located in Mandaluyong City.

(b) Hotel operations

This business segment pertains to the operations of Shangri-La at the Fort’s hotel and residences. Shang
Global City Properties, Inc. (“SGCPI”) is the developer of Shangri-La at the Fort Project, located in
Taguig City. SGCPI’s hotel and restaurant operations started commercial operations on March 1, 2016,

(¢) Leasing

This business segment pertains to the rental operations of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall, The Enterprise
Center ("TEC”) and their related carpark operations as operated by Shangri-La Plaza Corporation
(“SLPC”), KSA Realty Corporation (“KSA”) and SPI Parking Services, Inc. (“SPSI”), respectively. It also
includes rental of a portion of the Parent Company's land to EDSA Shangri-La Hotel and Resort, Inc.
(“ESHRI”) and cinema operations of Shangri-La Plaza Mall.

As disclosed in Note 10, in 2019, the Parent Company started construction of a project located in the City
of Mandaluyong. The project is being constructed on a parcel of land registered in the Parent Company’s
name. The construction of the project is ongoing and is expected to be completed in 2024. Upon
completion, the project will be subsequently leased out to third parties and related parties.

(d) Other business segments

Other business segments pertain fo property management services and operations of real estate entities
and other subsidiaries.

Except for the rental revenue from ESHRY, all revenues come from transactions with third parties. There
are no revenues derived from a single external customer above 10% of total revenue in 2020, 2019 and
2018. There is no need to present reconciliation since measure of segment assets, liabilities and results of
operations are consistent with those of the consolidated financial statements.

All revenues are from domestic entities incorporated in the Philippines, hence, the Group did not present
geographical information required by PFRS 8, Operating Segments.

There are no changes in the Group's reportable segments and related strategies and policies in 2020,
2019, and 2018.

(2)



The segment asseis, liabilities and resuits of operations of the repartable segments of the Group as st and for the year ended December 31, 2020 are as follows:

Freperty
devalopmant Holel operations Leasing Others Total segments Emmmabons  Censoiidated

Revenues

Condominium sales 3009081538 - 884,966 . 3,009,948 505 - 3,009 848,505

Rental and cnema 28,819,750 - 2,188 581,255 - 2218.401,005 (89.620,254) 2,128,780,051

Mot operakon - 1.061,762.155 - - 1,081,762,155 - 1.081,762,155
Caost of seles and services -

Condominium sales (1.683 BET 995) - {1.312,500} (1,685,000,495) (1,685,000,495)

Rental and cinama - - (95,573,669) - (95,573,669) (4,674,713) (100,248,382)

Hotel operation - (1,851,378,118) - o (1,851,378,118) - (1,851,378,118)
Grose profit 1.355213.294 (769,615,963) 2,092,560,052 - 2 678,157,383 (94,295 667) 2,583.861,716
Oparating expenses {375,549 074) (488,814,726) (968,701,023) (83,512 466) (1,896,577 ,289) 397,888,017 (1,498,689,272)
Other Income (expense) 521,852 549 33,110 1,623,048, 579 1,482 381,068 3,827,819,307 (2,932,883,088) 694,736,216
Share In net mcome of associates and a jbint venturs - - 165,533 552 - 185,523 852 - 185,533,562
Interaat experice and bank charges (382,815} {54,598,512) (84,6864, 885) {558) {136 648 5723 - (139,646 572)
Income before income tax 1,501,134,154 (1,312 693,091) 2,847 777,274 1,418,688,044 4,455 085 381 (2,629,250,738) 1.825,795 642
Income tax ex| (447.929,063; 366.508.509 {330.694.493) (6,915,683) {49030 830} 14,815 070 (404,215 B60)
MNet income for the year 1,053,205,091 {845 184,582) 2 517,082 781 1,419,952 161 4.035.005,451 (2 614.475,669) 1,421,578,782
Segment essels 13,068,010,430 8,634,940,935 46,277,865,491 41,016,135,980 79,996,952,837 (18,144 908,407) 61,852,046,430
Associale and joint venture companies (Nota 8) - -~ - 1,317,811,371 1,317.911.271 - 1,317, 341.271
Total assets 13,068.010,43C S,634,840 936 A6, 277,605,491 12,334, 047,251 B1.314,864,108 (18,144,806 407) 63,168,957,701
Segment liabilities 7,442 535,418 3.778,383 HE0 15062,265 819 8,323.004.805 33604 160,123 (12,108 559,589) 21,495 590,534
Capital expenditures fur the year {Motes 10 and 12) 2,676 255 136,712,429 380,212,784 285,714 519,887 188 - 519,887,186
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The segment assets, liabilities and results of operations of the reportabie segments of the Group as at and for the vear cnded December 91, 201 are as fallows:

Praperty
deveiopment Haotel operations | aasing Others Talal seqmerils Elminations Consohdated

Revenues

Condominium sales 4,426 678,935 - 1.660.714 - 4428 330 645 - 4,428,338,649

Rental and cinsma. - - 3587477011 - 3587.477.911 (244,211,871) 3,353,266,040

Halei aperation - 3560 220,504 - - 3680,220,504 - 3,580,220 504
Cost of sales and services

Condominium sales (2894 470.681) . {2,487.500) - (2,696,938,381) (2,606,938,381}

Rental and cinema - - {164,670,882) - (164,670,882) (4,722,185) (166,393,067)

Hotel oparation - (3 212 676.342) - “ (3.212.676,342) - (3,212,676,342)
Gross profit 1.732.208.054 367,544 162 3,432,000,243 " 5,531,752 459 (248,934,056) 5,282 818,403
Operating axpanses (287,086,761} 1299,765,477)  (1,257,060,208) (64,447 B57)  (1,008,360,303) 656,566,364 (1,251,803,029)
Other incoma {expanse) (192,924 659) 7,210,175 2,869 571,077 688,023,259 3.171,878.852 {2,555,214,354) 18,865,498
Shaere (n net income of associales and 2 joint vaniure - 101,237,114 - 101,237,114 - 101,237,114
Interest expense and bank charges 1408 593) (130,105,616) (141,818,458) (5,244) (272,338 911) : (272,338,811)
Incoma befora income tax 1,251,787,041 (55,116,756) 4,803 920678 623,570,158 6.624,161,121 {2,147 582 045) 4,4/6,579,075
Income tex axpense {406 668,551) (25.143.078) {B4B.064,623) {b,488.604) {1.287.355 855) 232,555 473 (1.054.810,382)
Net income for the yaar B43 116480 (86 25 834 3,055,856,056 515,080,554 5 336,795 266 (1,915,026,573) 3,421,768,6593
Sagment assets 14,518,918 45 10,683,758,282 44 877,200,970 10,548,633 457 80526,511,564  (19,396,613,973) 61,231,807,591
Associgie and joint venture companies (Note 8) - - - 2121615472 2121615473 - 2,121,615,473
Toial assets 14,518,918 845 10,683,758 262 44,877,200,970 12 670,248 835 82,750,127 037 18,396,613 473 63,363,513,064
Segment liabilities a 8,484,443 881 2.877,048 916 15,144 127.410 8,721,768,663 35,237 386 970 (13,154,014 784 22.083.374,186
Capital expenditures for the year {Motes 10 and 13} 8,835 831 87,684,563 144,081,584 193,448 240,695 426 - 240,695,426
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The segment assets, lizhilities and results of operations of the reportable segments of the Group as at and for the vear ended December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Property
davelopment Laaging Hotel eperations Others Total sagments Consofidated

Reverue

Condominium 4207 725 048 783,522 31 - - 4,891,248,279 - 4,991,248,279

Rental and cinama - 103,587,139 3,145,583 103 - 3,249,180,242 (231,848,901} 3,017,331,251

Hotel cperaton - 3171907725 - 3,171,907 725 - 3.171.907,725
Cost of sales and semices

Candominium sales (2,603 212 800) (307,348 423) - (3.000 561,223) - (3,000,561 3)

Rantal and anema - - (241,988,954) - (241,968,854) (4,422,383} (248411 7)

Holel oparation - (3,023 783 565) - - (3,023 783 595) - {3,023,783.505)
Grosk profit 1574 513 148 727885177 2.903,604,149 - 146,002 474 2365 271,374 4,908.731,100
Oparating axpenses (264,631,860) (322 357 383) {814,082 778} {33,303,780) (1.434,375,791) 246,196,008 {1,188,178,785}
Uther iIncome (axpanse) 145 B8S,140 233,846,884 1340470023 1,535,281,920 3 265,496,976 (1,785,930, 556} 1,460,566,418
Shara in net incoma of associales and a joint ventura - u - - - - -
Intgrest expenee and bank charges {263,118) (188,978.187) {33,652 208) (135,848,130} (356,741,708) - (358,741,708}
Income (loss) before incoime tax 1,385,608,312 450,386,501 3,385,339,098 1,366,140,038 5,608,361,850 {1.776,805,926) 4,832,376,024
Income 1ax expense (446,005,850} (133,913.982) 659,135,439) 19,503.010) (1,248 558 291} (23.203.276) {1.271,761,567}
Net income (loss) for the year 943 500 452 316,482 519 2,737,203 658 41,356,637,020 5.359,3233_?&9 (1,756,209 202) 3,560 614,457
Segment assets 12,846,496, 748 8.148.495,232 30352018018 13,231,383,964 65,578,395,554 (6,322 900,022) 59,255 485,842
Associate and joint venturs companies (Mota §) - - - 1,000,388.985 1 060,388,935 - 1,000,388 885
Total assets 12 848 496,749 5,148.4958 232 30,352 012,018 14,231,772 849 65,578, 784 849 6322 800,022 B0 255,884 827
Segment habillies 7 051,526,246 4,580 810.260 13,112,858 754 8,757 631,862 33,512,537.233 {12 323.001,527) 21,188 525 655
Capital expenditures far the year (Notes 10 and 42) 58,076,120 17,004,568 489 836,876 - 564,967 h64 - 564,987 564
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Note 3 - Cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019
Cash on hand 7,086,224 22,898,792
Cash in banks 817,325,094 428,422,956
Cash equivalents 725559506 2,188,767,152

1,549,970,914  2,640,088,900

Cash in banks earned interest at respective bank deposit rates ranging from 0.05% to 0.25% in 2020
(2019 - 0.10% t0 0.25%).

Cash equivalents are made for varying periods between one day and three months, depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
Short term investiments earn interest ranging from 0.09% to 2.75% in 2020 (2019 - 2.25% to0 6.38%;
2018 - 0.50% tc 6.375%).

Interest income earned for the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to P12,956,641
(2019 - P44,045,396; 2018 - P54,619,455) (Note 23).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are generally denominated in

Philippine Peso, US Dollar and Hong Kong Dollar. The Group’s foreign currency denominated cash and
cash equivalents as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Foreign Exchange Peso Foreign Exchange Peso
currency rate  equivalent currency iate equivalent
US Dollar 1,949,160 48.04 93,629,836 1,302,055 50.74 66,066,280
HK Dollar 2,062 6.19 12,776 - - -

The realized and unrealized exchange losses for the years ended December 31 included within Other
income in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive income are as follows:

2020 2019 2018

Foreign exchange (losses) gains
Realized (1,2086,598) {2,798,376) 7,767,221
Unrealized (2,522 490) (4,958,704) 16,419,512
Total (3,729,088) (7,757,080) 24,186,733

Note 4 - Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This account represents equities that are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). Movements in
the account for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Note 2020 2019
At January 1 36,278,844 41,424,316
Loss on fair value adjusiment (Included in Other income) 23 (2,652,634) (5,145,472)
At December 31 33,626,210 36,278,844

The fair values have been derived based on current bid prices in the PSE (Level 1 valuation).
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Note 5 - Trade ax

Trade and other receivables, net, as at December 31 consist of:

Note 2020 2019
Trade

Installment contracts receivable 3,044 359,832 3,365,390,819
Rent receivables 249,776,897 211,633,688
Receivables from guests and concessionaires 53,866,187 119,345,385

Non-trade
Related parties 27 1,604238,974 1,464,226 125
Advances to officers and employees 4,225 928 4,000,339
Interest 4,316,725 2,900,097
Others 58,574,091 66,298 077
5,019,358,634  5233,794,510
Aliowance for impairment of receivables (23,020,320) (14,498,427

4,996,338,314  5,219,296,083

Installment contracts receivable arises from sale of condominium units with average term ranging from
one to five years, with last installment collectible in 2021. The amounts due from the condominium
buyers are subject to either bank financing or in-house financing. Interest income earned from
installment contracts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to P299,782,769
(2019 - P166,691,384; 2018 - P127,423,327) (Note 23).

Rent receivables are non-interest bearing and pertain to rental fees charged to tenants and to the Group's

affiliates for the office, commercial and carpark spaces. The normal credit terms range from 30 to 60
days.

Receivables from guests and concessionaires pertain to receivables arising from hotel, restaurant and
rental services. These are usually due within 30 days and do not bear any interest.

Advances to officers and employees are normally settled within the next financial year.

Other receivables are non-interest bearing and consist of income from banner and non-tenant related
receivables.

Movements in allowance for impairment of receivables for he years ended December 31 are as follows:

Note 2020 2019
At January 1 14,498 427 15,542,333
Provision 22 9,113,149 170,000
Write-off {591,256) {1,213,906)
At December 31 23,020,320 14,498 427

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are all denominated in Philippine Peso,

There were no trade and other receivables pledged as collaterals as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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Note 6 - Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019
Condominium units held for sale 497 742 705 486,168,462
Construction in progress 2,915,322 511 2,390,0765,899

3.413,065,216 2 876,245,361

The cost of condominium sales recognized as expense and presented as part of Cost of sales and services
in the Consolidated statements of total comprehensive income amounted to P1,685,000,495 in 2020
(2019 - P2,606,938,381; 2018 - P3,000,561,223) (Note 20).

(a) Condominium units held for sale

This account represents the accumnulated actual construction costs of unsold units of completed
condominium projects.

The movements in condominium units held for sale as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
At January 1 486,168,462 576,106,507
Additional development costs for the year 50,634,884 32,023,095
Cost of condominium units sold (excluding commissions) (39,060,641) (121,961,140)
At December 31 497,742,705 486,168,462

In 2020, the Group recognized additional costs incurred for the Shang Salcedo Place and Horizon Homes
amounting to P50,634,884 (2019 - P32,023,005).

(b) Construction in progress

This account represents the accumulated actual construction costs of unsold units of ongoing
condominium projects. The movements in this aceount as at December 31 are as follows:

Note 2020 2019
At January 1 2,390,076,899 3 101,470,846
Construction and development costs incurred:
Construction cost 1,086,872,457  1,611,800,483
Project management expenses 155,661,123 207,575,388
Professional and consultancy fees 24,953,404 37,950,318
Insurance and bonds 11,206 17,602,041
Land cost 842,750,537 15,365,728
Taxes, permits and licenses 72,208,236 12,521,425
Others 27,848,308 24,391,177
Transfer to real estate development projects 10 - (226,815,885)
Transfer to investment property 10 (155,196,774) -
Allocated cost of condominium sold (excluding
commissions) (1,529,863,065) (2,411,784,622)
At December 31 2,915,322,511  2,390,076,899

Transfers in 2019 and 2020 relate to construction and development costs incurred during the period
attributable to the retail portion of The Rise Makati condominium (Note 10).
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As at December 31, 2020, the Group has remaining estimated cost to complete fo the following on-going
projects:

2020 2019
The Rise Makati 278,174,318 661,009,994
Shang Residences at Wack Wack 3,625,240,249  3,913,538,022

3.903,414,567  4,574,548,016

The Group’s on-going projects and their PoC as at December 31 are as follows:

Projects 2020 2019
The Rise Makati 97% 92%
Shang Residences at Wack Wack 21% 15%

Critical accounting judgment - Estimation of net realizable value of properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value
of completed condomnium units is the estimated selling price of a condominium unit less estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. While the net realizable value of condominum units under construction
is the estimated selling price of a condominium unit less estimated costs to complete the construction,
estimated time value of money to the date of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

NRV has been assessed to be higher than cost based on circumstances or conditions as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. Accordingly, no write-down is deemed necessary.

Criticgl accounting estimates - Estimation of percentage-of-completion of the Group’s projects

Revenue from condominium sales is recognized over time using the output method in accordance with
the guidance set in PFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with Customers, and Philippine Interpretations
Committee Questions and Answers (PIC Q&A) 2016-04.Under the output method, revenue is calculated
with reference to the PoC of the project. PoC is determined based on the actual physical completion of the
project. Management believes that revenue from condominium sales reported in the statement of total
comprehensive income best reflects the PoC of the projects as at reporting date.

Critical accounting judgment - Collectability of the transaction price

Identification of a “contract” for particular real estate sale transaction in the context of PFRS 15 requires
certain judgments based on the collectability of the transaction price. Collectability of the transaction
price is demonstrated by the buyer’s commitment to pay which, in turn, is supported by substantial
initial and continuing investments that gives the buyer a sufficient stake in the property that risk of loss
through default motivates the buyer to honor his obligation. Collectability 1s also assessed by considering
factors such as the credit standing of the buyer, age, and location of the property. For condominium
sales, mn determining whether the contract prices are collectible, the Company considers that 1nitial and

continuing investments by the buyer of about 10% would demonstrate the buyer’s commitment to pay,
based on historical data.
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Note 7 - Prepaid taxes and other current assets

Prepaid taxes and other current assets as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019
Advances to contractors and suppliers 888,508,872 532,967,837
Creditable withholding tax (CWT) 420,217,281 398,877,908
Prepaid commission 119,207,410 107,336,710
Input value added tax (VAT) 93,813,135 102,028,661
Prepaid property tax 62,647 224 96,704,392
Prepaid insurance 13,486,737 127,746
Consumables and supplies 13,303,359 17,702,227
Deferred input VAT 6,031,092 6,597,630
Other prepaid expenses 45,999,112 51,675,404

1,663,214,222

1,314,018,515

Advances to contractors and suppliers pertain to initial payments made by the Group for the construction
and development of its condominium project. These are applied as payments of progress billing by the
contractors and suppliers based on milestones or percentage of accomplishment or delivery as stipulated

in the contracts.

CWT is the tax withheld by withholding agents from payments to the Group which can be applied against

the income tax payable.

Prepaid commission represents advance commission paid to property consultants and brokers based on
the percentage of completion of the project sold. This account is treated as a fulfilment cost under
PFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers, and therefore amortized as an expense.

Input VAT represents tax paid to suppliers that can be claimed as credit against the future output VAT

liabilities and has no expiration.

Consumables and supplies consist of food, beverages and other recreational consumable items for the

hotel operations.

Other prepaid expenses mainly consist of advance payments for rent, staff accommodation rentals,
software support, refundable deposits, and other expenses which are normally utilized within the next

financial year,

Note 8 - Investments in and advances to associates and a joint venture

This account as at December 31 consist of:

2020

2019

Investment in a joint venture
At January 1
Additions to investment
Share in net income

1,121,482,600
10,762,246
185,533,552

1,000,000,000
20,245,486
101,237,114

At December 31

1,317,778,398

1,121,482 600

Advances to a joint venture

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Investments in immaterial associates
Acquisition costs

132,873

132,873

2,317,911,271

2,121,615,473
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(a) Investment in and advances to a joint venture

On March 22, 2018, the Parent Company entered into a Joint Venture Agreement (the “Agreement”) with
Robinsons Land Corporation (RLC) for the construction and development of a mixed-use condominium
project (later known as Aurelia Residences). Within two (2) months from the effective date of the
Agreement, the parties shall establish the joint venture company (“JVC”) and shall execute the Articles
and By-Laws of the JVC. On May 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Certificate of Incorporation of Shang
Robinsons Properties, Inc. (SRPI). SRPI is jointly controlled by the Parent Company and RLC, each
holding 50% interest.

The authorized capital stock of SRPI is P3 billion divided into 3 billion common shares with par value of
P1 per share. On April 19, 2018, the Parent Company subscribed and paid in full the amount of P1 billion
equivalent to 1 billion common shares at P1 per share.

The registered office address of SRPI, which is also its principal place of business, is at Cyber Sigma,
Lawton Avenue, Taguig City.

SRPI engages in: (i) the business of developing a property into a mixed-use development, (ii) the
marketing and sale of the residential condominium units in the project, (iii) and the lease of serviced
apartment units and/or commereial units in the project.

SRPI commenced operations in 2019 and had presold 37% of its Aurelia Residences condominium units,
As at December 31, 2020, the Aurelia Residences Project is 7% complete (2019 - 3.21%). In 2020, the
Group’s share in net income of the joint venture amounted to P185,533,552 (2019 - P101,237,114).

In 2019, advances amounting to P1 billion were extended to SRPL These advances mature on

April 1, 2023 and bear interest at a rate of 4%. Interest income earned from these advances amounted to
P64,322,935 in 2020 (2019-nil). (Note 23)

Summarized financial information of SRPI as at and for the years ended December 31 are presented
below:

2020 2019

Summarized statements of financial position

Current assets 9,050,807 444

9,080,241,934

Current liabilities (3,850,530,594) (3,164,578,330)
Nen-current assets 521,597,386 317,765,929
Non-current liabilities (3,167,337,600) (4,049,960,000)
Net assets 2,554,536 636 2,183,469,533
2020 2019
Summarized statements of total comprehensive income
Gross revenue 929,357 646 493,523,933
Net income for the year 371,067,103 202,474,229
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 371,067,103 202,474 229

(b) Investments in individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interests in a joint venture disclosed above, the Group also has interests in a number of
individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using the equity method.
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Critical accounting judament - Recoverabhility of investment and advances

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint venture are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the investment may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss would be recognized whenever evidence exists that the carrying value is not
recoverable,

Significant accounting judgment - joint control assessment

Management has assessed that in the joint venture agreement, the contractual arrangement gives the
investors control of the arrangement collectively, and decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of both entities, and therefore, joint control exists. Furthermore, the rights and
obligations considering the structure and legal form of the arrangement indicates that the Parent

Company has rights to the net assets of SRPI and therefore, the arrangement is classified as a joint
venture,

Note g - Non-controlling interests

The proportion of equity interest held by the non-controlling interest (NCI) of KSA and SGCPI, the
Group's subsidiaries with NCI that are deemed material, are as follows:

2020 2019
KSA 29.96% 29.96%
SGCP! 40.00% 40.00%

The summarized financial information of subsidiaries with material NCI are provided below. The
information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.

{a) KSA Realty Corporation

2020 2019

Summarized statements of financial position
Current assets 820,027,926 462,514,679
Current liabilities (616,029,103) {(457,006,457)
Non-current assets 10,668,871,953 10,673,621 504
Non-current liabilities (2,744,250,925)  (2,802,1 95,974)
Equity 8,128 619 851 7,876,933 752

Equity attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company 5,693,285 344 5,517,004,400
NCI 2,435,334 507 2,359,929 352
8,128,619,851 7,876,933,752
Dividends declared to NCI 254 660,000 398,468,000
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2020

2019

2018

Sumrmarized statements of total comprehensive income

Revenues 1,435,989,656 1,429,812,199 1,249,996,056
Cost and expenses (70,079,425) (71,929,445) (70,847,981)
Other income, net {1,081,116) 89,508,516 660,520,320
Income before income tax 1,364,829,115 1,447,391,270 1,839,668,395
Income tax expense {263,035,391) (279,232,769) (423,276,174)
Net income for the year 1,101,793,724 1,168,158, 501 1,416,392 221
Other comprehensive loss (107,625) (54,383) {17,995)

Total comprehensive income

1,101,686,099

1,168,104,118

1,416,374,226

Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
NCI

771,696,324
330,097,400

818,178,214
349,980,287

992,041,113
424,351,108

1,101,793,724

1,168,158,501

1,416,392,221

Total comprehensive income attributable to-
Equity holders of the Parent Company
NCI

771,620,944
330,065,155

818,140,124
349,963,994

992,028,509
424,345,717

1,101,686,099

1,168,104,118

1,416,374,226

2020

2019

2018

Summarized statements of cash flows
Operating activities

investing activities

Financing activities

1,141,854,238
(671,663)
(828 ,577,695)

1,247,497 746
(2,369,718)

1,086,939,089
(9,004,907)

(1,330,000,000) (1,060,000,000)

The principal place of business of KSA
Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City.

(b) Shang Global City Properties, Inc.

is at Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, Edsa corner

2020

2019

Summarized statements of financial position
Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current assets

Non-current liabilities

558,370,087
(1,486,150,528)
9,076,570,849
(1,290,233,352)

881,210,512

(1,369,367,257)

9,820,274 434

(1,525,408,317)

Equity

6,858,557,056

7.806,709,372

Equity attributabie to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
NCI

4,115,134,234
2,743,422,822

4,684,025,623
3,122,683,749

6,858,557,056

7,806,709,372
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2020

2019

2018

Summarized statements of fotal
comprehensive income
Revenues

1,081,762,155

3,701,852,718

4,061,702,373

Cost of sales and services (1,797,344,447)  (2,696,734,646) (2,830,396,604)
Operating expenses {392,286,468) (772,931,747) (803,393,266)
Other income (expenses), net (204,824,327) (163,685,699) 15,851,888
Income before income tax {(1,312,693,087) 68,500,626 443,764,391
income tax benefit (expense) 366,508,500 (25,143,078) (133,913,982)
Net income (loss) for the year (946,184,578) 43,357,548 309,850,409
Other comprehensive income (loss) {1,967,738) (3,892,437) 7,239,149
Total comprehensive income {loss) {948,152,316) 39,465 111 317,089,558
Net income (loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company {567,710,747) 26,014 529 185,915,250
NCI (378,473,831) 17,343,019 123,935,169
(946,184,578) 43,357,548 309,850,409
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company (568,891,390) 23,679,067 190,258,740
NCI (379,260,926) 15,786,044 126,830,818
(948,152,316) 39,465,111 317,089,558
2020 2019 2018
Summarized statements of cash flows
Operating activities (302,908,282) 979,260,721 2,896,350,545
Investing activities (71,452,196) (144,178,230) (612,443,432)
Financing activities 146,158,927 (1,396,972 328) (3,078,230,241)

No dividends were declared and paid by SGCPI in 2020 and 2019,

The principal place of business of SGCPI is at Crescent Park

Taguig City.

Note 10 - Investment properties: Real estate development projects

10.1 Investment properties

This aceount consists of properties that are either held for ca

both. The Group’s investment properties are carried at fair value,

West District, Fort Bonifacio Global City,

pital appreciation or for rental purposes or

Details of investment properties as at December 31 and their movements during the years are as follows:

Note Land Building_ Total
At January 1, 2019 13,694,823,194 18,816,252,854 32511 ,076,048
Gain (loss) on fair value adjustment 1,445,898 813 (1,169,201,426) 276,697,387
Capitalized subsequent expenditures 113,188,592 2,414 741 115,603,333

At December 31, 2019
Transfers due to change in use

15,253,910,599

17,649,466,169

32,903,376,768

Properties held for sale - 155,196,774 155,196,774
Real estate development project 652,036,324 835,577,337 1,487 613,661
Capitalized subsequent expenditures - 367,685,862 367,685,862

At December 31, 2020

15,905,946 923

19,007,926,142

34,913,873,065
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As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the fair values of the properties are based on valuations performed by
an independent external appraiser engaged by the management. The valuation models are in accordance
with that recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

The Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its investment properties and no contractual

obligations to purchase, construct or develo

enhancements,

The current use of these properties is their highest and best use.

The following table presents the valuation techniques and unobservable

following investment properties:

p investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and

inputs used to value the

Range of unobservable Relationship of
Fair value as at Valuation Unobservable inputs (probability - unobservable
Property December 31, 2020 fechnigue inpuis weighted average)  inputs to fair value
The Enterprise P10,862,565,000 Directincome  Rental value P1.680 per square mater  The higher the
Center (Office) (2019 - P10,662,565,000) capitalization (2019 -P1,680) rental value and
Occupancy 95%  occupancy rate,
rate (2019 - 95%)  the higher the fair
value,
Expense- 5.55%  The higher the
revenue ratio (2019- 5.55%) expense- revenue
Discount rate 11.37%  ratio and discount

(2019 - 11.37%)

rate, the lower the
fair value.

Main wing and east
wing of Shangri-La
Plaza mall (Retail),
including the land
where the property is
located

P12,232,029,000
(2019 - P12,232,029 000}

Direct income
capitalization

Rental value

Occupancy
rate

Expense-
revenue ratio
Discount rate

P1.700 per square meter
(2019 - P1,700)

96%

(2019 - 96%)

23%
(2019 - 23%)
12.37%

(2019 - 12.37%)

The higher the
rental value and
occupancy rate,
the higher the fair
value.

The higher the
EXpense- revenue
ratio and discount
rate, the lower the
fair value.

The fair values of these properties are caleulated using the direct income capitalization approach
(Level 3). In applying the direct income capitalization approach, the stabilized net operating in e

(NOT) of each property is divided by an a
location, size and quality of the

ppropriate capitahization rate. Discount rate is based on actual
property and taking into account any available market data at the

valuation date. Stabilized NOI is computed at revenue less property operating expenses adjusted for

items such as average lease up costs,
management fees, straigh

Generally, an 'nerease in stabilized NOI will result

property. An increase in the discount rate will result i
property. The discount rate magnifies the effect of a
resulting in a greater impact of a change in stabilize
The following are the significant unobservable mputs:

* Rental value average rental rate per square meter paid

market;

s  Discount rates reflectin

cash flows;

®  Occupancy rate based on current and ex

lease:; and

long-term vacancy rates, non-recoverable capital expenditures,
e rents and other non-recurring items.

an inerease in the far value of an investment
n a decrease 1n the fair value of an investment

change 1n stabilized NOI, with a lower discount rate
d NOI than a higher discount rate.

tenants based on the asking price in the
g current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of

pected future market conditions after expiry of any current

* Expense - revenue ratio total direct operating expenses for the entire property based on budget.
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The fair values of the Company's other land properties are determined using the market comparison
approach (Level 2). Under the market comparison approach, a property's fair value is estimated based on
comparable transactions adjusted for bargaining allowance, marketability, location, size and terrain. The
market comparison approach is based upon the principle of substitution under which a potential buyer
will not pay more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute property. In theory, the
best comparable sale would be an exact duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the
known selling price of the duplicate, the price for which the subject property could be sold. The unjt of
comparison appli by the Group 1s the price per square meter (sqm).

The remaining investment properties relate to individually immaterial land and building properties

whose fair values have been determined in the prior years and are subject o reassessment in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy.

The amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of total comprehensive income for investment
properties for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Rental revenue 2,124,139,646 3,278,602,944 2,991,967 885
Cinema revenue 4,640,405 74 663,096 25,363,366
Total rentat and cinema revenue 2,128,780,051 3,353,266,040  3,017,331,251
Direct operating expenses (100,248,382) (169,393,067) (246,411,337)
Profit arising from investment properties
carried at fair value 2,028 531,669 3,183,872 973 2,770,919,914

Direct operating expenses include share in common expenses, real property taxes and insurance
expenses (Note 20).

The Group (as a lessor) has cancellable lease agreements with third parties covering the freehold
buildings and their improvements. The lease arrangements are either (a) fixed monthly rent, or h)
minimum rent or a certain percentage of gross revenue, whichever is higher,

Details of the future gross rental income related to these cancellable lease agreements for the years ended
December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019 20
Percentage basis 318,932,966 988,628,467 ¢
Fixed monthly rental 1,805,206,680  2,289,974,477  2,039,015,877

2,124,139,646  3,278,602,944 2991 967,885

Critical accounting estimate - Determination of fair values of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determimned by independent real estate valuation experts
using recognized valuation techniques. In some cases, fair values are determined based on recent real
estate transactions with similar characteristics and in the location of those of the Group's assets. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgment, the Group considers informatio from a variety of sources including:

current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location (or subject
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences,
recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

*» stabilized net operating income based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the same location and condition, and using pre-tax

discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amounts and timing
of the cash flows.
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The Group also considers whether there are significant changes in market and property conditions in
assessing the fair value of investment properties.

The significant method and assumptions used by the appraisers in estimating fair values of investment
properties are disclosed in the tables above. The fair values, which are also the values of investment
properties as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, are disclosed in the previous tables.

Fair value gain on investment properties represent significant amounts both in value of property and
income. Any +/- 1% change in fair value per square meter increases/decreases total assets and income
before tax by P349 million (2019 — P329 million).

Critical accounting judgments
(a) Distinction between properties held for sale, investment properties, and property and equipment

The Group determines whether a property is to be classified as a property held for sale, an investment
property, or property and equipment through the following:

* Properties held for sale comprise properties that are held for sale in the ordinary course of business.
These are condominium units that the Group acquired or developed and intends to sell.

* Investment properties comprise land and buildings which are not occuptied, substantially for use by,
or in the operations of, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business of the Group, but are held
primarily to earn rental income or capital appreciation; and

* Property and equipment generate cash flows that are attributable not only to them but also to the
other assets used in the operations of the Group.

In making its judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. If these portions cannot be sold
separately at the reporting date, the property is accounted for as an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied
in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property. The Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.

(b) Classification of leases as operating lease

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the
lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair
value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and
accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

The carrying values of investment properties as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are disclosed in the
tables above.
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.2 estate ment projects

Real estate development projects account includes construction cost related to the Parent Company and

TRDCI. Movements in this account are as follows:

Note 2020 2019
At January 1 1,487,613,661 495,950,088
Development costs incurred (a) - 811,971,396
Transfers to property and equipment (b} 12 - (47,123,708)
Transfers from properties held for sale (ac) 6 - 226,815,885
Transfers to investment properties 10.1 (1.487,613,661)

At December 31

1,487,613,661

(a) Parent Company

In 2019, the Parent Company started construction of a

project located in the City of Mandaluyong. The

project is being constructed on a parcel of land registered in the Parent Company’s name. The
construction of the project is ongoing and is expected to be completed in 2024. Upon completion, the

project will be subsequently leased out to third parties
amounting to P811,971,396 were incurred. Proj

and related parties, In 2019, construction costs
ect management costs in 2019 amounting to P45,181,174

were reclassified from “construction in-progress” under properties held for sale to “real estate

development projects”
,152,570. Such costs were transferred to Investment properties in 2020 (Note 10.1).

(b) SGCPI

(Note 6). As at December 31, 2019, total related capitaiized costs amounted to

In 2019, costs relating to the development of hotel restaurants and facilities of SGCPT's Shangri-La at the

Fort project amounting to P47,
completion.

(c) TRDCI

Construction costs allocated to the retail
included in Real estate development project. Project management costs in 2019 amounting

123,708 were reclassified to property and equipment (Note 12) upon

portion of The Rise Makati that is intended for leasing are

to

P181,634,711 were reclassified from "construction in-progress” under properties held for sale to "real
P

estate development projects” (Note 6). As at December 31, 2019,
to P630,461,091. Such costs were transferred to Investment properties in 2020 (Note 10.1).

total related capitalized costs amounted

Note 11 - Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, net

This account consists of equity securities. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVOCI), as at December 31, 2020 are presented below.

2020 2019
Unquoted securities 488,429 727 488,429,727
Quoted securities 9,101,515 9,101,515
Acquisition cost 497,531,242 497,531,242
Cumulative changes in fair value 300,037,254 306,137,254
Fair value at December 31 797,568,406 803,668,496
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The fair values of the unquoted equity securities are based on the net asset value of the underlying assets
which are mainly investment properties consisting of land and buildings which are measured and carried
at fair value of underlying assets. The fair value measurements have been categorized as Level 3 with the
following significant unobservable inputs in the computation of the fair value of investment properties:
(1) rental value average rental rate, (2) discount rates, (3) occupancy rate, (4) expense - revenue ratio,
and (5) comparable transactions adjusted for bargaining allowance, marketability, location, size and

terrain. The net asset value per share of unquoted equity securities ranges from P1,043 per share to
P465,053 per share.

The quoted equity securities consist of investments in various golf club shares and stocks. These are
carried at fair values which are based on the quoted market prices (Level 1) as at the reporting date.

The cumulative changes in fair values of unquoted and quoted equity shares are presented as part of
other comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of financial position.

The movements in the cumnulative chan

December 31 are as follows:

ges in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI for the years ended

2020 2019

At January 1 263,169,666 243,226 016

(Loss) gain on fair value adjustment (6,100,000) 21,969,000
Derecognition of cumulative changes in

fair value of equity investments written-off - (1,270,000)

257,069,666 263,925,016

Deferred income tax effect 1,639,495 (755,350)

At December 31 258,709,161 263,169,666

Note 12 - Property and equipment, net

Details of property and equipment, net, as at December 31 and their movements during the years are as

follows:
Building and Furniture,
building Transportation fixtures and
improvements eguipment other equipment Total
Cost
At January 1, 2020 9,455,442 784 54,141,601 6,978,260,203 16,487,844 588
Additions 48,499,753 12,500 103,689,071 152,201,324
Adjustment (69,139,452) - (96,829,658) (165,969,110)
Disposals (5.460,889) (2.271,427) (7,732,316)
At December 31, 2020 9,434 803,085 48,693,212 6,982 848,189 16,466,344 486
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization
At January 1, 2020 1,210,331,138 32,686,558 2,433,337 312 3,676,355,008
Depreciation and amortization 126,123,731 6,755,274 979,795,829 1,112,674,834
Disposals - (5,106,820) {2,171,098) (7,277 916)
At December 31, 2020 1,336,454 869 34,335,012 3,410,962 045 4,781,751,926
Cost
At January 1, 2019 9,424,505 767 50,988,050 6,851,791,731 16,327,376,548
Transfer from real estate
development projects (Note 10) 18,762,768 - 28,360,940 47 123,708
Additions 12,084,249 10,379,063 102,628,781 125,092,093
Disposals - (7.226,512) (4,521,249) (11,747,761)
At December 31, 2019 9,455,442 784 54,141,601 6.978,260,203 16,487 B44 588
Accumulated depreciation and
amoriization
At January 1, 2019 1,043,157,423 32,928,318 1,496,549 444 2572,635,185
Depreciation and amortization 167,173,715 6,984,752 940,949,394 1,115,107,861
Disposals - (7,226.512) (4,161,526) (11.388,038)
At December 31, 2019 1,210,331,138 32,686,558 2,433,337,312 3,676,355,008
Net book values at
At December 31, 2020 8,098,348,216 14,358,200 3,571,886,144 11,684,592 560
At December 31, 2019 8,245,111,646 21,455,043 4,544,922 891 12,811,489.580
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Building and buil improvements include land rights which pertain to the share of SGCPI in the land

where the construction project was constructed after deducting the rights allocated to condominium unit
owners,

In 2020, the SGCPI recorded cost adjustments to certain items of property and equipment amounting to
P165.97 million (2019 - nil) due to changes 1n contractor billings issued during the year.

Depreciation and amortization were allocated as follows:

Notes 2020 2019 2018
Cost of sales and services 20 1,074,039,063 1,080,551 476 1,018,566,761
Operating expenses 38,416,213 33,625,702 23,032,736
Capitalized under property held for sale 6 219,558 930 683 -

1,112,674,834 1,115,107 861 1,0

3 i

There are no restrictions on the Group’s title on property and equipment and no property and equipment
were pledged as security for bank loans (Note 16).

Critical accounting estimate - Useful lives of property and equipment

The useful life of each item of the Group’s property and equipment is estimated based on the period over
which the asset is e pected to be available for use. Such estimate is based on collective assessment of
industry practice, mternal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful
life of each asset is reviewed pertodically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due
to physical wear and tear, technical or commereial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the
asset. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in
the amounts and timing of recorded expenses brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above,
A reduction in the estimated useful life of any property and equipment would increase the recorded
operating expenses and decrease non-current assets,

In 2020 and 2019, there were no changes in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment,
As at December 31, 2020, property and equipment have a carrying value of P11.68 billion
(2019 - P12.81 billion).

If the actual useful lives of the property and equipment differ by 10% (assessment threshold used by
management), the carrying amount of property and equipment would have been P531.33 million higher
or P434.72.14 million lower (2019 - P408.39 million higher or P334.14 million lower).

Critical accounting judgment - Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews its non-financial assets, such as investments in associates and in a joint venture
(Note 8), real estate development projects (Note 10.2), and property and equipment (Note 12), for any
indicator of impairment in value. This includes considering certain factors such as significant changes in
asset usage, significant decline in assets’ market value, obsolescence or physical damage of an asset,
significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results and
significant negative industry or economic trends, If indicators of impairment have been identified, the
Group determines the recoverable amount of the asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

Given historical profitable operations and profit projections, the Group has assessed that there are no
impairment indicators with respect to the non-financial assets as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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Note : -

Goodwill acquired through business eombinations amounting to P269,870,864 has been allocated to
SGCPI, the CGU, for impairment ting.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been based on value in use calculation using cash flow
projections from finaneial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to cash flow is 12.89% (2019 - 4.13%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3.14% (2019 - 3.40%), which does not exceed the compounded
annual growth rate for the real estate industry. As a result of the analysis, management did not identify
impairment for this CGU.

The calculations of value in use for the CGU are most sensitive to the following assumptions:

Discount Rates - Discount rate represents the current market assessment of the risks specific to the
CGU, taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the CGU that have not
been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate 's derived from its weighted average
cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of debt refers to
the effective rate the Group pays on its debt. It is derived from BSP’s average long-term interest rates
on loans and discounts granted by local banks, universal banks subsidiaries of foreign banks, and
foreign banks operating 1n the Philippines. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on
investment. The rates used to discount the future cash flows are based on risk-free interest rates in
the relevant markets where the CGU operates. The beta factors are based on publicly available
market data. Adjustments to the discount rate are made to factor in the specific amount and timing of
the future tax flows in order to reflect a pre-tax discount rate.

* Terminal growth rate - Rates are based on published industry research.
The following assumptions are also considered in the calculation of value in use of the CGU:

* Gross margins - Gross margins are based on average values achieved in one to five years preceding
the beginning of the budget period from other similar affiliated entities.

* Market share assumptions- hen using industry data for growth rates (as noted above), these
assumptions are important because management assesses how the unit's position, relative to its
competitors, might change over the forecast period. Management expects its share of the real estate
market to be stable over the forecast period.

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the CGU, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the property to
exceed its recoverable amount.

Critical accounting judgments - Impairment of gooduill

The Group reviews the goodwill annually for impairment and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Goodwill is monitored by
management at SGCPI’s business level (lowest level of CGU identified) following its acquisition by Parent
Company.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, based on management’s assessment and judgment, there js no
impairment of goodwill since the recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than the carrying value.
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As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the recoverable amount of SGCPI’s hotel business was determined
based on value in use calenlation (using Level 3 inputs) and require the use of certain assumptions. In
computing for the value in use, the management has employed the discounted cash flow method in

computing for the value in use. The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial forecasts
covering a five-year period beginning 2020.

The cash flow forecasts reflect management s expectations of revenue growth, operating costs and
margins based on past experience and outlook, consistent with internal measurements and monitoring.

Pre-tax adjusted discount rate applied to the cash flow forecasts is derived using the weighted average
cost of capital as at December 31, 2020.

The following are the key assumptions used:

Pre-tax adjusted discount rate 12.89%
Terminal growth rate 3.14%

The Group’s impairment review includes an impact assessment of changes in discount rate used for value
in use calculations. If the discount rate would increase/decrease by 1%, the estimated fair value of CGU
would have been lower/higher by P265 million/P751 million. Based on this sensitivity analysis,
management concluded that no reasonable change in base case assumptions would cause the carrying
amount of SGCPI’s business to exceed its recoverable amount.

Note 14 - Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets as at December 31 consist of:

Note 2019
Restricted fund 8¢ | 422,000,000
Refundable deposits 136,967,397 132,838,523
Deferred input VAT 30,198,822 62,870,019
Retirement benefit asset 24 9,721,578 25,320,182

1,064,775,797 543,028,724

Restricted fund

On December 12, 2019, the Parent Company set aside funds amounting to P422,000,000 representing
the first installment for a 50% share m an investment. In 2020, the Parent Company set aside additional
funds amounting to P465,888,000 for the second installment.
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Note 15 - Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities as at December 31 consist of:

Notes 2020 2019
Trade:
Accounts payable 575,234 991 653,706,710
Advance rentals 29 168,788,961 271,914,158
Accrued expenses:

Ceonstruction 1,251,984,917 555,359,817
Taxes 222,496,692 229,087,026
Employee benefits 100,588,580 154,839,915
Titling cost 95,685,587 335,706,109
Utitities 52,458,386 91,898,665
Outside services 49,383,279 103,848,111
Commission 39,634,928 37,661,896
Provision for restructuring 22 33,885,773 .
Repairs and maintenance 24,330,118 58,768,131
interest 16 17,570,659 22,829,348
Professional fees 12,463,758 22,169,700
Advertising and promotion 8,981,834 16,057,275
Others 24,140,253 9,529,746

Customers' deposits from:
Condominium buyers 460,174,363 524,538,746
Hotel guests 149,627,017 160,249,477
Retention payables 596,429,280 847,964,710
Reservation payabtes 14,424,466 819,251,496
Advances from condominium unit buyers 302,158,966 165,052,377
Contract liabilities 22,428 106 132,446,606
Payabile to contractors and suppliers 58,088,116 57,528,550
Construction bonds 62,695,015 63,129,360

Non-trade:

Payable to related parties 27 172,556,667 100,489,253
Deferred output VAT 801,945,912 414,694 924
Payable to government agencies 43,852,775 149,500,917
Output VAT 53,347,319 46,212,920
Others L 28 268,537,889 124,995,694
5683994606 6 169,431,637

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 to
60 days and within the next financial year, respectively.

Advance rentals pertain fo the three-month rent collected fro

months of the lease term.

In Deeember 2020, SGCPI started to implement a restructurin
restructuring amounting to P33.

employees. The related pro

m tenants to he applied to the last three (3)

g program and a provision for
99 million was recognized for the termination benefits of redundated

vision was recognized under operating expenses in the statements of total
comprehensive income (Note 22),

Customers’ deposits from condominium buyers represent initial collections (e.g. down payments)

received from the buyers which shall be a
contract meets the requirements of PFRS 1

guests are advances made by guests in relation to their sta
guests' hotel charges upon their check-out.
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Retention payables represent the portion of contractor billings which will be paid upon satisfaction by
the contractors of the conditions specified in the contracts or until the defects have been corrected.

Reservation payables pertain to cash paid by the buyers of condominium units for the reservation of the
units purchased. These shall be considered as part of the down payment on the units purchased upon
execution of the contracts or income if the reservation is forfeited when the buyer did not push through
with the purchas

Advances from condominium unit buyers pertain to the amounts received 1n advance from the
condominium unit buyers of TSFSP, OSP SSP and The Rise Makati for utilities, maintenance, and

repairs of common areas. These will be paid to the condominium corporation of the respective projects
when demanded.

Contract liabilities represent any excess collections received from buyers over the revenue recognized
based on the percentage of completion method. The amount is expected to be applied against revenue in
the following year.

Payable to contractors and suppliers represents progress billings from various contractors for the
material and labor costs incurred to date with normal credit terms of 30 to 60 days, but may go beyond
as agreed.

Construction bonds pertain to cash deposits posted by tenants as security for any expenses or damages
that may be incurred by SLPC to the leased premises or common areas that may be sustained in relation
to construction activities conducted by the tenants during fit-out, as well as during renovation period of
the lease. It is normally returned to the tenants within six months after completion of their construction
activities.

Deferred output VAT is the result of the difference in the application stallment method between the
accounting policy of the Group and the tax regulations. It will be reclassified to output VAT payable when
the collections from condominium unit buyers warrant recognition of revenue.

Payable to government agencies are expected to be settled within the next financial year.

Output VAT represents tax due and payable after deducting the corresponding input VAT

Other accrued expenses consist of accruals for advertising and promotions, insurance, other employee
related costs and other general and administrative expenses. Other current liabilities pertain mainly to

taxes and insurance.

Note 16 - Bank loans; Installment pavable

16.1 Bank loans

Bank loans as at December 31 consist of:

2020

2019

Current portion
Parent Company
SGCPI

3,833,333,333
450,000,000

3,553,333,333

4,283,333,333

3,553,333,333

Non-current portion

SGCP! 1,196,172,130  1,441,284,424
Parent Company 400,000,001 933,333,334
1,896,172,131  2,374,627,758
5,878,505,464 5,927 961,091




Movements in the bank loans as at December 31 are as follows:

20 2019
At January 1 5,827,961.C 983,027,491
Amortized debt issue cost 4,877,706 8,266,933

Proceeds from loan availments, net of unamortized debt

issue costs 2,550,000,000  3,145,000,000

Payments (2,603,333,333)  (3,208,333,333)
At December 31 5,879,505464 5927 961,091

The repayments of the above bank loans are scheduled as follows:

Year 2020 2019
2020 - 3,553,333,333
2021 4,283,333,333  1,983,333,333
2022 1,600,000.,001 400,000,001
5,883,333,334  5,936,666,667

Unamortized debt issue cost (3,827,870) {8,705,576)
2,879,505464 5,927 961,001

Total interest expense arising from these loans as shown in the consolidated statements of total
comprehensive income in 2020 amounted to P100,798,442 (2019 P235,099,374; 2018 - P328,088,762)
(Note 23). Total capitalized interest amounted to P99,054,576 in 2020 (2019 - P110,125,555) and was
included as part of investment properties (2019 - real estate development projects) (Note 10). The
capitalization rate used to determine the amount of capitalized interest which is the weighted average
interest rate applicable to the Group’s general borrowings during the year is 2.19% (2019 - 5.23%).

Movements in the accrued interest recorded as acerued expenses under accounts payable and other
current liabilities account for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Notes 2020 2019
At January 1 22,829 348 34,220,895
Interest expense 23 100,798 442 235,099 374
Payments (106,057 131)  (246,490,921)
At December 31 15 17,570,659 22,829,348

The net debt reconciliation as at December 31 is presented below:

Notes 2020 2019
Long-term loan, at January 1 2,927,961,091  5,983,027,491
Cash flows (48,455,627) (55,066,400)
Long-term loan, at December 31 5,879,505,464 5,927 961,091
Accrued interest 17,570,659 22,829,348

Cash and cash equivalents

3 (1,549,970914) (2,640,088,900)

Net debt

4,347,105,209  3,310,701,539

Movements in financing labilities comprising the net debt are disclosed in the related notes to the

consolidated financial statements.
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(a) Parent Company

On July 30, 2012, the Parent Company obtained a 10-year loan facility from a local bank amounting to
P5.00 billion. This amount is payable in 24 equal quarterly installments, commencing on the 17th
quarter from the inijtial borrowing date at a fixed interest rate of 4.00% per annum for the three (3) years
effective September 17, 2015,

On July 31, 2018, the Company obtained another 6-month loan from a local bank amounting to P500
payable on January 31, 2019 at a fixed rate at 4.50% per annum. On January 31, 2019, the loan
was extended for 6 months payable on July 31, 2019. On July 31, 2019, the Parent Company paid the

entire amount of the loan. As at December 31, 2019, the Company is fully compliant with the loan
covenants.

The loan agreement requires the Parent Company to comply with certain covenants and financial ratios
until the loans are fully paid. Failure to comply with the covenants will render the full amount of loans
due and demandable. As at December 31, 2019, the Company is fully compliant with the loan covenants.

As at December 31,2020, the Parent Company has not reached the debt-service coverage ratio
requirement specified in the loan agreement. The Parent Company, however, was able to secure a waiver
from the bank on the immediate declaration of the }oan as due and demandable.

Total drawdown from the above facility amounted to P3.70 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019. As

at December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance of the loan amounted to P933 million (2019 - P1.47
billion).

The Company availed of the following short-term loans which are payable within a period of 12 months.

Outstanding Qutstanding
Payment Starting Maturity Interest Balance as of Balance as of
term date date rate Extension Loan amount December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
2020
dmonths  8-May-20 6-Aug-20 4.75% No extension period 200,000,000 - -
3 months i 20 8-Sep-20 4.50% Mo extension pericd 200,000,000 - -
3months  24-Jun-20  22-Sep-20  4.50% Extended untit 200,000,000 200,000,000 -
March 21, 2021
3 months  11-Sep-20  10-Dec-20  3.75% Exiended until 200,000,000 200,000,000 -
March 10, 2021
3months  11-Sep-20 10-Dec20  3.75% Extended until 200,000,000 200,000,000 -
March 10, 2021
3months  6-Oct-20 4-Jan-21 3.70% No extension pariod 400,000,000 400,000,000 -
dmonths  12-Nov-20  10-Feb-21  3.50% No extension period 250,000,000 250,000,000 -
3months  10-Dec-20  10-Mar-21  3.50% No extension period 450,000,000 450,000,000 -
Sub-total 2,100,000,000 1,760,000,000 -
2019
& menths  14-Jun-19  11-Dec-19  5.75% Extended until 1,000,000,000 - 1,000,000,000
June 30, 2020
6 months  28-Mar-19  24-Sep-19  6.00% Extended unil 1,100,000,000 1,100,000,000 1,100,000,000
March 17, 2021
6 months 1-Aug-19 28-Jan-20 5.40% No extension period 125,000,000 - -
& months  14-Aug-19  10-Feb-20 5.30% Mo extension period 170,000,000 170,000,000
3 months 7-Oct-19 6-Jan-20 4.78% No extension period 250,000,000 - 250,000,000
Imonths  11-Dec-19  10-Mar-20  4.15% Extended until 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000
January 7, 2021
Sub-total 3,145,000,000 1,600,000,000 3,020,000,000
Total 3,300,000,000 3,020,000,000
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(b) SGCPI

On April 11, 2012, SGCPI obtained a 10-year term loan facility from a local bank amounting to
P10.00 billion to be used for the construction of SGCPI's hotel, serviced apartments and residential units
in Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

The principal amount of the loan shall be payable in 24 equal quarterly consecutive installments
commencing on the 17th quarter from the initial drawdown, with the last installments in an amount
sufficient to fully pay the loan. Interest shall be paid on each interest payment date for the relevant
interest period based on three-month treasury bill rate as published in the Bankers Association of the
Philippines Peso Bloomberg Valuation (PHP BVAL). The interest shall be based on the higher between
the PHP BVALrate plus spread of 0.75% per annum and the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) overnight

borrowing rate minus spread of 0.95% per annum. The SGCPI has the option to prepay the principal
amount and to fix the interest rate.

The Company is required to maintain a ratio of debt to tangible net worth, not exceeding 2.5:1 and debt
service cover ratio, greater than 1.1:1. As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the ratios of debt to tangible
net worth are 0.17:1 and 0.18:1, respectively, and debt service cover ratio of -2.10:1 and 14.21:1,
respectively. As at December 31, 2019, the Company has complied with these covenants. As at
December 31, 2020, SGCPI has not reached the debt-service coverage ratio requirement specified in the
loan agreement. SGCPI, however, was able to secure a waiver from the bank on the immediate
declaration of the loan as due and demandable.

The loan is secured by an absolute and unconditional continuing suretyship of the sureties namely,
Shangri-La Asia Limited and the Parent Company.

Subject to the negative covenants of the loan, from and after signing the loan agreement and for as long
as the loan is outstanding, SGCPI, without the prior written consent of the bank, shall not declare or pay
dividends to its shareholders (other than dividends payable solely in shares of its capital stock) if
payment of any sum due the bank is in arrears and shall not enter into any consolidation or merger,
except when in such consolidation or merger, SGCPI is the surviving entity.

On October 16, 2015, the parties executed an agreement to amend the spread rate from seventy-five basis
points (0.75%) to eighty-five basis points (0.85%).

On July 27, 2016, the parties agreed to amend the commitment period of the agreement which pertains
to the period from the date hereof to and including the earliest of (i) July 29, 2016, (ii) the date of the
commitment is fully availed by SGCPI or (iii) the date of the commitment terminates in accordance with
the terms of the amended agreement.

On September 16, 2016, the parties executed an amendment to the definition of the repayment date,
repayment provision, prepayment provision and repayment schedule. SGCPI shall repay the loan in

21 quarterly consecutive installments commencing on the 20th quarter from the initial drawdown with
the last installments in an amount sufficient to fully pay the loan.

In 2020, SGCPI prepaid P1.42 billion (2019 - P1.25 billion) prepayment to be applied to the subsequent
installments,

The loan is subject to a front-end fee of 25 basis points (0.25%) of the total principal amount. The
front-end fee is considered a transaction cost, which is allocated based on each drawdown and amortized
using effective interest rate. Debt issue costs also include the documentary stamp tax paid by SGCPI for
each drawdown. Average floating interest rates is 3.47% in 2020 (2019 - 5.37%).
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Outstanding balance of SGCPI's bank loans as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019
Bank fcan 1,200,000,000  1,450,000,000
Unamortized debt issue costs (3,827,870) (8,705,576)

1,196,172,130 1,441,294 424

In 2020, the SGCPI Company availed of the following short-term loans which are payable within a period
of 12 months-

_Date of loan Original loan Average interest rate Maturity date
22-Jun-20 50,000,000 5.15% 18-Mar-21
22-Jul-20 50,000,000 508% 16-Apr-21
14-Aug-20 50,000,000 4.88% 9-Aug-21
14-Sep-20 70,000,000 4.75% 12-Mar-21
14-Oct-20 70,000,000 4.75% 5-Mar-21
16-Nov-20 50,000,000 4.75% 9-May-21
25-Nov-20 50,000,000 4.75% 23-Feb-21
14-Dec-20 60,000,000 4.75% 12-Mar-21

450,000,000

Movements n SGCPI's bank loans for the years ended December 31 follow:

2020 2018

Principal amount

January 1 1,450,000,000  2,700,000,000

Payments (250,000,000 (1,250,000,000)

December 31 1,200,000,000  1,450,000,000
Debt issuance cost

January 1 {(8,705,576) (16,972,509)

Amortization 4,877,706 8,266,933

December 31 (3,827,870) (8,705,576)

1,196,172130 1,441,294 424

16.2 Installment payable

On November 2, 2015, TRDCI (asub  iary) entered into a contract with Vivelya Development Company,
Inc. (VDCT) (the land owner and seller) to purchase the land where I's project is currently being
constructed. The consideration for the land is for a minimum base price of P1.10 hillion, exclusive of 12%
VAT. Payment term for the purchase price includes down payment of fifteen percent (15%) of base price
amounting to P165 million, exclusive of 12% VAT, upon signing of the contract. The remaining balance of
the purchase price is interest free and payable on a quarterly mstallment basis. Accordingly, the
Company determined the fair value of the remaining installments using an appropriate market rate
which resulted in “Day 1 gain”.

As at December 31 2020, installment payable at amortized cost amounted to P142,751,080

(2019 - P443,917,972). Interest cost representing amortization of the Day 1 gain amounted to P674,538
in 2020 (2019 - P15,365,728; 2018 - P14,143,726) and has been capitalized as part of construction in-
progress. There is no unamortized Day 1 gain on installment payable in 2020 (2019 P674,538;

2018 - P16,040,267).

(28)



Note 17 - Deposits from tenants

This account represents non-interest bearing rental deposits from tenants equivalent to three to six
months' rent which have been discounted using applicable market rates and are carried at amortized
cost. The difference between the discounted and face value of the deposits is recognized as deferred lease
income. Deferred lease income is amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is recognized
in profit or loss as additional rent income. Interest is acereted on the deposits from tenants using the
effective interest rate method and is recognized as additional interest expense in profit or loss.

Details of deposits from tenants as at December 31 and their movements during the years are as follows:

2020 2019

At January 1, at face value 1,215,927,993 1,171,904 ,922
Net additions 41,143,365 44,023,071
At December 31, at face value 1,257.071,358 1,215,927,993
Day 1 difference (102,298,427) {97,183,062)
1,154 772 931 1,118,744 931

Current portion 614,727,181 391,914,057
Non-current portion 540,045,750 726,830,874

1,154,772,931 1,118,744 931

Details of deferred lease income as at December 31 and its movement during the years are as follows:

2020 2019

At January 1 92,655,255 74,862,625

Additions 43,220,638 55,479,274
Amortization {40,478,445) (37,686,644)

At December 31 05,397,448 92,655,255

Current portion 41,298 111 45,303,980

Non-current portion 54 080 337 47,351,275

95,397,448 92,655,255

The movements in the day 1 difference on deposits from tenants are as follows:

Note 2020 2018

At January 1 87,183,062 77,921,439

Additions 43,220,644 55,560,707
Accretion as interest expense 23 (38,105,279) (36,299,084)

At December 31 102,298,427 97,183,062

Note 18 - Equity

(a) Share capital, share premium and treasury shares

Details of share capital and share premium at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019
Authorized, at P1 par value per share
Common shares 8,000,000,000  8,000,000,000
Issued and outstanding shares
Common shares 4,764,058,982  4,764,058,982
Share premium 834,439,607 834,439,607

5,598,498,589  5,598,498,589

(29)



In 2007, the Board of Directors approved the redemption of 2,140,645 common shares at redemption
price of P3.20 per share or a total of P6,850,064 and the amount is presented as treasury shares in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The Parent Company is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). It was registered on June 13, 1991
with total listed shares of 4,764,058,982 which was initially issued at P1.18 per share. As at

December 31, 2020, the Parent Company has 5,191 shareholders (2019 - 5,200). The details of the Parent
Company's shareholders are disclosed in the annual report.

There were no subsequent listings since the initial listing with PSE.

(b) Retained earnings

As at December 31, 2020, total unrestricted retained earnings amounted to P30,053,959,054

(2019 - P29,329,234,160). The Group’s unrestricted retained earnings exceeded its share capital by
P24,455,460,465 (2019 - P23,730,735,571). The excess retained earnings include accumulated fair value
gain of P13,029,932,719 (2019 - P13,029,932,719) which are not considered available for dividend
declaration. The management of the Group plans to use the excess retained earnings to support the
Company’s working capital requirements, planned business growth and expansion strategies. Further the

Group annually declares dividends in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 11, Series of
2008.

Note 19 - Dividends

The Parent Company annually declares dividends in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular
No. 11, Series of 2008. The Parent Company's Board of Directors approved the declaration of the

following cash dividends for the years ended December 31 and until the approval of these financial
statements

Shareholders of record

Date of declaration as at Payment date Per share Toftal

2021
March 25 April 9 April 16 0.080 380,953,467

2020
April 1 April 7 April 24 0.113 535,715,813
August 20 September 8 September 18 0.004 209,524,305
0.117 745,240,118

2019
March & March 21 March 31 0.106 502,382,385
September 18 September 30 October 20 0.070 333,334,164
0.176 835,716,549

2018
March 15 March 31 April 14 0.126 597,352,351
September 4 September 19 September 28 0.070 333,334,235
0.196 930,686,586

At December 31, 2020, dividends payable presented in the consolidated statements of financial position
pertains to dividends declared by Parent company attributable to its shareholders amounting to
P52,609,087 (2019 - P47,544,516) and by KSA pertaining to its shareholders amounting to P21,422,305.

Movements in dividends payable as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
At January 1 47,544 516 42,683,650
Declaration 745,240,118 835,716,549
Payment (718,753,242) (830,855,683)
At December 31 74,031,392 47,544 516
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Cash dividends paid during 2020 include payment to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
amounting to P254,660,000 at P703.70 per share (2019 - P398,468,000 at P1,101.09 per share).

Note 20 - Cost of sales and services

The components of cost of sales and services for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

(a) Cost of condominium sales

Note 2020 2019 2018
Construction cost 1,009,565 675 1,633,629,913  1,959,124,761
Land 337,203,703 622,814,914 601,471,074
Project management 130,233,370 149,868,850 134,417 115
Commission expense 116,076,789 163,192 618 167,468,610
Design and professional fees 45,800,968 72,480,264 74,344 559
Permits and other expenses 17,420,837 18,839,484 18,584,167
Titting Cost 14,704,751 15,831,444 14,925 868
Sales and marketing expense 12,919,280 16,861,242 16 936,956

Makati Commercial Estate
Association (MACEA) fees B44 264 2,688 229 10,497,347
Insurance 230,858 731,423 2,790,766
6 1,685000,495 2,696,938 381 3,000,561,223

(b) Cost of rental and cinema

Note 2020 2019 2018
Real property taxes 71,448 462 55,170,244 54,233,974
Insurance 33,605,613 32,274,498 35,061,183
Share in common expenses (4,805,693) 81,948 325 157,118,180
10 100,248,382 169,393,067 246,411,337

(¢) Cost of hotel operations
Note 2020 2019 2018
Depreciation and amortization 12 1,074,039,063  1,080,551,476 1,018,566,761
Staff costs 251,279,123 404,965,369 306,053,518
Food and beverages 183,101,096 868,269,534 777,858,510
Utilities and maintenance 174,247 722 576,004,362 552,319,514
Supplies 40,026,659 74,127,636 84,914,282
Property tax and insurance 60,992 759 61,712,182 21,569,070
Qthers 67,691,696 147,045 883 262,501,940

1,851,378,118

3,212,676,342

3,023,783,595

Others consist of telephone, fax,

expenditures.

Note 21 - costs

The components of staff costs for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

postage, subscriptions, publications, and hotel guest entertainment

Note 2020 2019 2018

Salaries and wages 433,298,536 336,984,080 350,786,180
Employee benefits 42,873,601 95,230,365 37,893,004
Retirement benefits costs 24 38,105,630 37,765,035 38,161,019
Others 15,770,770 6,426,086 11,431,113
530,048,537 476,405 566 438,271,316
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Note 22 - Qther operating expenses

The components of other operating expenses for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Note 2020 2019 2018

Advertising 204,292,722 254,459,024 303,477,508
Professional fees 109,342,141 115,578,591 80,019,619
Donations 104,137,294 5,661,050 -
Provision for probable losses 28 100,150,239 - -
Systems license and maintenance 55,219,394 2,835,871 4,125,172
Janitorial, security and other services 42,028,997 53,786,048 41,819,127
Provision for restructuring 15 33,985,773 - -
Utilities 10,341,828 19,541,547 11,225,895
Provision for doubtful accounts 5 9,113,149 170,000 8,468,256
Condominium dues 7,932,018 3,624 674 6,045,247
Supplies 7,597,018 6,627,181 6,618,499
Telephone and communication 9,267,173 9,088,133 10,287,372
Carpark expense 6,112,036 6,542,921 6,922,036
Transportation and trave! 2,284 348 7,070,500 8,778,876
Repairs and maintenance 4,049,750 6,329,398 5,505,975
Membership fees and dues 1,859,897 2,734,398 2,920,660
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 1,305,347 2,553,423 3,054 537
Reproduction charges 1,224,319 1,459,364 1,083,391
Gas and oil 2,517,564 2,252,390 2,400,056
Rent 373,791 566,126 35,614
Commission 258,947 5,382,608 16,262,426
Subscriptions, books and manuals 252,883 - -
Others 26,720,455 8,693418 1,078,721
740,367,083 514,856,663 520,129,987

Donations in 2020 were made to various local government units and non-profit organizations as

response ta COVID-19 pandemic.

Systems license and maintenance in 2020 pertains to [T related management and license fees under the

hotel operations.

Note 23 - Interest income, other income, and interest expense and bank charges

The components of interest income, other income, and interest expense and bank charges for the years

ended December 31 are as follows:

{a) Interest income

Notes 2020 2019 2018

tnterest arising from:
Installment contracts receivable 5 299,782,769 166,691,384 127,423,327
Advances o a joint venture 8 64,322,935 - -
Cash in banks and cash equivalents 3 12,956,641 44,045 396 54,619,455
Overdue accounts from tenants 5,880,767 6,849,275 8,786,113
382,943 112 217,586,055 190,828,895
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(b) Other incorne, net

Note 2020 2019 2018

Income from reversal of liabilities 159,523,441 - 63,974,806
Administration and management fee 89,259,775 24,785,736 18,732,446
Forfeited security deposits 14,275,842 6,830,401 1,943,015
Dividend income 13,002,470 55,541,739 48,440,301
Insurance claims 9,380,908 - -
Signage fee 7,250,800 7,180,687 6,681,893
Income from back-out buyers 6,137,732 6,908,319 4,887 806
Income (loss) from ancillary services 4,359,118 8,057,028 (2,321,847)
Other rental revenue 3,755,357 312,500 2,500,000
Customer lounge fee 1,745,330 10,278,2 9,622 218
Banner income 4984 732 3,679,732 4,258,589
Gain on sale of property and equipment 357.806 1,050,728 206,643,583
Loss on fair value adjustments of

financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 4 (2,652,634) (5,145,472) (4,545,027)
Service revenue - - 4438616
interest and penalty for overdue accounts - - 869,109
Others 8,631 10,659,494 8,451,105

315,622,194 130,139,136 374,556,513

In November 2018, SGCPI sold its land rights with carrying value of 62,916,000 to a third party for a
total consideration of P269,640,000 resulting in a gain of P206,724,000.

Income from reversal of liabilities in 2018 and 2020 pertains to reversal of outstanding accruals for

various operating expenses of the Group.

Administration and management fees in 2020 include additional

services availed during the year.

(c) Interest expense and bank charges

property management and support

Notes 2020 2019 2018
Interest expense on bank loans 16 100,758 442 235,099,374 328,088,762
Accretion of interest on deposits
from tenants 17 38,105,279 36,299,084 29,810,487
Bank charges 742,851 940,453 842 460
139,646,572 272,338,911 358,741,709
Note 24 - Accrued emplovee benefits
Accrued employee benefits as at December 31 consist of:
2020 2019
Retirement benefit liability 85,328,539 55,093,909
Other employee benefits 4,469,520 51,116
89,798,058 55,145,025

Accrued employee benefits pertain to liability for tirement, leaves and other related benefits expected
to be settled more than 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period. Retirement asset
amounting to P9,721,578 as at December 31, 2020 (2019 - P25,320,182) (Note 14) is not offset against
the retirement liability as the retirement liabilities within the Group shall be settled on a per entity basis.



Retirement benefits

The Group, except SGCPI, has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit plan, providing death,
disability and retirement benefits for all of its regular employees. Under this plan the normal retirement
age is 60 years old and completion of at least five (5) years of service. Normal retirement benefit consists
of a lump sum benefit equivalent to 100% of the employee's final pay for every year of service,

The funds are administered by a trustee bank under the supervision of the Group’s Treasury Department.
The trustee bank is responsible for investment of the assets, The Pension Fund Board defines the
investment strategy as often as necessary, at least annually, especially in the case of significant market
developments or changes to the structure of the plan participants. When defining the investment
strategy, it takes into account the plans objectives, benefit obligations and risk capacity. The investment
strategy is defined in the form of a long-term target structure (investment poliey).

The retirement benefit obligation is determined using the “Projected Unit Credit Cost” (PUC) method.
Under the PUC method, the annual normal cost for the portion of the retirement is determined as the
amount necessary to provide for the portion of the retirement benefit aceruing during the year.

The actuarial present value of the retirement benefit obligation under the plan is measured in terms of
actuarial assumptions for discount rate, salary increases, retirement rates and mortality using the 2017
Philippine Intercompany Mortality Table. The discount rates used is a single weighted average rate based
on rates as published in the Bankers Association of the PHP BVAL at various tenors as at December 7
2018. Rate for intermediate durations were interpolated. The rates were then weighted by the expected
benefit payments at those durations to arrive at the single weighted average discount rate.

In 2016, SGCPI started an unfunded non-contributory defined benefit plan. The terms of this plan are
the same with those of first plan described above.

The plan typically exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

(a) Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated using a discount rate determined by
reference to high quality corporate bond vields; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, 1t will create
a plan deficit. Currently the plan's investments are in the form of investments in debt instruments and
cash deposits to universal and commercial banks. Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the
board of the pension fund considers it appropriate that reasonable portion of the plan assets is invested
in investments in debt instruments and cash deposits to universal and commercial banks.

(b) Interest rate risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using single weighted average rate based on PHP-BVAL rates. A decrease in rate will
increase the defined benefit obligation. Hence, the present value of defined benefit obligation is directly
affected by the discount rate to be applied by the Group. However, the Group believes that due to the
long-term nature of the pension benefit obligation, the investment holdings of the plan is an appropriate
element of the Group’s long-term strategy to manage the plan efficiently.

(c) Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of

the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan ‘ will increase the retirement benefit obligation.



(d) Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference to the future salaries of

plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the retirement
benefit obligation.

The management performs an Asset-Liability Matching Study (ALM) annually. The overall investment
policy and strategy of the Group's defined benefit plans is guided by the objective of achieving an
investment return which, together with contributions, ensures that there will be sufficient assets to pay
retirement benefits as they fall due while also mitigating the various risk of the plans. The Group's

current strategic investment strategy mainly consists of treasury notes and bonds accounting for 99% of
the total plan assets.

The Group actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching
the expected cash outflows arising from the pension obligations. The Group has not changed the
processes used to manage its risks from previous periods. The Group does not use derivatives to manage
its risk. Investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not have a
material impact on the overall level of assets.

The Group’s plan assets consist of investment in debt instruments and cash in banks. The Group believes
that equities offer the best returns over the long term with an acceptable level of risk.

The actuarial valuation of the Group s retirement plan was performed by an independent actuary. The
latest actuarial valuation report prepared was for the year ended December 31, 2020. The principal
assumptions used by the actuary for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Discount rate 3.31% 4.63% 7.29%
Salary ncrease rate 3.00% 4 00% 5.00%

The retirement benefit assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position as part of “other non-current assets” and “accrued employee benefits” amount to Pg,721,578 and
P85,328,539, respectively (2019 - P25,320,182 and P55,003,909).

The summary of the total defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at December 31 are as
follows:

2020 2019
Fair value of plan assets 210,913,555 225,085,966
Present value of defined benefit obligations {(286,520,516) (254,859 693)

(75,606,961) (29,773,727

The movements in the remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligations under other components of
other comprehensive income as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position for the years
ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
At January 1 (42,210,303) {37,974,006)
Remeasurements {10,606,162) (4,236,297)
(52,816,465) (42,210,303)

Deferred income tax effect 15,494 402 16,768,658
At December 31 (37,322,063) (25,441,645)
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Below is the analysis of the movemenits in the retire

ment benefit obligation for the vears ended

December 21:

2020 2019
At January 1 29,773,727 44,042,834
Remeasurement loss 10,606,162 4,236,297
Contributions - (52,653,236)
Benefits paid directly by the Group (1,333,401) (3.617,203)
Transfers (1,545,157) -
Retirement benefits costs 38,105,630 37,765,035
At December 31 75,606,961 29,773,727

The components of retirement expense for the years ended December 31 recognized in the consolidated
statements of total comprehensive income included under staff costs account are as follows:

Note 2020 2019 2018

Current service cost 32,092,941 36,399,571 27,435 307

Past service cost 785,741 456,690 -

Net interest cost 5,677,615 896,734 1,004,454
Net acquired obligation arising from

transfer of employees (450,667) 12,040 721258

expense 21 38,105,630 37,765,035 38,161,019

Changes in the present value of the defined be

nefit obligation for the years ended December 31 are as

follows:
2020 2019
At January 1 254 859,693 225,003,009
Interest cost 10,373,503 13,562,194
Current service cost 36,498,332 35,433,759
Past service Cost 7857 1 456,690
Net acquired obligation (450,667) 12,040
Benefits paid directly by the Group (25,716,226) (26,688,536)
Transfers (1,545,157) -
Remeasurement iosses (gains) from:
Experience adjustments 4,195,231 (7,311,570)
Change in demographic assumptions (305,738) 7,328 441
Changes in financial assumptions 7,825 804 7,063 666
At December 31 286,520,516 254,859 693
Changes in the fair value of plan assets for the vears ended December 31 are as follows:
2020 2018
At January 1 225,085,966 180,960,175
Interest income 5,336,087 11,699,649
Losses on return on plan assets 1,109,135 2,844 241
Benefits paid from plan assets (24,617,633) (23,071,335)
Contributions - 52,653,236
At December 31 210,913,555 225,085,966

Apart from the benefit payments to certain
contributions to the plan as presented abov

had no other transactions with the plan.
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Details of plan assets as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Cash banks 2,613,797 9,853,357
Money market deposits and trust funds 16,356,944 23,264,717
Investments in equity 26,188,270 24,892 867
Investments in debt instruments:
Treasury notes and bonds 139,513,715 136,661,982
Corporate notes and bonds 26,240,829 30,413,043

210,913,555 225,085,966

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group’s plan assets (investment in debt instruments) are

determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market (classified as Level 1 in the fair
value hierarchy).

There are no plan assets invested in related parties as at and for the vears ended December 31, 2020 and
2019.

Expected contribution to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending December 31, 2021 amounts
to P16,643,010.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 12.62 years.

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefits as at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Less than a year 56,185,350 51,032,384
Between one and five years 139,766,630 111,053,585
Over five years 779,773,075 840,841,184

975,725,055  1,002,927,163

Critical accounting estimate - Determining retirement benefit obligation

The Group maintains a qualified defined benefit retirement plan. The calculations of retirement costs of
the Group are dependent upon the use of ass including discount rates, expected return on plan
assets, interest cost, future salary increases, benefits earned, mortality rates, the number of employee
retirements, the number of employees electing to take lump-sum payments and other factors,

Actual results that differ from assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and,
therefore, generally affect recognized expense and the recorded obligation * future periods. While the
Group believes that the assumptions used are reasonable, differences in actual experience or changes in
assumptions may materially affect the Group’s retirement obligation and future expense,

In determining the long-term rates of return, the Group considers the nature of the plans’ Imvestments,
an expectation for the plans’ investment strategies, historical rates of return and current economic

forecasts. The Group evaluates the expected long-term rate of return annually and adjusts such rate as
necessary.
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The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions are as

follows:

increase (decrease)

2020 2019
Discount rate
Increase by 1.0% (117,986,079)  (110,173,475)
Decrease by 1.0% 131,100,542 120,701,943
Salary increase rate
Increase by 1.0% 130,735,717 121,847,005

Decrease by 1.0% (114,906,838)

(110,165,758)

The sensitivity is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method
at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the retirement benefit
asset/liability recognized within the consolidated statements of financial position. The methods and
types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prio years.

Note 25 - Income taxes

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31 follows:

2020 2019 2018

Current 483,630,844 934,619,771 834,860,295
Deferred (79.414,984) 120,190,611 436,901,272
404,215,860  1,054,810,382  1,271,761,567

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as at December 31 consist of:

2020 2019
Deferred income tax assets:

Net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) 480,772,099 43,974,721
Advance rentals 120,525,165 115,174,430
Difference in profit, installment method versus PoC methad 41,601,548 175,403,239
Deferred lease income 54,669 952 56,415,939
Accrued expenses 50,072,440 58,003,879
Accrued employee benefits 22,022,125 19,321,592
Unamortized funded past service cost 20,439,350 12,381,686
Guest and banquets prepayments and deposits 14,523,540 31,882,983
Minimum corporate e tax (MCIT) 9,213,894 7,139,458
Allowance for doubtful accounis 4,437 822 4,349,528
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange 732,285 502,183
Others 16,816,990 6,356,675
835,834,210 530,906,313

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Unrealized increase in fair value of investment property (7,880,926,838) (7,767,798,971)

Difference in profit, installment method versus PoC method
Difference between cost of condominium sales for accounting

(415,560,246)

(301,700,661)

and income tax purposes (40,321,738) (40,321,738)
Unrealized increase in fair value of FVOCI (14,969,103) (46,669,624)
Day 1 difference on deposits fro  tenants (8,618,386) (7 480,744)
Rent income per PFRS 16/PAS 17 (8,855,258) (4,297,419)
Interest income (18,833,333) -
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange (640,099) (867.,416)
QOthers - (58,081)

(8,388,725,001) (8,169,194 664)
Net deferred income tax liabilities (7,552,890,791) (7,638,288,351)




The balances of deferred income tax assets and liabilities presented in the consolidated statements of

financial position are netted on a per entity basis as follows:

2020

2019

Peferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities

465,150,772

(8,018,041,563)

226,921,795

(7,865,210,146)

{7,552,890,791)

{(7,638,288,351)

Realization of the future tax benefits related to the deferred income tax assets is dependent on many
factors, including the Group’s ability to generate taxable income in the future. The Group’s management

believes that the related future tax benefit will be realized.

Movements in net deferred income tax liabilities for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2020

2019

At January 1 (7,638,288,351) (7,533,435,132)
Charged to profit or loss 79,414,984 {115,901,408)
Credited to other comprehensive income 5,982,576 15,337,392
Expired MCIT - (4.289,203)
At December 31

(7,552,890,791)

(7.638,288,351)

The details of unrecognized deferred income tax assets on NOLCO at December 31 which could be
carried over as deductible expense from taxable income for three (3) consecutive years following the year

of incurrence are as follows:

Year incurred Year of expiry 2020 2019

2017 2020 - 153,931,742

2018 2021 95,193,368 95,193,368

2019 2022 16,799,864 16,799,864

2020 2025 353,902 384 -
465,895,616 265,924,974

Unrecognized DTA at 30% 139,768,685 79,777,492

In compliance with the Tax Reform Act of 1997, the Group is required to pay the MCIT or the normal

income tax, whichever is higher. The Group’s MCIT incurred in 2016 amounting to P4,289,203 expired
in 2014.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate and the effective
income tax expense as shown in the consolidated statements of total comprehensive income for the years

ended December 31 follows:

2020 2019 2018
Tax at statutory rate of 30% 547 738,693 1,342,973,723 1,449 712,807
Additions (reductions) to income fax
resulting from;
Unrecognized NOLCO 106,170,715 22,368,423 101,296,815
Other non-deductible expenses 35,259,005 11,113,270 -
Expired MCIT - 4,289,203 4,710,808
MCIT - 1,092,499 -
Interest income subjectied to final tax (3,886,994) {13,213,618) {15,985,699)
Dividend income (3,900,741) (16,662,522) {14,266,769)
Share in net losses of associates (55,660,066) {30,371,134) -
Other non-taxable income (79,024,949) (57.516,306) {(86,486,328)
Difference between itemized and
optional standard deductions (OSD) (142,479,803) (208,263,156) (167,220,158)
Effective income tax expense 404,215,860 1,054,810,382 1,271,7681,567
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Income tax payable amounted to P124,336,401 as at December 31, 2020 (2019 - P250,763,007).

Critical accounting judgment - Income tax

A certain degree of judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes, as there are
certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business.

The Group recognizes liabilities for tax audit issues when it is probable. The liabilities are based on
estimates whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Further, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and

reduces them to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Group expects to generate
sufficient future taxable profits to allow all of its recognized deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Event after reporting date - Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives Jor Enterprises Act (CREATE)

The Bicameral Conference Committee, under the 18th Congress of the Philippines, approved the
reconciled version of the House Bill No. 4157 and Senate Bill No.1357 or the CREATE. The Committee
report on CREATE was ratified by the Senate and House of Representatives on February 3, 2021. Among
the salient provisions of CREATE include changes to the Corporate Income Tax (CIT) as follows:

* Reduction of CIT rate to 20% applicable to domestic corporations with total net taxable income not
exceeding P5 million and with total assets not exceeding P10o million (excluding land on which the
business entity’s office, plant and equipment are situated);

* Reduction of CIT rate to 25% shall be applicable to all other corporations subject to regular CIT; and

e  Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate shall also be amended to 1%, instead of 2%, for the period
beginning July 1, 2020 until June 30, 2023.

As at December 31, 2020, the CREATE bill is still pending ratification by both the Philippine Congress
and Senate, and consequently pending approval of the President of the Republic of the Philippines. As
such, the Company has assessed that the proposed tax law is not enacted or substantively enacted as at

December 31, 2020. For financial reporting purposes, the enactment of CREATE after the reporting date
is deemed non-adjusting subsequent event.

Had the reduced CIT rates been applied on the December 31, 2020 financial statements of the Company,
the reduced income tax rate would have resulted in lower deferred tax liabilities, net, lower income tax

expense, and higher net income. As at report date, an estimate of the financial effect of the CREATE law
cannot be made vet.

Note 26 - Basic and diluted earnings per share

The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended Decermber 31 are as
follows:

2020 2019 2018
Net income attributable to the shareholders of
Parent Company 1,469,965,012  3,056,001,858  3,012,328,190
Divided by the average number of outstanding
common shares 4,761,918,337  4,761,918,337  4,761,918,337
Basic and diluted earnings per share 0.309 0.642 0.633
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Basic and diluted earnings per share are the same due to the absence of dilutive potential common
shares.

Note 27 - Related party transactions

In the normal course of business, the Group transacts with companies which are considered related
parties. Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or under common control with the Group, including holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties e Group.

The transactions and outstanding balances of the Group with its related parties as at and for the years
ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Outstanding Qutstanding
receivables receivables
Transactions (payables) Transactions {payables) Temns and conditions
Affiliates
Rental income (a) (Noie 5) 29,072,896 6,420,241 111,637,754 30,792,405  Balances to be collected in
cash and are due generally
within 30 to 60 days. These
are non-interest bearing and
are not covered by any
sacurity.
Affiliates
Management services (b) 25,284,920 26,540,621 24,026,178 20,770,331  Balances to be collected in
Reimbursed expenses (f) 3,780,125 1,184,864 6,765,396 713,542  cash and are due generally
Affiliates share in Group's 323,231,434 420,199 422 within 30 days. These are
expenses (g) 303,029,278 262,057,718  nen-interest bearing and are
not covered by any security.
Advances (d) - 1,144 187 533 - 1,144,187,553  Balances to be collected in
cash and are generally due
on demand. These are non-
interest bearing and are not
covered by any security.
Associates
Associates’ share in
Group's expenses (g) 1,653 5,706,273 4,580 5,704,579  Balances to be collected in
cash and are due generally
within 30 days. These are
non-interest bearing and are
not covered by any security.
Total {(Note 5) 1,604,238 974 1,464,226,125
Affiliates

Marketing, management
and other service fees (c) 27,589 496 (27,589,256) 89,841,412 (18,971,458) Balances are to be settled in

Condominium dues (&) 9,041,815 (4,475,323} 4,935,070 (1,570,482) cash and are generally due
Group's share in affiliates’ within 30 days. These
expenses (g) 170,934,662 {140,492,088) 218,423,222 (79,947.313) batances are non-interest

bearing and not covered by
any guaraniee.

Total (Note 15) {172,556,667) {100,489 253)

Affiliates pertain to entities that are not part of the Group but have common directors or key
management personnel.

All individual material related party transactions shall be approved by at least two-thirds (2/3) vote of
the Board, with at least a majority of the independent directors voting to approve the material related
party transaction. In case that a majority of the independent directors’ vote is not secured, the material
related party transaction may be ratified by the vote of the stockholders representing at least two-thirds
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Parent Company. For aggregate related party transactions
within a twelve-month period which breaches the materiality threshold of ten percent (10%) of the
Group’s fotal assets, the same board approval shall be required for the transaction that meets and
exceeds the materiality threshold covering the same related party.



Directors with personal interest in the transaction shall abstain from participating in the discussions and
voting for the same. In case they refuse to abstain, their attendance shall not be counted for the purposes
of assessing the quorum and their votes shall not be counted for purposes of determining approval.
Significant agreements with related parties are as follows:

(a) A portion of the Parent Company's land is bemg leased by ESHRI, where the EDSA Shangri-La,

Manila is located. The lease is for a period of 25 years commencing on August 28, 1992 and
renewable for another 25 years at the option of ESHRI. On August 16, 2017, the agreement was
renewed by ESHRI for another 25 years until August 27, 2042. Rental revenue is based on a fixed
percentage of ESHRI's room, food and beverage, dry goods and other service revente.

(b) Shang Property Management Services, Inc. (SPMSI) provides management services to The

(c)

Enterprise Center Condominium Corporation (TECCC), St. Francis Shangri-La Place Condominium
Corporation (TSFSPCC), The Shang Grand Tower Condominium Corporation (TSGTCC), and One
Shangri-La Place Condominium Corporation (OSPCC) for a minimum period of five years starting
January 7, 2009, April 1, 2010, January 7, 2007, and J anuary 1, 2015 respectively. As consideration,
SPMSI shall receive from TECCC, TSGTCC, TSFSPCC, and OSPCC monthly management fees of
P400,000, P100,000, P100,000, and P250,000 respectively, inclusive of VAT, with an escalation

rate of 5% to 10% per annum. The parties mutually agreed to renew the agreements for another 5
years upon expiration.

SGCPI entered into a License Agreement with Shangri-La International Hotel Management Limited
(SLIM-BV) for the use of intellectual property rights over Shangri-La’s policies, practices,
procedures, and guidelines affecting different aspects of operations of the Shangri-La chain of hotels,
The agreement is for 10 years commencing on the opening date, March 1, 2016, renewable for
another 10 years at the option of either parties and subject to the approval of the Bureau of Patents,
Trademarks and Technology Transfer of the Republic of the Philippines and applicable authorities.
In consideration for such access and use, SGCPI pays SLIM-BV license fees and royalties. License
fees paid to SLIM-BV is equivalent to $100 per annum while royalties are computed at 3% of the
gross operating revenue per annum payable within 30 days of the end of each calendar month.

Further, in 2 SGCPI entered into a Marketing and Reservations Agreement with SLIM, whereby
the related party acting as an independent contractor of SGCPI provides marketing, communication,
and reservation services to promote SGCPL The agreement is for a period of 10 years commencing on
the opening date, March 1, 2016, renewable for another 10 years at the option of either parties. Under
this agreement, SLIM shall act solely for the account of SGCPI and all expenses incurred shall be
borne by SGCPL. As a consideration for such services, SGCPI shall pay SLIM an amount equivalent to
certain percentage of gross operating revenue. Other charges include reservation, loyalty program,
communication, and other group services fees. Basis of these various charges are stipulated in the
Marketing and Reservations Agreement.

{d) The outstanding balance as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounting to P1,144,187,554 represents

(e
63

cash advances made by Classic Elite Holdings Limited from the Parent Company for working capital
and project development.

Condominium dues charged by TSFSPCC and TECCC to Parent Company, KSA, SPDI and SPRC.
Reimbursement of expenses paid for by SLPC for ESHRI.

Certain other general and administrative expenses are initially paid for by the Group/affiliate and are
subsequently reimbursed by the affiliate/ Group to whom such payment was intended for.



There were no write-offs or provisions made in relation to related party transactions and balances not
eliminated during consolidation as at and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. The
following are the significant transactions and outstanding balances with retirement fund and key
management personnel as at and for the years ended December 31:

2020 2019

Qutstanding Outstanding
receivables receivables
Transactions (pavables) Transactions (payables)  Terms and conditions

Retirement fund

Contributions - 52,853,236 - Referto Note 24,

Advances 1,333,401 - 3,617,203 - Balance pertains to claims
fram the retirement fund in
relation to employee benefits
directly paid by the Group.

Key management persannel:
Salaries and other shori- 79,387,790 -
term employee benefits 81,719,074 - Salaries and wages are

settled in cash at the period
incurred. Other short-term
benefits are payable within
the current year. There were
ne stock options or other
long-term benefits provided in
2020 and 2019 nor amounts
due toffrom key management
personnel as at
December 31, 2020 and
2018.

Post-employment benefits 5,063,313 5,589,282 - Refer fo Note 24.

The following related party transactions and balances were eliminated for the purpose of preparing the
consolidated financial statements:

2020 2019 2018

At December 31
Trade and other receivables 13,221,433,467 12,770,869,974 13,233,821,564
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 13,221,433,467 12,770,869,974 13,233,821,564
For the years ended December 31

Rental revenue 89,620,954 244,211,871 231,848,991
Cost of sales and services 4674713 4,722 185 4.422 383
Operating expenses 397,888,017 656,566,364 246,196,006
Other income 199,948,889 273,682,354 101,211,223
Dividend income 2,732,934,200 2,281,532,000 1,389,324,000

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries are a party to significant agreements with related parties as
follows:

(a) A portion of the Parent Company's land where the Shangri-La Plaza Mall is located is being leased to
SLPC. The lease is for a period of 25 years from January 6, 1993. On September 19, 2017, the
agreement was renewed by both parties to another 5 years until January 6, 2023. Rental revenue is
based on a certain percentage of SLPC's annual rental revenue from mall operations and certain
percentage of the carpark’s net income. Rental revenue of the Parent Company amounted to
P47,381,177 in 2020 (2019 - P113,770,373; 2018 - P118,077,382).

On January 16, 2002, SPSI entered into an agreement with the Company and SLPC. Under the
agreement, SPSI is granted limited usufructuary rights over the parking spaces of the Company and
SLPC for a consideration equivalent to 95% of SPSI’s gross revenue less direct and indirect expenses
relating to the Company’s parking facilities. The agreement is effective until December 31, 2002 and
shall be renewed automatically on a yearly basis.
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(b) SPRC and SLPC entered into a memorandum of agreement whereby SLPC will operate the mall
establishment and constitute it as the East Wing of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall. The lease is for a
period of five years from October 1, 2013 and renewable upon mutual agreement by the parties.
Rental revenue is based on a certain percentage of SLPC's annual rental revenue from the mall
operations plus a certain percentage of the carpark’s net income.

(¢) OnJanuary 1, 2009, SPSI entered into an agreement with KSA, whereby SPSI is to manage and
operate the parking slots of KSA. The agreement is renewable upon mutual agreement by the parties.

The monthly gross parking revenue, less applicable VAT, is shared between KSA and SPSI at 75% and
25%, respectively.

(d) KSA entered into a management agreement with SPMSI for a monthly fee of P150,000 with 10%
annual escalation for a period of five years starting March 2008. The parties agreed mutually on the
renewal of the agreement. SPMSI shall provide on-site property leasing management including head
office support services and periodic audit to ensure compliance with international practices; perform
staif recruitment, training and performance evaluation; and perform financial management,
Including billing and collection and budget provisioning,

(e} In 2011, SPDI obtained an unsecured, noninterest-bearing loan from SHIL amounting to
P2,317,500,000, payable on demand. As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, this loan is still
outstanding.

(f) The Parent Company's dividend income from declarations of its subsidiaries are as follows:

2020 2019 2018
KSA 595,340,000 931,532,000 742,424,000
SLPC 225,000,000 725,000,000 525,000,000
SPDI - 70,000,000 50,000,000
NCRI 20,000,000 35,000,000 51,000,000
SWWPI 175,000,000 - -
KRC 400,000,000 - -
SPMSI 15,500,000 13,000,000 13,000,000
SPSI 2,500,000 7,000,000 7,900,000
SPRC - - B
TRDCI 1,289,594,200 500,000,000

2,732,934,200  2,281,532,000 1,389,324,000

In 2019 and 2020, TRDCI declared cash dividends amounting to P500,000,000 and P1,299,594,200 to
KRC respectively. The declaration was eliminated under both dividend income in the statement of total

comprehensive income and dividends declared under equity in the statement of financial position. There
were no similar transactions by TRDCI in 2018

The receivables and payables between related parties, except for those arising from reimbursement of
expenses and those that are unsecured and noninterest bearing which are payable on demand, have
normal credit terms of 30 to 9o days, but may go beyond as agreed.

Note 28 - Provisions and contingencies

On July 14, 1993, a complaint was initially filed before the Regional Trial Court (RTC) - Pasig by the
principal contractor of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall against the Parent Company and the Board for the
recovery of the balance of alleged unpaid construction work, compensatory and moral damages, legal
fees and litigation costs totaling about P122,000,000, exclusive of interest.

In 1998, the parties were directed by the RTC to undergo arbitration which resulted in promulgation in

2007 of the Arbitral Tribunal to be awarded to the principal contractor the sum of 38,518,503, net of
the award to Parent Company amounting to P8,387,484.
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Both parties appealed this decision to the Court of Appeals (CA) in 2008. In a resolution issued in 2009,
the CA awarded to the principal contractor P24,497,556, unpaid progress billings based on the original
scope of work, and denied the Parent Company of its motion for partial reconsideration.

In 2009, both the Parent Company and the Principal Contractor filed a Petition for Review in Certiorari
to the Supreme Court. The Parent Company prayed for a reversal of the decision of the CA and for
payment of liquidated damages by the Principal Contractor. On the other hand, the Principal Contractor
filed a motion to modify the decision of the CA and to be awarded the full amount of their claim. Both
petitions are pending resolution by the Supreme Court as of March 25,2021,

The Parent Company and SLPC have other pending legal cases which are being contested by the Parent
Cornpany, SLPC and their legal counsels. Management and the legal counsels believe that the final
resolution of these cases will not have a material effect on the Group's financial position and results of
operations.

Critical accounting estimate - Prouvision

As at December 31, 2020, the Group recognized provision for a certain tax assessment (Note 15 and 22).
The estimate of the probable costs for the resolution has been developed in consultation with outside
legal counsel handling the Group's defense in this matter. Disclosure of additional details beyond the
present disclosures may seriously prejudice the Company's position. Thus, as allowed by PAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, only general disclosures were provided.

Critical accounting judgment - Contingencies

The Parent Company and SLPC are currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimates of the
probable costs for the resolution of these claims have been developed in consultation with the outside
legal counsel handling the defense in these matters and are based upon analyses of potential reports.
Based on management's assessment, these proceedings will not have a material effect on the Group's
financial position and performance.

Nole 29 - Advance rentals

Advance rentals are collected from all tenants depending on the agreed terms stated in the contracts
which are usually equivalent to three months’ rent and can be applied at the terminal months of the
lease. The current portion is included as part of accounts payable and other current liabilities account
(Note 15) and the non-current portion is shown separately in the consolidated statements of financial
position. Movements in the account for the year ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019

At January 1 383,914,764 319,264,957

Additions 56,566,473 97,868,384
Applications (38,730,686)  (33,218.577)

At December 31 401,750,551 383,914,764

Advance rentals for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Note 2020 2019

Current 15 168,788,961 271,914,158

Non-current 232,961,590 112,000,606

401,750,551 383,914,764

(45)



Note 30 - Finaneial risk and capital management

30.1 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price
risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by the
Group’s management under policies approved by its Board of Directors. These policies cover financing
structure, foreign exchange and interest rate risk management, guarantees and credit support, as well as

treasury control framework. There are no changes in the Group's risk management plans for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

30.1.1 Market risk

{a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s exposure on currency risk is minimal and limited only to foreign currency denominated cash
in banks and cash equivalents. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates of these assets are not
expected to have a significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.

The Group’s foreign currency denominated cash in banks and cash equivalents as at and net foreign
exchange gains for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are disclosed in Note 3.

{(b) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price risk is minimal and limited only to financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 4) and FVOCI (Note 11) presented in the consolidated statements of financial
position. Changes in market prices of these financial assets are not expected to have a significant impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.

(¢} Cuash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to risk that the value of a financial instrument will fiuctuate due to changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments include bank loans (Note 16).
Loans amounting to P1,646,172,130 as at December 31, 2020 (2019 - P1,441,2094,424) have interest rates
that are based on the higher between the PHP BVAL rate plus 0,75% per annum and the BSP overnight
borrowing rate. A loan amounting to P4,233,333,334 as at December 31, 2020 (2019 - P4,486,666,667)
has an interest rate subject to repricing every 30 to 180 days as agreed by the parties.

The Group's interest rate risk management policy focuses on reducing the overall interest expense and
exposure to change in interest rates, Changes in market interest rates relate primarily to the Group's
long-term loans with floating inferest rates as it can cause a change in the amount of interest payments.

Interest on financial instruments with floating rates is repriced at intervals of less than one year. The
other financial instruments of the Group are not subject to interest rate risk. The Group invests excess
funds in short-term placements in order to mitigate any increase in interest rate on borrowings.

At December 31, 2020, if interest rates on bank loans had been 100 basis points lower or higher with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been higher by/lower by
P58,795,054 (2019 - higher by/lower by P59,279,611) mainly as a result of lower/higher interest expense
on floating-rate bank loans. Management uses 100 basis points as threshold in assessing the potential
impact of interest rate in the operations.



The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of each
reporting period. The sensitivity rate in the analysis is the same rate used in reporting inferest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents the Group’s best estimate of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

30.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. Credit risk arises from cash deposits with banks, as well as credit exposure to

customers and suppliers.

Exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these financial assets. The Group has no significant concentration on credit

risk.

The Group’s financial assets are categorized based on the Group’s collection experience with the

counterparties as follows:

a. Performing - settlements are obtained from counterparty following the terms of the contracts without

history of default.

b. Underperforming - some reminder follow-ups are performed to collect accounts from counterparty.

c. Non-performing - evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable
data: significant financial difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract such as a default or being
more than 120 days past due; or it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganization.

The following tables summarize the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets per category and aging
analysis of financial assets as at December 31:

Under Non-
Performing performing performing
{Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
2020
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,542,884,690 - - 1,542,884,690
Trade and other receivables 4,996,338,314 - 23,020,320 5,019,358,634
Financial assets ai fair value 33,626,210 33,626,210
through profit or loss - -
Refundable deposits 2,897,511 - - 2,897,511
Non-current assets
Advances 1o a joint venture 1,000,000,000 - - 1,000,000,000
Refundable deposits 136,967,397 - - 136,967,397
Financial assets at FVYOCI 797 568 466 - - 797,568,496
8,510,282 618 - 23,020,320 8,533,302,938
2019
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2.617,190,108 - - 2,617,190,108
Trade and other receivables 5,219,296,083 - 14,498,427 5,233,794,510
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or foss 36,278,844 - - 36,278,844
Refundable deposits 3,537,728 - - 3,537,728
Non-current assets
Advances to a joint venture 1,000,000,000 - - 1,000,000,000
Refundable deposits 132,838,523 - - 132,838,523
Financial assets at FVOC! 803,668,496 - - 803,668,496
9,812,809,782 . 14,498,427 9,827,308,208




There are no collaterals held as security or other credit enhancements attached to the Group’s financial
assets,

Allowance for impairment of receivables as at December 31, 2020 amounted to P23,020,320
(2019 - P14,498,427). Apart from the financial assets covered by allowance, the remaining financial

assets are classified as high performing.
The credit quality of the Group’s financial assets is discussed below.

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group's treasury department 1n accordance with
the Group's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties to mitigate
financial loss through the counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

As at December 31, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are deposited in the following types of
financial institutions as approved by the Board of Directors:

2020 2019
Universal banks 1,345,437 1,378,727,558
Thrift banks 131,661,552 1,216,460 383
Commercial banks 65,785,165 22,002,167

1,542,884,690  2617,190,108

Cash in banks and cash equivalentsas  December 31, 2020 and 2019 are all considered high grade
financial assets. The remaining cash in the consolidated statements of finaneial position pertains to cash
on hand which is not exposed to credit risk (Note 3).

(b} Recewables

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables since the Group has a large number of
counterparties involved.

Trade receivables

Sales of residential condominium units that are on installment basis are supported by post-dated checks
from the buyers. Titles to properties sold are not released unless full payment is received. In case of
leasing operation, tenants are subjected to credit evaluation and are required to put up security deposits
and pay advance rentals, if necessary. For the hotel operation, hotel guests who wish to avail of a credit
line are subjected to the normal credit investigation and checking. References are required including
review of the customer's financial po  on and earnings. Approval of a credit line is performed by the
Finanaial Controller and the General Manager. A guest may not be given a line, but special ad hoc
arrangements are allowed. It usually requires deposits, prepayments or eredit card guarantees as

collaterals. Existing credit lines are reviewed annually. The balances due from customers are considered
as high-grade financial assets.



The Group applies the PFRS g simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The loss allowance as at December 31, 2020 and
2019 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

More than More than More than
30 days 60 days 120 days
Current past due past due past due Total
December 31, 2020
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 0% 100%
Trade receivables 3,324,9682,596 - - 23,020,320  3.348,002.916
Loss allowance - - - 23,020,320 23,020,320
December 31, 2619
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 0% 100%
Trade receivables 3,681,871,445 - - 14,498,427 3,696,369,872
Laoss allowance - - - 14,498 427 14,498,427

The Group's receivables classified as current did not have history of loss arising from contract with
customers as it is able to repossess the sold property consequent to customer’s inability to pay the
transaction price. The Group believes that this assessment is adequate and reasonable in view of the
credit quality of contract receivables. Accordingly, the expected credit loss on these fully performing
contract receivables is deemed insignificant for financial reporting purposes.

Non-trade receivables

The credit exposure on nontrade receivables is considered to be minimal as there is no history of defaults
and collections are expected to be made within 30 to 60 days. In respect of balances due from related
parties, management considered the credit quality of these receivables to be good based on financial
condition of the related parties.

(c) Refundable deposits

Refundable deposits include cash required from the Group for the on-going constiuction and utilities
maintenance. This is refundable at the end of the lease term. Refundable deposits are reflected at their
carrying amounts which are assumed to approximate their fair values. Considering the balance and
average term of outstanding lease arrangements, management believes that the impact of discounting is
not significant. Refundable deposits are considered as high performing financial assets.

30.1.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents in order to fund its operations. The Group
monitors its cash flows and carefully matches the cash receipts from its operations against cash

requirements for its operations. The Group utilizes its borrowing capacity, if necessary, to further bolster
its cash reserves.

The table below analyzes the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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The following table shows the Group’s financial instruments as at December 31 based on its contractual
maturity profile:

0 - 80 days 91 - 180 days 181 - 360 days  Beyond 360 days Total
At December 31, 2020

Bank loans 1,810,000,000  1,840,000,000 633,333,333 1,696,172,130 5,879,505,463

Accounts payable and
other current liabllities*  3,935.419,915 - - - 3,935,419,915
Deposits from tenants - - 614,727,181 540,045,750 1,154,772,931
Instaliment payable - 142,751,080 - - 142,751,080
Dividends payable - 74,031,392 - - 74,031,392
Future interest payable 41,722 437 36,918 244 56,903,492 119,429,891 254,974,059
§,787,142,347 2 093,700,716 1,304,964,006 2255647771 11,441,454 840

At December 31, 2019

Bank loans 1,045,000,000  2,100,000,000 408,333,333 2,374,627,758 5,927,961,091

Accounts payable and
other current liabitities*  3,650,622,393 - - - 3,650,622,393
Deposits from tenants - - 381,914,057 726,830,874 1,118,744,931
Installment payable - 443917972 - - 443 917,972
Dividends payable - 47,544 516 - - 47 544 516
Future inferest payable 50,133,376 39,842,876 74,584,916 254,974 059 419,535,227
4,745,755769  2,631,305,364 874,632 306 3,356,432,681  11,608,326,130

“excluding advance rentals. contract liabilities, customers’ deposits, reservation payable, output VAT, deferred output
VAT and payable to government agencies and provision for restructuring

30.2 Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating, comply with externally imposed capital requirements, and maintain healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximize shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. There were no changes in the Group’s
strategies and policies during 2020 and 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt, including long-term loan less cash
and cash equivalents, divided by capital. Capital pertains to total equity less non-controlling interest. The
gearing ratio as at December 31 is presented below:

2020 2019

Net debt
Long-term loan 5,679,505 464 5,927,961,091
Less: cash and cash equivalents 1,549,970,914 2.640,088,900
4,329,534 ,550 3,287,872,191

Capital

Total equity 41,674,367 167 41,270,138,878
Less: Non-controlling interest 5,950,341, 446 6,254,206,015
35,724,025,721  35,015,932,863
Gearing ratio 12.12% 9.39%

The Group was able to meet its capital management objectives.

Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Group is required to comply with certain financial
covenants. Details of the Group's compliance with these covenants are disclosed in Note 16.



30.3 Fair value measurement

The Group follows the fair value measurement hierarchy to disclose the fair value measurements of its
financial instruments. The table below summarizes the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s

assets and liabilities at December 31:

Fair value measurement using

(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3} Total
20290
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss 33,626,210 = - 33,626,210
Investment properties:
Land - = 15,905,946,923  15,905,946,923
Buildings - = 19,007,926,142  18,007,926,142
Financial assets at FVOCI:
Quoted 27,950,000 = o 27,950,000
Unguoted - - 769,618,496 769,618,496
Assets for which fair values are disclosed
Financial asset at amertized cost
Refundable deposits - 136,967,397 - 136,967,397
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
Installment payable - 142,751,080 - 142,751,080
Depasits fram lenants - 1,154,772,931 - 1,154,772,931
2019
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 36,278,844 - - 36,278,844
Investment properies:
LLand - - 15,253,910,509 15,253,910,599
Buildings - - 17,649 ,466,169 17,649 466,169
Financial assets at FVOCI:
Quotied 33,958,500 - - 33,958,500
LUnguoted - - 769,709,996 769,709,996
Assets for which fair values are disclosed
Financial asset at amortized cost
Refundable deposits - 132,838,523 - 132,838,523
liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
Installment payable - 443917 972 - 443,917 972

Deposits from tenants

1,118,744 931

1,118,744,931

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There have been no assets and liabilities transferred among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during 2020 and

2019.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is based on quoted market prices at

the reporting date.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, accounts payable and other current
liabilities, accrued employee benefits and dividends payable

Due to the short-term nature of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, accounts payable

and other current liabilities, dividends payable and accrued employee benefits, their carrying values were
assessed to approximate their fair values.

a0



(¢} Installment contracts receivable

The fair value of instaliment contracts receivable is based on the discounted value of future cash flows
using applicable rates for similar instruments.

(d) Refundable deposits and deposits from tenants

The fair value of deposits from tenants was based on the present value of estimated future cash flows
using applieable market rates at the reporting date. Discount ranges from 1.71% to 8.26% as at
December 31, 2020 (2019 - 2.45% to 8.26%).

(e) Financial assets at FVOCI

Refer to Note 11 for the methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of financial assets at
FVOCI as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

(f) Bank loans

The carrying value of the bank loans with variable interest rates approximates their fair value because of
recent and quarterly repricing based on market conditions.

(g) Investment properties

Refer to Note 10 for the methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of investment
properties as at December 31, 2020 and 20109.

Note 31 - Summary of significant accounting and financial reporting policies

31.1 Basis of preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards, as modified by the application of the following financial reporting reliefs

for real estate companies issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission in response to the COVID1g
pandemic:

» Assessing whether the transaction price includes significant financing component (SFC);

» TImpact of implementing IFRIC Agenda Decision on Over Time Transfers of Constructed Goods
under PAS 23, Borrowing Cost.

The reliefs cover only current-year transactions and events and do not impact the comparative periods.
The term PFRS in general includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and
interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Committee
(SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been
approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted by SEC.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as

modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, investment properties
and financial assets at FVOCI.



The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity,

or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

Determination of fair values of investment properties (Note 10)

Useful lives of property and equipment (Note 12)

Determining retirement benefit obligation (Note 24)

Estimation of percentage-of-completion of the Group’s projects (Note 6)
Recoverability of investment and advances (Note 8)

Joint control assessment (Note 8)

Distinction between properties held for sale, investment properties, and property and equipment
{Note 10)

Revenue Recognition (Note 6)

Estimation of net realizable value of properties held for sale (Note 6)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 13)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Note 12)

Contingencies (Note 28)

Classification of leases as operating lease (Note 10)

Income tax (Note 25)

31.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Group
The Company has adopted certain amendments for the first-time effective January 1, 2020:

Definition of Material - Amendments to PAS 1 and PAS 8

Definition of a Business - Amendments to PFRS 3

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Amendments to PFRS 7, PFRS g and PAS 39
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

Covid-19-related Rent Concessions — Amendments to PFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have material impact on the amounts recognized in the current
and prior periods and is not expected to significantly impact future periods.

(b) Deferral of implementation of amendment to existing standard and interpretations

i. Deferral of the following provisions of PIC Q&A Nos. 2018-12 and 2018-14 until December 31,
2020

On October 29, 2018 and February 8, 2019, the SEC issued SEC Memorandum Circular No. 14
Series of 2018 and SEC Memorandum Circular No. 3 Series of 2019, respectively, providing relief
to the Real Estate industry by deferring the application of the following provisions of PIC Q8&A for
a period of three years until December 31, 2020. In SEC Memorandum Circular 34 Series of 2020
issued on December 15, 2020, the SEC concluded that the relief for the following provisions would

remain until December 31, 2020 only and shall be effective January 1, 2021. The Group availed the
following reliefs:
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ii.

a2

a.

Accounting for Common Usage Service Area (CUSA) charges discussed in PIC Q&A
No. 2018-12-H, which was approved by the FRSC on February 14, 2018

The PIC Q&A 2018-12 concluded in its principal vs. agent analysis of the real estate
developers’ performance obligation based on the definition of control as well as the indicators
of control based on the fact pattern that the entity acts as a principal for the provision of air-
conditioning services, common use service areas and administration and handling services.
The conclusion of PIC Q&A No. 2018-12H allows the consideration of an alternative
presentation wherein CUSA may be presented outside of topline revenues if these are not
considered as main source of revenue and are not material or as “Other income” net of costs if
the gross amount of revenue and related costs are not individually material. Currently, CUSA
charges to mall tenants are presented as a reduction to costs and expenses in the consolidated
statement of total comprehensive income (Note 31.23).

Accounting for Cancellation of Real Estate Sales discussed in PIC Q&A 2018-14, which was
approved by the FRSC on October 10, 2018

The PIC Q&A 2018-14 provided two (2) acceptable approaches to account for the sales
cancellation and repossession of property which are to recognize the repossessed property at
its fair value less cost to repossess, or to recognize the repossessed property at its fair value
plus repossession cost., PIC, in its letter to the industry dated November 11, 2020, concluded
that a third option to record repossessed inventory at cost upon cancellation is allowed, based
on the view that such cancellation is treated as a modification of the contract (i.e., from non-
cancellable to being cancellable).

Currently, upon cancellation of the real estate sales, the Group recognizes the repossessed
inventory at its carrying amount and derecognizes the related receivables and gross profit
previously recognized. This is in accordance with the third option allowed by the PIC. The
adoption of this provision did not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Deferral of the following provisions of PIC Q&A 2018-12 and TFRIC Agenda Decision on Over
Time Transfer of Constructed Good (PAS 23, Borrowing Costs) until December 31, 2023

On December 15, 2020, the SEC issued SEC Memorandum Circular No. 34 Series of 2020 to
further extend the deferral provided under SEC under Memorandum Circular Nos, 14-2018, 3-
2019 and 4-2020 for another period of three (3) years or until December 31, 2023, to afford the
industry reasonable time to evaluate the impact thereto or as the SEC will later prescribe. This
decision is pursuant to RA 11494, Bayanihan to Recover as One Act which allows the SEC to

adopt measures o enable companies to cope with the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. The
Group availed the following reliefs:

a.

Assessing whether the transaction price includes SFC

There is SFC in the contracts to sell when there is a mismatch between the POC of real estate
projects and schedule of payments. PIC, in its response to the industry dated November 11,
2020, allows the Real Estate Industry to provide support to their specific payments schemes
that there is no SFC, if the difference between the promised consideration and the cash
selling price of the good or service arises for reasons other than the provision of finance.

In the event of the existence of SFC, interest income would be recognized when the POC is
ahead of the customer payments and interest expense would be recognized when the
customer payments are ahead of the POC. The Group has initially assessed, however, that the
timing difference arising from existing sales contracts does not necessarily result in a
significant financing component.

Impact of implementing IFRIC Agenda Decision on Over Time Transfers of Constructed
Goods under PAS 23, Borrowing Cost



In March 2019, IFRIC published an Agenda Decision on whether borrowing costs can be
capitalized on real estate inventories that are under construction and for which the related
revenue will be recognized over time under par. 35(c) of IFRS 15. IFRIC concluded that
borrowing costs cannot be capitalized for such real estate inventories as they do not meet the

definition of a qualifying asset under IAS 23 considering that these inventories are ready for
their intended sale in their current condition.

Had the Group adopted the IFRIC agenda decision, borrowing costs capitalized as part of real
estate inventories related to projects with pre-selling activities should have been expensed
out in the period incurred, A restatement would have impact on interest expense and bank
charges, cost of sales and services, income tax expense, properties held for sale, deferred
income tax liabilities, net and opening balance of retained earnings.

(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations to existing standards are
effective for annual periods after January 1, 2020 and have not been early adopted nor applied by the
Group in preparing these financial statements. None of these standards are expected to have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

31.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group as at

December 31, 2020 and 2019. The subsidiaries’ financial statements are prepared for the same reporting
year as the Parent Company. The Group uses uniform accounting policies, any difference between
subsidiaries and the Parent Company are adjusted properly,

The Group is composed of the subsidiaries listed below:

Ownership %
Nature and name of entity 2020 2019 2018
Property development:
Shang Properties Realty Corporation (SPRC) 100 100 100
Shang Property Developers, Inc. (SPD)) 100 100 100
The Rise Development Corporation, Inc. (TRRCH) 100 100 100
Shang Wack Wack Properties, Inc. (SWWPI) 100 100 100
SPI Property Holdings, Inc. (SPI-PHI) 100 - -
SPI Property Developers, Inc. (SPI-PDI) 100 - -
SP! Land Development, Inc. (SPI-LDI) 100 - -
Hotel operation:
Shang Global City Properties, Inc. (SGCPI) 60 60 60
Leasing:
SPI Parking Services, Inc. (SPS)) 100 100 100
Shangri-la Plaza Corporation {SLPC) 100 100 100
KSA Reaity Corporation (KSA) 70.04 70.04 70.04
Real estate:
Ivory Post Properties, Inc. (IPPI) 100 100 100
KPPt Realty Corporation (KRC) 100 100 100
Martin B Properties, Inc. (MBPI) 100 100 100
New Contour Realty, Inc. (NCRI) 100 100 100
Perfect Sites, Inc. (PSI) 100 100 100
Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, Inc. (SFBH) 100 100 100
Shang Global City Holdings, Inc. (SGCHI) 100 100 100
Sky Leisure Properties, inc. (SLPI) 100 100 -
Property management:
KPPl Management Services Corporation (KMSC) 100 100 100
Shang Property Management Services, inc. (SPMSI) 100 100 100
Qther supplementary business:
Gipsey, Ltd. (Gipsey) 100 100 100
Silver Hero Investments Limited (SHIL) 100 100 100

EPHI Logistics Holdings, Inc. (ELHI) 60 80 60




Except for Gipsey and SHIL, which were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (BVI) and use Hong
Kong dollars (HK$) as their functional currency, all the other subsidiaries were incorporated and
registered in the Philippines which use Philippine Peso as their functional currency.

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the
subsidiary undertakings held directly by the Parent Company do not differ from the proportion of
ordinary shares held.

The summarized financial information of subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interest as at and
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are disclosed in Note 9.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. These are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group also assesses the existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting
power by virtue of de facto control. De facto control may arise in circumstances where the size of the

Group’s voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders give the Group
control over the investee.

Whenever the Group obtains control of one or more other entities, it assesses whether the acquired group
of net assets constitutes a business. In assessing whether a transaction is an acquisition of a business or
assets, the Group identifies the elements in the acquired group, assesses the capability of the acquired
group to produce outputs, and assesses the capability of a market participant to produce outputs if
missing elements exist. If the assets acquired are not a business, the Group accounts for the transaction
or other event as an asset acquisition.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognized armounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s

previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognized in accordance with PFRS g either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its
subsequent settlement is not accounted for within equity.



If the excess of the consideration is transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acguiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration is
transferred, non-controlling interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognized directly in profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions - that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when conirol is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial earrying amount for purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

(d) Associates and joint ventures

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognized at
cost in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafier to recognize the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group increases its stake in an existing associate and gains control in that investment, the
invesiment becomes a subsidiary. When the entity obtains control of the investment (an investor controls
an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee) that was previously
accounted for under equity method, the carrying amount of the investment in associate is derecognized

and the assets and liabilities acquired are recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements at
acquisition date.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.



Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity

accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

If the ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the investments and its carrying value and recognizes the amount adjacent to
‘share in net earnings of associates’ in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive income. The

carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 31.13.

Dilution gains and losses arising from investments are recognized in profit or loss. Investment in
subsidiaries and associates are derecognized upon disposal. Gains and losses on disposals of these

investments are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in
profit or loss.

31.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks that earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of

cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

31.5 Financial instruments
31.5.1 Classification of financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

 those to be measured subsequently at fair value either through other comprehensive income (“OCI”)
or through profit or loss, and

o those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group

has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCL

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

31.5.2 Measurement of financial assets
At Initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to

the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed
in profit or loss.
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Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which
the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those eash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other
income, net, together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment Josses are presented in
other general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of total comprehensive
income,

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost consist of cash and cash equivalents (Note 3), trade
and other receivables (Note 5), refundable deposits under prepaid taxes and other current assets
(Note 7) and other non-current assets (Note 14) in the consolidated statements of financial position.

* FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in other
income, net. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other income, net,
and impairment expenses are presented in other general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of total comprehensive income.

The Group does not have debt instruments at FVOCI as at December 31, 2020.

» FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in profit or
loss and presented within other income, net, in the period in which it arises.

The Group does not have debt instruments at FVTPL as at December 31, 2020,
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Group’s policy is to designate equity
investments as FVOCI when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate investment
returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when
representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The Group’s financial assets measured at FVOCI represent unquoted shares of stock of related parties

and quoted investments in various golf club shares and stocks. These are separately shown in the
consolidated statements of financial position (Note 11).
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Dividends are recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is established, it is probable the
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount can be measured reliably. Dividends are
recognized in profit and loss unless they clearly represent recovery of a part of the cost of the investment,
in which case they are included in other comprehensive income. Changes in fair value are recognized in

other comprehensive income and are never recycled to profit and loss, even if the asset is sold or
impaired.

31.5.3 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the PFRS g simplified approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade

receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of counterparties over a period of 36 months
before January 1, 2019 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has assessed that the
impact of forward-looking information on the loss rates applied is immaterial.

Impairment losses on receivables are presented in other general and administrative expenses
consolidated statement of total comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries are credited to other
income.

31.5.4 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories: financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (including financial liabilities held for trading and those that designated at fair value); and
financial liabilities at amortized cost. The Group did not measure its financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss as at December 31, 2020.

Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss fall into this category and
are measured at amortized cost.

The Group’s accounts payable and other current liabilities (excluding advanced rental, contract liabilities
customers’ deposits, reservation payable, output VAT, deferred output VAT and payable to government
agencies) (Note 15), installment payable (Note 16), deposits from tenants (Note 17), dividends payable
{Note 19), accrued employee benefits (excluding retirement benefits) (Note 24} and bank loans (Note 16)
are classified under financial liabilities at amortized cost.

2

31.5.5 Initial recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date {the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset).

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at
fair value plus transaction costs. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognized at fair value, and transaction costs are recognized as expense in profit or loss.

The Group recognizes a financial liability in the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.
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31.5.6 Day 1 difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction
price and fair value (a Day 1 difference) in the profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some
other type of asset. In cases where the data used are not ohservable, the difference between the
transaction price and model value is only recognized in the profit or loss when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the
appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 difference.

31.5.7 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have

expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation is discharged is cancelled or has expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

31.5.8 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable 'n the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty. There
are no offsetting arrangements as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

31.6 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables arising from regular sales with credit term of 30 to 60 days and other receivables are
recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at cost using the effective interest method,
less any provision for mpairment.

The Group applies the PFRS ¢ simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognized within operating expenses in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive
income. When a receivable remains uncollectible after the Group has exerted zll legal remedies, it is
written-off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written-off are credited against other general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of total comprehensive income.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before
January 1, 2019 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroecongmic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

Refer to Note 31.5 for other relevant accounting policies on trade and other receivables.



31.7 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are properties being constructed or acquired for sale in the ordinary course of
business, rather than for rental or capital appreciation, and are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value (NRV). NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based
on market prices at the reporting date, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs to sell.

Cost of condominium units held for sale represents accumulated costs of the unsold units of the
completed projects. Cost includes those directly attributable to the construction of the projects such as
cost of land, direct materials, borrowing costs, professional and consultancy fees, and project
management costs, which are allocated to the unsold units.

Cost of construction in progress represents the accumulated costs for the construction and development
of the ongoing projects. It includes those that are directly attributable to the construction of the projects
such as cost of land, direct materials, borrowing costs, professional and consultancy fees, and project
management costs.

Properties held for sale are derecognized when they are sold or there are no future benefits to the Group.
The carrying amount of those properties held for sale is recognized as an expense, reported as cost and
expenses in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.

31.8 Prepaid taxes and other assets

Input VAT, which represents taxes arising from purchases of goods and services, are carried at face
amount or at nominal amount less allowance for impairment loss. This is derecognized when applied
against output tax, when written off or when actual refund is received. When input VAT is derecognized,
its cost and accumulated impairment losses, if any, are eliminated from the account.

Creditable withholding taxes are carried at face amount or at nominal amount. Creditable withholding
taxes are included in current assets, except when these are expected to be utilized more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period, in which case these are classified as non-current assets.
Creditable withholding taxes are derecognized when utilized or applied against income tax due.

Prepayments are expenses paid in cash and recorded as assets before they are used or consumed, as the
service or benefit will be received in the future. Prepayments expire and are recognized as expense either
with the passage of time or through use or consumption.

Other current assets include assets that are realized as part of the normal operating cycle and are
expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period.

Restricted fund represents cash deposit with a third party for a purchase of a property. Restricted fund is
derecognized upon full payment to the third party. The Group then determines whether the property is to

be classified as property held for sale, an investment property, or property and equipment depending on
the usage of the property.

31.9 Investment properties

Investment property is defined as property held by the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for: (a) use in the production of supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the common course of business.

The Group’s investment property, principally comprising of properties in Mandaluyong and Makati City

are held for capital appreciation and is not occupied by the Group. The Group has adopted the fair value
model for its investment properties (Note 10).
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After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value as determined by an independent
firm of appraisers. Fair value is based on direct income capitalization approach and market comparison
approach, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed annuaily
by the independent appraiser. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as

investment property or for which the market has become less active continues to be measured at fair
value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognized in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive income under
gain on fair value adjustment of investment properties.

An investment property is derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position on disposal

or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal.

Removal of an item within investment property is triggered by a change in use, by sale or disposal. If an
investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property and equipment (Note 31.11),
and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Gain or loss
arising from disposal is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset. Gain or loss on disposal is recognized in profit or loss in the period of the disposal.

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property is classified as
investment property.

Impairment of investment properties is discussed in Note 31.13.

31.10 Real estate development projects

Real estate development projects are undertaken by the subsidiaries and are carried at cost less any
impairment in value. Cost primarily consists of acquisition cost of the property being constructed, air
rights, expenditures for the development and construction of the real estate project and borrowing costs
incurred, if any, in the acquisition of qualifying assets during the construction period and up to the date
of completion of construction.

31.11 Property and equipment

Property and equipment, except land rights, are stated at historical cost less depreciation and
amortization, and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items, which comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of total comprehensive income within other general and
administrative expenses during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Land rights are not depreciated. Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives (in years), as follows:

Building and leasehold improvements 25 or lease term,
whichever is shorter

Transpertation equipment 305

Furn ture, fixtures and other equipment 2t05

Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

The assets’ residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed periodically, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 31.13).

The carrying amount of an item of property and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal at which time the cost and related accumulated
depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognized under other income or expense in the consolidated statément of
total comprehensive income.

Depreciation or amortization ceases at the carlier of the date when the asset is classified as either
investment property or property held for sale and the d  the asset is derecognized.

Fully depreciated and amortized property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no
longer in use, and no further depreciation and amortization are charged to the consolidated statement of
total comprehensive ncome.

31.12 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any NCI in the acquired company and the acquisition-date fair value of any

previously-held interest in the acquired company over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash generating units (CGUs), or groups of CGUS, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Fach unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level. Gains and losses on the disposal of a subsidiary include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.



31.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that have definite useful lives are subject to amortization and are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Value in use requires the Group to make estimates of future cash flows to be
derived from the particular asset, and to discount them using a pre-tax market rate that reflect current
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable CGUs.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increase should not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had not the impairment loss been recognized for the asset or CGU in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income immediately.

31.14 Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable and financial liabilities at
amortized cost are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, these are presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable and other current liabilities are measured at the original invoice amount as the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

Relevant accounting policies for classification, recognition, measurement and derecognition of accounts
payable and other current liabilities and financial liabilities at amortized cost are presented in Note 31.5.

31.15 Deposits from tenants

Deposits from tenants are carried at the present value of future cash flows using appropriate discount
rates. The difference between the present value and the actual deposit received is treated as additional
rental incentive which is recorded under "deferred lease income" in the consolidated statement of

financial position and are recognized as rental income using the straight-line method over the term of the
lease.

31.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)

and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised within interest expense and bank charges in
the consolidated statement of total comprehensive income.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized and charged to
profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred. The Group decided to avail relief issued by the SEC
per Memorandum Circular No. 4-2020. The SEC provided for the relief to the real estate industry by
deferring the implementation of IFRIC Agenda Decision on Over Time Transfer of Constructed Goods
(PAS 23) until December 31, 2020 (Note 31.2).

31.17 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of a non-financial asset is measured based on its highest and best use. The asset’s current
use is presumed to be its highest and best use.

The fair value of financial and non-financial liabilities takes into account non-performance risk, which is
the risk that the entity will not fulfill an obligation.

The Group classifies its fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

* quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);
* inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2); and

= inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

The appropriate level is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry company, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1. The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and listed financial assets at
FVOCI financial assets are classified under Level 1 category.

The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the asset or
liability is included in Level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3. The Group’s unlisted financial assets at FVOC] financial

assets, refundable deposits, installment payable and deposits from tenants are included in
Level 3.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and applies the technique
consistently. Commonly used valuation techniques are as follows:

» Market approach - A valuation technique that uses prices and other relevant information generated
by market transactions involving identical or comparable (i.e., similar) assets, liabilities or a group of
assets and liabilities, such as a business.

* Income approach - Valuation techniques that convert future amounts (e.g., cash flows or income and
expenses) to a single current (i.e., discounted) amount. The fair value measurement is determined on
the basis of the value indicated by current market expectations about those future amounts.
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» Cost approach - A valuation technique that reflects the amount that would be required currently to
replace the service capacity of an asset (often referred to as current replacement cost).

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

» Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

e The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves.

o The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at
the reporting date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

» Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

31.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense comprises current and deferred income taxes. Tax is recognized in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date where the Group operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

In the sale of condominium units resulting in recognition of installments contracts receivable, full
recognition for income tax purposes is applied when more than 25% of the selling price has been
collected in the year of sale. Otherwise, the installment method is applied.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realized, or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred incorme tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of
unused tax losses (net operating loss carryover or NOLCO) and unused tax credits (excess minimum
corporate income tax or MCIT) to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilized. The

Group reassesses at each reporting date the need to recognize a previously unrecognized deferred income
tax asset.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse

in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary difference can be
utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized in full for all taxable temporary differences, except o the
extent that the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally, the Group is unable {o control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place can the Group control the reversal of
the temporary difference that was not recognized.



Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are derecognized when relevant temporary differences have
been realized and settled, respectively. The Group reassesses at each reporting date the need to recognize
previously unrecognized deferred income tax asset.

31.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.
Provisions are derecognized when the obligation is paid, cancelled or has expired.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized

even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, the reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive income within
the same line item in which the original provision was charged.

31.20 Equity
(a) Share capital
Share capital consists of common shares, which are stated at par value, that are classified as equity.

Share premium is recognized for the excess proceeds and subscriptions over the par value of the shares
issued.

(b) Treasury shares

Where any member of the Group purchases its own equity share capital (treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any directly atiributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Parent Company’s shareholders until the shares are cancelied,
reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Parent Company’s shareholders.

(¢) Retained earnings

Retained earnings include current and prior years’ results of operations, net of transactions with
shareholders and dividends declared, if any.
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{d) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to Parent Company’s shareholder is recognized as a liability in its financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors.

3t.21 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner as basic earnings per share, however, profit
attributable to common shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential common shares.

31.22 Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefits

The Group maintains a defined benefit retirement plan determined by periodic actnarial calculations.
This defined benefit retirement plan is funded through payments to a trustee-administered fund and
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. A defined benefit plan is a retirement plan that defines an
amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit
retirement plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. In cases when the amount determined results in a surplus (being an
excess of the fair value of the plan assets over the present value of the defined benefit obligation), the
Group measures the resulting asset at the lower of: (a) such amount determined; and (b) the present
value of any economic benefits available to the Group in the form of refunds or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest of government bonds
converted into zero coupon rates that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity which approximate the terms of the related retirement liability.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial

assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the
case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
the reporting date are discounted to present value.
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(c) Short-term employee benefits

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for short-term employee benefits which include salaries,
paid sick and vacation leaves and bonuses. Bonuses are based on a formula that takes into consideration
the resulting qualified profits. The Group recognizes a provision when contractually obliged or when
there is a past practice that has created a constructive cbligation.

Liabilities for employee benefits are derecognized when the obligation is settled, cancelled or has expired.
31.23 Income and expense recognition

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific eriteria in order to determine if it is

acting as a principal or as an agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as the principal in all

of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has inventory
risk and pricing latitude.

The following specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue and expenses are recognized;

Revenue
(a) Revenue from condominium sales

The Group develops and sells condominium units. Under a contract to sell a condominium unit, the
object is the property itself, which is the normal output of a real estate business. In addition, this contract
contains information such as the coniracting parties’ rights and payment terms, which are essential
elements for a valid revenue contract. The Group assesses that contract must be signed by the contracting
parties to make it enforceable prior to revenue recognition. Also, the developer assesses the commereial
substance of the contract and the probability that it will collect the consideration. Collectability of the
contract price is demonstrated by the buyer’s commitment to pay, which is supported by the buyer's
initial and continuous investments that motivates the buyer to honor its obligation.

Contracts to sell condominium units are written on a lump sum payment basis or installment basis which
include 10-20% reservation, down payments with installment terms ranging from 1-5 vears.

The Group satisfies its performance obligation as it develops the property. In accordance with PFRS 15
and Phlpp Interpretations Committee (PIC) 2016-04, the Group considers that the Group’s
performance does not create the asset with an alternative use to the Group and it has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date. Therefore, revenue is recognized over time, i.e. as the
related obligations are fulfilled, measured principally using the output method on the basis of the
estimated completion of a physical proportion of the contract work. Land and materials delivered on site,
such as steels, rebars and elevators, which are yet to be installed/attached to the main structure, are
excluded from the percentage-of-compietion.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract, except for contracts where the
timing difference between the construction period and payment by the customer exceeds one year. In
such contracts, the Group assessed that it is necessary to adjust the transaction price for the effects of a
significant financing component as required by PIC Q&A 2018-12, but the Group decided not to adjust
the transaction e and availed the relief issued by the SEC per Memorandum Circular No. 3-2019
dated February = 2019. The SEC provided relief to the real estate industry by deferring the application of
the provisions of C Q&A 2018-12 for a period of three (3) years until January 1, 2021. For completed
projects, revenue from condominium sales are recognized in full (ie. point in time) once the Group
assessed that the contract meets all criteria for revenue recognition.



Under the sales contract, customers are required to pay the transaction price (in the form of progress
billings) over a certain period of time. Any excess (deficit) of collections over the recognized revenue are
recognized as contract liabilities under accounts payable and other current liabilities (installment
contracts receivable under Trade and other receivables, net) as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Payments received from potential buyer to provide exclusive rights to buy a specific condominium unit

under certain conditions and up to specified period are treated initially as a Hability and are recognized
as part of “customers’ deposits” under accounts payable and other liabilities. These deposits are applied
as payment of the transaction price as soon as the revenue recognition criteria are met.

Cost of condominium sales include upfront costs such as land costs and connection fees, which are
accounted for as fulfiliment costs, and development costs which contribute to the construction progress
of the development project. Fulfillment costs are recognized as contract assets arising from fulfillment
costs to the extent that such costs give rise to resources that will be used in satisfying performance
obligations in the future and that are expected to be recovered, These costs are included in properties
held for sale in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such contract assets are amortized as
cost of condominium sales consistent with the revenue recognition method applied, subject to
impairment up to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds (a) the remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive; less (b) direct costs that have not been recognized as
expenses. Development costs are recognized as expense as the work to which they relate is performed.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract to sell condominium units include commissions paid to sales or
marketing agents. Fixed monthly living allowance, transportation allowance provided to real estate
agents and commissions paid prior to signing of contracts to sell are expensed outright. Commissions
paid after signing of contracts are recognized as contract assets arising from costs to obtain a contract
presented as “prepaid commission’ under prepaid expenses and other current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. These are amortized as cost of condominium sales consistent with the
revenue recognition method applied.

The cost of inventory recognized in profit or loss on disposal (cost of condominium sales) is determined
with reference to the specific and allocated costs incurred on the sold property taking into account the
POC. The cost of condominium sales also includes the estimated development costs to complete the
condominium, as determined by the Group’s in-house technical staff, and taking into account the POC.
The accrued development costs account is presented under “accounts payable and other current
liabilities” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Estimated loss on unsold units is recognized in profit or loss immediately when it is probable that total
project costs will exceed total contract revenue.

Condominium units arising from cancellation of contracts to sell are initially measured by the Group
based on its original carrying amount at the time it was sold. The Group decided to avail the relief issued
by the SEC per Memorandum Circular No. 3-2019 dated February 8, 2019 deferring the application of
the provisions of PIC Q&A 2018-14 for a period of three (3) years until January 1, 2021.

(b} Rental

Rental income from operating leases (the Group is the lessor) is recognized as income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term or based on a certain percentage of gross revenue of the lessees,
whichever is applicable. When the Group provides incentives to its lessees, the cost of incentives are
recognized over the lease term, on a straight-line basis, as a reduction of rental income.

‘When the revenue recognition criteria are not met, cash received from lessees are recognized as advance
rentals, until the conditions for recognizing rental income are met.
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(c) Hotel operations

Hotel revenue from room rentals, food and beverage sales, and other ancillary services are recognized
when the services are rendered. Revenue from other ancillary services include, among others, business
center and car rental, laundry service, telephone serviee and health club services. The services rendered
are distinct performance obligations, for which prices invoiced to the guests are representative of their
stand-alone selling prices. These obligations are fulfilled over time when they relate to room rentals, that
is over the stay within the hotel, at a point in time for other goods or services, when they have been
delivered or rendered.

Costs of hotel operations are expensed as incurred. These include expenses incurred for the generation of
revenue from food and beverage sales, room rentals, and other ancillary services.

(d) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss for all interest-bearing financial instruments
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

Once a financial asset or a Group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognized when earned, net of final withholding tax.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is established, which is
generally when the Board of the investee company approved the dividend.

(f) Other income

Administration and management services, customer lounge fees, banner income, income from cinema
operations and other service income are recognized when the related services have been rendered.
Revenues from auxiliary services such as handling, sale of scrap materials, import break bulk and
brokerage are recognized when services are provided or when goods are delivered. Money received or
amounts billed in advance for rendering of services or delivery of goods are recorded as unearned income
until the earning process is complete.

(g) Cost and expenses
Cost and expenses are recognized when these are incurred.

CUSA charges to mall tenants are presented as a reduction to costs and expenses in the consolidated
statement of total comprehensive income. The Group decided to avail the relief issued by the SEC per
Memorandum Circular No. 3-2019 dated February 8, 2019. The SEC provided relief to the real estate
industry by deferring the application of the provisions of PIC Q&A 2018-12-H for a period of three (3)
years until January 1, 2o021. (Note 31.2)
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31.24 Leases
(a} Group is the lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease or based on a certain percentage of gross revenue of the lessees, whichever is applicable. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Assets under these

arrangements are classified as investment property in the consolidated statement of financial position
(Note 31.9).

(b) Group is the lessee

The Group has adopted PFRS 16 Leases using the modified retrospective approach from January 1, 2019,
as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard {Note 31.2).

Aside from exemptions in the standard for short-term and low-value leases which are recognized as
operating leases under the provisions of PAS 17, lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. Payments for leases of properties and office equipment are discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Accounting policies applied until December 31, 2018

Leases, where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments, Each lease payment is
apportioned between the liability and finance charges using the effective interest method. Finance
charges are reflected in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive income through profit or loss.
Rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in liabilities in the consolidated statement of

financial position. The property and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term,

Leases, in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor, are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive income through profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

31.25 Foreign currency transactions and translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic envircnment in which the Group operates (the functional currency). The

consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Group.
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(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Philippine Peso using the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of Gipsey and SHIL, foreign subsidiaries with functional and
presentation currency of Hong Kong dollar, are translated into Philippine Peso at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their income statements are translated at exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are
recognized in other components of equity. On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the component of other
components of equity relating fo that particular foreign subsidiary is recognized in profit or loss.

31.26 Related party relationships and transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control the other party, directly or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between and/or among entities
which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between and/or among the reporting
enterprises and their key management personnel, directors, or its shareholders. In considering each

possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not
merely the legal form.

31.27 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. These operating segments are the basis upon which the Group reports its
segment information presented in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies used to recognize and measure the segment’s assets, liabilities and profit or loss
is consistent with those of the consolidated financial statements.

31.28 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent

assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

31.29 Events after the reporting period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the reporting date

(adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Map of the Group of Companies within which the Reporting Entity Belongs
As at December 31, 2020
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Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Financial Soundness Indicators
As at December 31, 2020 and 2019
(With comparative figures as at December 31, 2018)

Ratio

Formula 2020 2019 2018
A. Current and Liquidity Ratios
1. Current ratio Total current assets 11,656,214,876 1.06 1.11 1.31
Divided by: Total current liabilities 10,964,472,104
Current ratio 1.06
2. Acid test ratio Total current assets 11,656,214, 876 0.91 0.99 113
Less: Prepaid taxes and other cument assets 1,663,214,222
Quick assets 9,993,000,654
Divided by: Total current liabilities 10,964,472 ,104
Acid test ratio 0.91
B. Solvency ratio Net income 1.421,579,782 1z 0.21 0.22
Add: Depreciation® 1,112,455 276
Net income before depreciation 2,534,035,058
Divided by: Total liabilities 21,495,580,534
Solvency rafio 0.12
C. Debt to equity ratip Total liabilities 21,495,590,534 0.52 0.54 0.54
Divided by: Total equity 41,674,367,187
Debt to equity ratio 0.52
D. Asset to equity ratio Total assets 63,169,957,701 1.52 1.54 1.54
Divided by: Total equity 41,674,367 167
Asset to equity ratio 1.52
E. Debt ratio Total liabilities 21,495,500,534 0.34 0.35 0.35
Divided by: Total assets 63,169.957,701
Debt ratio 0.34




Ratio

Formula 2020 2019 2018
F. Profitability ratios
1. Return on asseis (%) Net income 1,421,579.782 2.25 5.40 5.91
Divided by: Total assets 63,169,957,701
Return on assets (%) 2.25%
2. Return an eguity (%) Net income 1.421,579,782 341 B.29 9.11
Divided by: Total equity 41,874,367,167
Return on equity (%) 341%
3. Net profit margin Net income 1,421,579,782 22.85 3012 31.85
Divided by: Total revenues 6,220,488,711
Net profit margin (%) 22.85%
(. Earnings per share (EPS) atfributahle
to equity holders of Parent Net income after minority interest 1,469,965,012 0.31 0.64 0.63
Divided by: Total shares outstanding 4.761,918,337
EPS attrihutable to equity holders of Parent 0.3
H. Boak value per share (BPS)
attributable to equity holders of
Parent Total equity after minorily interest 35,724,025.721 7.50 7.35 6.88

Divided by. Total shares outstanding

4,761,918,337

BPS attributabte 1o equity holders of Parent
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Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule A - Financial Assets
As at December 31, 2020
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Amount
shown in the Value based

Consolidated on market fncome

Statement of quotations (loss)

Number of Financial at statement received

Description of each issue shares Position date and accrued

Cash and cash equivalents* 1,549.970,914  1,548,970,914 12,956,641

Trade and other receivables** 4,006,338,314 4,996,338,314 299,782,769
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or logg*** 33,626,210 33,626,210  (2,652,634)

Refundable deposits**** 139,864,908 139,864,908 -
Financial assets at fair value through
cther comprehensive income*****

Quoted shares 8 27,950,000 27,950,000 -

Unguoted shares 298 516 769,618,496 769,618,496  (6,100,000)

797,568,496 797,568,496  (6,100,000)

7,517,368,842 7,517,368,842 303,986,776

* See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
** See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
##% See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
###* See Notes 7 and 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
akk% See Note 11 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements.



Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule B - Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers,
Employecs, Related Parties and Principal Stockholders

(Other than Related Parties)
As at December 31, 2020
{all amounts in Philippine Peso)

Deduction
Balance at

beginning of Amount Amount Balance al

Name and designation of debtor period Additions collected written-off Current Non-current end of period
Classic Elite Holdings Inc. 1,144,187 554 - - - - 1,144,187,854  1,144,187.554
One Shangri-la Place Cendominium Corp, 42863158 14,252,220 (2,768,226) - 13,720,342 40,626,808 54,347,150
Shang Salcedo Place Condominium Cop 33,853,953 23,789,805 (593,704) - 48,836,083 8,213,961 57,050,054
EDS5A Shangri-la MHotel & Resests, inc 31,988,514 35,247,771 (58,243,704} - 8,006,161 586,330 8,992,491
Makati Shangri-la Hote! 8,874,010 1,510,969 (1,779,924) - 377475 8,227,580 8,805,055
The St Francis Shangrni-fa Place Cordominium Corg. 24,384 818 16,259,343 (7,636,925 15,790,442 17,216,795 33,007,237
The Shang Grand Tower Condominium Corp 22,540,224 6,888,199 (6,505,903) - 5,844,672 16,077,858 22,922,530
Ideal Siles Property, Inc. 5,704,580 1,693 . - 1,693 5,704,580 5,706,273
Mactan Shangri-a Hotel 225,560 325470 {173,892} - 248,715 128,423 377,138
The Enterprise Cenire Condominium Caorp. 3,201,355 38,222,023 (35,354,287} . 9,001,450 67,636 9,069,085
Shang Robinsons Properties, Inc. 28,036,088 29,665,649 (7,693,554} - 35,534,789 14,473,384 50,008,183
Others 113,366,302 193,674,240 (97,074,319) - 151,280,396 58,685,827 209,966,223
1,464,226,125 357,837,382 (217,824 533) 289,642,228 1,314,586,746 1,604,238,974

See Notes 5 and 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule C - Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the Consolidation of Finaneial Statements

As at December 31, 2020
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Balanca at

beginning of Amgounis Amounts Balance at
Name and designation of dehlar period Additions collected written off Current Not Current end of peripd
Shangn-la Plaza Comp 20,208,709 21985675 (13,780,297} - 2,315,208 268,088,878 28,404,087
Sharg Property Management Services, Inc. 12,582 910 40,704,508 {26,805,296) - 25,913,448 468,676 26,382,122
Shang Properlies Realty Corporation 185,087,188 177,360,159 (150,841,475) - 215,123,211 382,661 215,505,872
SPI Parking Services, Inc. 183,494 13,750 {121,701) - - 75,543 75,543
KPP! Management Sennces Corporation - - - - - - -

Bhang Global City Holdings, Inc. - - - - - -
Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, inc. - - - - - - -
¥SA Realty Corporation (1,540 20,690,618 (76,805,546) - 2,135,032 109,500 2,244 532
Shang Properly Developers, e, 25151 225,946,927 (345,508,337) - 2,395435909 3818 2,395,439,727
Silver Hera from SPDI 2,317,500,000 - - - 2,317,500,000 2,317,500,000
The Rise Development Company, Inc. 11,970175 71,458 575 (8,556,500) - 64,687,062 12,185,188 75,872,250
Mew Contour Realty Inc. 4,007,033 13,726 - - 13,726 4,007,033 4,020,759
Shang Glebat City Properties, Inc. 5,844,362 9,576,645 (14,837,778) - 783,230 - 783,230
Shang Wack Wack Pro fnc. 221,199045 1,936,632 (220,143,627) - 2,921,865 70,085 2,992,050
Perfect Sites Inc. 84,908 595 20,100,000 - - 20,100,000 84,908,606 105,008,696
KPP Realty Corporation 500,003.612 400,000,000 850,000,000 - 50,000,000 3,612 50,003,612
Cthers 6,889,726,153 2,3868,657,718  {1,259,582 884) - 1,140,238872  B,B55861,315 7,996,200,987
Total 12,770,568,974 3,355,846,934 (2,005,283 441) - 3,919,668 461 9,301,765.008 %1.433.467

Sec Note 27 to th lidated Financial Statements.



Shang Properties, Ine. and Subsidiaries

Schedule D - Long-Term Debt
As at December 31, 2020
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Amount shown

under caption Amount shown
“‘Current portion of under caption
Amount long-term debt”in  “Long-term debt” in
authorized related Statement of related Statement of
Title of issue and type of obligation by indenture Financial Position Financial Position
10-year loan with fixed interest rate of
4.00% per annum 933,333,333 533,333,333 400,000,000
10-year loan with interest based on the
higher between the PHP BVAL rate
plus spread of 0.75% per annum and
the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP)
overnight borrowing rate minus
spread of 0.95% per annum 1,196,172,131 - 1,196,172,131
8-month loan with fixed interest rate of
4.08% per annum 50,000,000 50,000,000 -
9-month loan with fixed interest rate of
5.08% per annum 50,000,000 50,000,000 -
6-month loan with fixed interest rate of
5.15% per annum 50,000,000 50,000,000 -
6-month loan with fixed interest rate of
5.75% per annum 500,000,000 500,000,000 -
6-month loan with fixed interest rate of
4.75% per anhum 1,100,000,000 1,100,000,000 -
6-month loan with fixed interest rate of
6.00% per annum 190,000,000 190,000,000 -
6-month loan with fixed interest rate of
4.75% per annum 110,000,000 110,000,000 -
3-month loan with fixed interest rate of
4.75% per annhum 200,000,000 200,000,000 -
3-month loan with fixed interest rate of
4.50% per annum 200,000,000 200,000,000 -
3-month loan with fixed interest rate of
3.75% per annum 400,000,000 400,000,000 -
3-month loan with fixed interest rate of
3.70% per annum 900,000,000 900,000,000

5,679,505,464 4,283,333,333 1,596,172,131




Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule E - Indebtedness to Related Parties
As at December 31, 2020
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Balance at Balance at

Name of related party beginning of period end of period
Shangri-La International Hotel Management Limited 57,131,230 80,774 467
St. Francis Shangri-La Place Condominium Corporation 316,967 316,967
The Enterprise Center Condominium Corporation 1,630,977 8,659,116
Others 41,410,080 82,806,117
100,489,254 172,556,667

See Notes 15 and 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



Shang Properties, Ine. and Subsidiaries

Schedule F - Guaraniees of Securities of Other Issuers
As at December 31, 2020
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Amount

owned by

Name of issuing enfity of  Title of issue of the company

securities guaranteed by each class of Total amount for which
the Company for which securities guaranteed statement Nature of
statement is filed guaranteed and outstanding is filed guarantee

Not applicable




Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule G - Share Capital

As at December 31, 2020

(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Number of
Shares Number of
issued and shares
outstanding  reserved for
as shown options, Number of
under related warrants, shares held
Number of Statement of conversions, Number of by Directors,
shares Financial and other shares held by  officers, and
Title of issue authorized Pasition rights  related parties employees Others
Issued shares:
Common shares 8.000,000,000 4,764,058,982 - - -
Outstanding shares:
Common shares 4,764,058 982 3,114,016,604 4,053,136 1,645,989,152
Total 4,764,0658,982 3,114,016,694 4,053,136 1,645,089 152

See Noie 18 to the Consolidaied Financial Statements.



Shang Properties, Inc, and Subsidiaries

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

As at December 31, 2020
(All amounts in Philippine Pesa)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings beginning

Fair vaiue adjustment of investment properties in prior years,

net of tax
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted, beginning
Net income based on the face of audited financial statements

Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax

Equity in net income of associatefjoint venture

Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those
attributable to cash and cash equivalents)

Unrealized actuarial gain

Fair value adjustment

Fair value adjustment of investment property resulting to gain

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP — gain

Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained
earnings as a result of certain transactions accounted
under the PFRS

Less:

Add:  Non-actual losses

Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)

Fair value adjustment

Adjustment due fo deviation from PFRS/GAAP — |oss
L.oss on fair value adjustment of investment property

(after tax)

Net income actually earned during the period

Add (Less):
Realized remeasurement loss during the year
Dividends declarations during the year
Appropriations of retained earnings
Reversal of appropriateness
Other reserves from restatement due to PAS19 Revised
Treasury shares
TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF PARENT COMPANY, END
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

29,329,234,160

(13,029,932,719)

1,421,579,782 16,299,301,441

(129,873 ,486)

1,856,844

1,293,563,140  1,293,563,140

(999,900,118)

(6,850,064)

16,586,114,399




REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
S.

TREASURER'’S CERTIFICATION

I, Karlo Marco P. villo, of legal age, Filipino, and with office address at the
Level 5, gri-La Plaza Mall, EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City,
after being sworn in accordance with law, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am the Treasurer of Shang Properties, Inc. (the “Corporation™), a corporation
duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines under SEC Certificate of Registration No. A1998-1803, with principal
office address at 5/Level, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard,
Mandaluyong City.

2. The Financial Statement (“F/S™) CD submitted contains the exact data stated in
the hard copies of the F/S of the Corporation.

3. I am executing this certification to attest to the truth of the foregoing and in
compliance with the reportorial requirements of the SEC.

WITNESS MY HAND on this 25th day of March 2021 at Mandaluyong City.

Karlo Marco P. Estavillo
Treasurer/Chief ce Office

and Chief Operating Officer

APR 26 2021

SWORN to before me on this __ day of
at » Affiant exhibited to me his Passport Number
P3455986B issued on 07 October 2019 and will expire on 06 October 2029.

Doc. No.2’
Page No. ;
Book No. :
Series of 202?.
ATTY. co@éﬁlm
Notary lic for Quezon Gy

Until December 31, 2021
PTR No. 0683154 / 1-4-20¢ QG
IBP No. 093587 / 10-22-2018¢ QC
Roll No. 30457 / 05-09-6¢
MCLE VI-0030379 { 2-21-2020
Adm. Matter No. NP-001{2020-20.4)
TIM NO. 131-942-754



Control No.:

Form Type: PHFS1
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL.NO.: 370-2700 FAX NO.: 370-269%
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PSIC: T2
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, piease so indicate in the caption.
Table 1. Balance Shest
2020 2019
FINANCIAL DATA (InP000) (In P00
A ASSETS (A1 +A2+A3+A4+AS+AG+AT+AS+AI+AD) 34,543,660 34,023,986
A% Curreni Assets (A.1.1+A1.2+A13 +A14 +A45) 3,021,548 2,028,324
A.1.1 Cash and cash equivalents (A.1.1.1 + A1.1.2+A.1.1.3) 132,031 280,739
A1.1.1 On hand 133 133
A.1.4.2 In domestic banks/entities 131,898 280,606
A.1.1.3 In foreign banks/entities
A1.2 Trade and Other Recaivables (A.1.2.1 + A1.2.2) 2,591,896 1,468,712
A1.2.1 Due from domeslic eniities {A1.2.1.1 +A 1212+ A1.21.3+A1.2.14) 2,591,896 1,468,712
A.1.2.1.1 Bue from customers (trade) 47,908 57,661
A.1.2.1.2 Due from related parlies 2,540,231 1,404,274
A.1.2.1.3 Others, specily {A.1.2.1.3.4 +A1.21.3.2) 5,892 8,909
A.1.2.1.3.1 Installment receivable 0 0
A.1.2.13.2 Others 5,892 3,909
A.1.2.1.4 Allowance for doubtful accounts (negative entry) (2,132) (2,132)
A.1.2.2 Due from foreign entities, specily 0 0
(A1.221+A4.222+A1.223+A1224)
Al.2.21
A1222
A1.223
A.1.2.2.4 Allowance for doubtful accounts (negative entry)
A1 Inventories (A1.3.1 +A1.32+A133+A134+A135+A1.36) 0 0
A.1.3.1 Raw malertals and supplies
A.1.3.2 Goods in process (including unfinished gocds, growing crops, unfinished seeds)
A.1.3.3 Finished goods
A.1.3.4 Merchandise/Gocds in fransit
A.1.3.5 Unbilled Services (in case of service providers)
A.1.3.6 Others, specify (A.1.36.1+A1.362) 0 0
A1.3.6.1
A1.382
A.1.4 Financial Assets cther than Cash/Receivables/Equity invesiments (A.1.4.1 +A14.2 +A143 3,451 2,451
+ A48 +A145+A148)
A.1.4.1 Financial Assets at Fair Vaiue through Profit or Loss - issued by domesiic eniities: 3451 2451
(A1411+A1412+A1413 +A14.14 +A141.5)
A.1.4.1.1 Naticnal Gayernment
A 1.4.1.2 Public Financial Institutions
A.1.4.1.3 Public Non-Finaneial Institutions
A.1.4.1.4 Private Financial Institutions
A.1.4.1.5 Private Non-Financial Inslitutions 3,451 2,451
A.1.4.2 Held to Maturity Invesiments - issued by domestic entities: 0 0
(A14.21+A1422+A1423+A1424+A1425)
A 1.4.21 National Government
A.1.4.2.2 Public Financig! institutions
A1.4.2.3 Public Non-Financial institutions
A.1.4.24 Privale Financial Institutions
A1435 Private Non-Financial institutions

NOTE:

This special form is applicable to Investment Companies and Publicly-hetd Companies {enumerated in Secfion 7.2 of the Securiies Regulation Code (SRC), except
banks and insurange companies). As a supplemental form to PHFS, it shall be used for reporting Consofidated Financial Statemnents of Farent corporations ard their

subsidiaries.

Domestic corporations are those which are incorparated under Philippine laws or branches/subsidiaries of foreign corporations that are ficensed to de business in the
Philippines where the center of economic interest or activity is within the Philippines. On the other hand, foreign corporalions are those that are incorporaled abroad, including

branches of Philippine corporations operating abroad.

Financial tstitutions are corporalions principally engaged in financial intermediation, faciitaling financi! intermediation, or auxiliary financial services. Non-Financial

mstitutions refer to corporations that are primarily engaged in the greduction of market goods and non-finangial services.

Page 1



SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVE!

NAME OF CORPORATION: ~ SHANG PROPERTIES INC. J;Lf
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG ¢
TEL.NO.:  370-2700 FAXNO.: 370-269%

COMPANY TYPE ; DEVELOPER
If these are hased on cOnsolidated financial staterments, PIGase 50 mdicate in tHE captio

Table 1. Balance Sheet

FINANCIAL DATA

A.1.4.3 Loans and Receivables - issued by domestic entities:
(A1431+A1432+A1433+A1434+A1435)
A.1.4.3.1 National Government
A.1.4.3.2 Public Financial Institutions
A.1.4.3.3 Public Non-Financial Institutions
A.1.4.34 Private Financial Institutions
A.1.4.3.5 Private Non-Financial Institutions
A1.4.4 Ayeilable-for-sale financial assets - issued by domestic entities:
(A1441+A1442+A1443+A1444+A1445)
A.1.4.4.1 National Government

Gontrol No,:

Enwem Tima.

—_—
Lo

A.1.4.4.2 Public Financial Institutions

A.1.4.4.3 Public Non-Financial Institutions

A.1.4.4.4 Private Financial Institutions

A.1.4.4.5 Private Non-Financial Institutions

A.1.4.5 Financial Assets issued by foreign entities: (A.1.4.5.1+A.1.4.5.2+A.1.4.5.3+A.1.45.4)

A.1.4.5.1 Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss

A.1.4.5.2 Held-to-maturity investments

A.1.4.53 Loans and Receivables

A.1.4.54 Available-for-sale financial assets

A.1.4.6 Allowance for decline in market value (negative entry)

A1.5 Other Current Assets (state separately material items) (A.1.5.1 +A.1,5.2 + A.1.5.3) 294 169 276,422
A.1.5.1 Properties held for sale 12,083 13.395
A.1.5.2 Prepayment and other current assels 282,087 263,027
A153
A.2 Property, plant, and equipment (A.2.1 +A.22 +A23 +A24 +A25 +A26 +A.27+A28) 73,186 82,702
A2.1 Land
A2.2 Building and improvements including leasehold improvement 115.050 110.210
23 Machi T ; ,
a ati i guipment 42 564 42.564
_A.Z.i_ch.eIa._snemm(A251+A252+A253+A254+A255 47 163 40,321
A28 Pronmmmmﬂmﬁmxmmmmm
A253 Furnﬂurea.iizlutes_ans:l_olnemujnmant 47,163 40,321
A254
A255
A.2.6 Aporaisalincrease. specify (A261+A262+A263+A264 +A265) 0 0
A261
A262
A263
A264
A.265
| A2.7 Accumulated Depreciation (negative entry) (131.591) (110.394)
A28 Impairment Loss or Reversal (if Ioss_neoative entry)
A3 Investments accounted for using the equity method (A3.1 +A3.2 +A33 +A3.4) 15.788.095 17.013.799
A31 Eg |1y. in dgmﬂaj C subsi d|a[135£aff1[£ales 15.788.095 17.013.799
7 i
___AMJQQCIW(A331+A332+A333+A334+A335) 0 0
A3
A332
A333
Ald4
A335
| A4 Investment Property 14.565.681 14.228 883
| A Biological Assets
A6 Intanaible Assets 0 0
AB.1 Maior item/s, specifv (A6.1.1 +A.6.1.2) 0 0
AbB11
AB12
A6.2 Others, specify (A62.1+A6.22) 0 0
AB.21
AB22
AT Assets Classified as Held for Sale

‘—MMMMMWMiMwC 5




Conirol No.:
Form Type: PHAFST

SPECIAL FORM FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO..  370:2700 FAX'NO.: 370-2699
COMPANY TYFE : DEVELOPER P3IC: 7012

{fthese are hased on consolidated Tinancial stalemeits, please o mdicate i1 the captiof,

Table 1. Balance Sheet

2020 2019
FINANCIAL DATA (in P00D (in P000)
jon} (A1 +A92+A93) 0 0
A91Fromdomg_s_tm_emma._ane_mfv(.t\911+A912+A913) 0 0
A9t
A812
A913
‘ A8 2 From forefan entities . specify (49,21 +A922+A023 0 0
A921
A9.22
A923
A9.3 Allowance for doubtful accounts. net of cyrrent porion (neqative entryl
| A0 Other Assets (A 101 +A 102 -+A 103 +A104 +A105) 1,095,151 670.279
A,10.1 Defarred charaas - net of amortization
Advan iscellan i 0 1]
Ad03
. A10.4 Others, specifv (A1041 +A 1042 +A043+A1044+4 1045 1,095,151 670.279
A10.41 Available-for-sals financial assets 187.084 193,184
A10.4 2 Financial assets af fair valur through gther comprehensive income 0 0
A10.4.3 Refirement benefit asset 0 6.128
A10.4.4 Refundable deposit 966 986
81045 Deposit for a future oroiectDown payment to oroperty developer 907,101 469,981
It ite-down of deferred char aiive enlry)
LB, LIABILITIES (B1xB2+B 3+ B4+ BS 10,470,739 10,528,364
B.1_Curment Liabilities (81,1 +B12+B13+B14+B15+B16+B17) 6.510,004 5.659,399
B.1.1 Trade and Other Payables to Domestic Entities 6,457,395 5,611,855
B11i+B112+B113+B114+B1.1.5+B.1.1.6)
B.1.1.1 Loans/Notes Pavablas 4,233,333 3,553,333
B.1.1.2 Trade Payables 76.435 57,784
8.1.1.3 Pavables to Relaied Parties 2,075,062 1,901,188
8.1.1.4 Advances from Directors, Officers, Employees and Principal Stockholders
B.1.1.5 Aecruals, specify material items (8,1.1.5.1 +B.1.1.5.2 +B.1.1.5.3) 44986 67,042
B.1.1.5.1 Accrued expenses 44 986 67.042
B.1.152
B.1.153
B.1.1.6 Others specifv (B.1.1.6.1+81.16.2+8.1.16.3) 27,579 32,507
B.1.1.6.1 Withholding and other taxes payable 7.881 11.812
X I 2.489 5973
B1163 Others 17.209 14,722
B.1.2 Trade and Qther Pavables to Foreign Enfitiss (specify) (B.1.21+812.2+8.1.2.3) 0 0
B1.2.1
B1.2.2
B123
B.1.3 Provisions
8.1.4 Financia! Liabilities (excluding Trade and Other Payables ard Provisions) 0 0
(B141+B142+8143+B144+B145
B.1.4.1
B14.2
B.1.4.3
B14.4
B.14.5
B.1.5 Liabilities for Current Tax 0 0
B.1.6 Deferred Tax Liabilities
B.1.7 Others, specify {If material, state separately; indicate if the item is payable to public/private or 52,609 47,545
financialinen-financial institutions} (B.1.71 +B.1.7.2 +B173+8174+B1.75+B8.1756)
B.1.7.1 Dividends declared and rofnaid af balance sheat date 52.609 47,545
Bi72 Acceplances Pavable
BJ.2.3. Liabilifies under Trust Recgiols
B1.7.4 Portion of Long-term Debt Due within ¢ne vear
B.1.7.5 Deferred income
BA7.6 Anvother current liability in excess of 5% of Total Current Liabiilities, specify. 0 0
B.1.7.6.1
B.1.7.6.2
81763

Page 3



Control No.:
Form Type: PHEST

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: §TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: 370-2700 FAX NQ.: 370-2699
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER FEIC: 7012

If these are based on consolidafed financial staternents, please so indicale 111 the caption.

Tahle 1. Balance Sheet

2020 2078
FINANCIAL DATA {in P000) {in P'000 )
B.2 Long-term Deht - Non-current interesi-bearing Liabilities {(8.21 +B.22+B23+B.24 +B.25) 0 933,333

B.2.1 Domestic Public Financial Institutions
B.2.2 Domestic Public Non-Financial Institutions
B.2.3 Domestic Private Financial Institutions i 933,333
B.2.4 Domestic Private Non-Financial Institutions
B.2.5 Foreign Financial Institutions

H.3 Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties {Non-Current)

B.4 Liabilities Included in the Disposal Groups Classified as Held for Sale

B.5 Other Liabililes (B.5.1 +B.5.2) 3,960,735 3,935 632
B.5.1 Deferred income tax ligbilities - net 3,946,149 3,934 363
8.5.2 Others, specify (8.5.21+B.5.22+B523+B.524+B525) 14,586 1,269

B.5.2.1 Deposits from tenants 1,268 1,268
B.5.2.2 Retirement benedit liability 13,317 0
B.5.2.3
B.5.2.4
B.5.2.5

C. EQUITY{C3+CA+C5+C6+C7+C8 CO9+LC.10) 24,072.921 23,495,622

C.1 Authorized Capital Stock (no. of shares, pa value and iotal value; show details) {C.1.1+C.1.2+C 1.3) 4,000,000 8,000,000
C.1.1 Common shares  8,000,000,000 shares at P4 par value per share in 2018 and 2047 8,000,000 8,000,000
C.1.2 Preferred Shares
C.1.3 Others

(.2 Subscribed Capital Stock (no. of shares, par value and total valug) (C.21 + C.2.2 +C.23) 4 764,059 4,764,059
.21 Common shares  4764,038,982 shares at P1 par value par share in 2018 and 2017 4,764,059 4,764,059

C.2.2 Preferred Shares

C.2.3 Clhers

C.3 Paid-up Capital Stock (C.3.1+C.3.2) 4,764,059 4,764,059
C.3.1 Common shares 4,764,058 4,764,059
C.3.2 Preferred Shares

€4 Additional Paid-in Capital / Capital in excess of par value / Paid-in Surplus 1,210,074 1,210,074

C.5 Mirority Interest

C.6 Others, specify (C.6.1 + C.6.2 + C.6.3} 50,361 60,517
C.6.1 Treasury shares (6,850} (6,850)
.6.2 Other Comprehensive tncome (Loss) 57,211 67,367
63

C.7 Appraisal Surplus/Revaluaticn Increment in Property/Revaluation Surplus

C.§ Retained Eamings (C.8.1 + C.8.2) 18,048 427 17,460,972
C.8.1 Appropriated
C.8.2 Unappropriated 18,048,427 17 460,972

C.9 Head / Home Office Account (for Foreign Branches only)
.10 Cost of Stocks Held in Treasury (negative entry)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (B +C) 34,543,660 34,023,986

Page 4



Control No..
Form Type:

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

NAME OF CGORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC.

PHFS1

CURRENT ADDRESS: LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

TEL. NO.: 370-2700 FAX NO.: 370-2699

COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER

PSIC:

If these are hased on consolidated financial sfatements, please so indicate in the caption.

Table 2. Income Statement

FINANCIAL DATA

2020
{inP'00D)

2019
(in P00 )

2018
{in P'000 )

A. REVENUE/INCOME (A1+A2+A3)

1,816,427

3,706,410

2,639,665

A.1 Net Sales or Revenue / Receipts from Operafions (manufacturing,
mining, utilities, trade, services, etc.) (from Primary Activity)

A.2 Share in the Profit or Loss of Associates and Joint Ventures accounted for

A.3 Other Revenue (A.3.1+A3.2+A33+A34+A35)

84,002

251,591

313,631

A.3.1 Rental Income from Land and Buildings

83,137

249,930

236,574

A.3.2 Receipts from Sale of Merchandise (trading) (from Secondary Activity)

A.3.3 Sale of Real Estate or other Property and Equipment

865

1,661

77,058

A.3.4 Royalties, Franchise Fees, Copyrighis (books, films, records, etc.)

A.3.5 Others, specify (A.3.5.1 +A352+A353+A354+A355+
A3SR+A357+A3RE)

0

0

0

A351

Ad.5.2

A3.53

A354

A355

A35.6

A35.7

A35.8

A.4 Other Income (non-operating) (A.4.1 + A42+A43+A44)

1,732,426

3,454,820

2,326,034

A.4.1 Interest Income

63,671

3,923

2,722

A.4.2 Dividend Income

1,445,141

1,781,554

1,394,482

A.4.3 Gain/ (Loss) from selling of Assets, specify
(A431+A432+A433+A434)

0

0

0

A431

Ad43.2

A4.33

Ad43.4

A.4.4 Others, spacify
(A441+A442+A443+A444)

223,614

1,669,343

928,830

A44.1 Increase in fair value of investment property

0

1,445,899

814,449

A.4.4.2 Share in net income from a joint venture

185,534

101,237

0

A.4.4.3 Others

38,081

122,207

114,381

Ad4.4

B. COST OF GOODS SOLD (B.1 +B.2 +B.3)

0

0

0

B.1 Cost of Goods Manufactured (B.1.1 +B.1.2+B.1.3+B.1.4 + B.1.5)

B.1.1 Direct Material Used

B.1.2 Direct Labor

B.1.3 Other Manufacturing Cost / Overhead

B.1.4 Goods in Process, Beginning

B.1.5 Goods in Process, End (neqative entry)

B.2 Finished Goods, Beginning

B.3 Finished Goods, End (negative entry)

C. COST OF SALES (C.1+C.2+C.3)

1,313

2,468

32,741

C.1 Purchases

1,313

2,468

32,741

C.2 Merchandise Inventory, Beginning

C.3 Merchandise Inventory, End (negative entry)

D. GROSS PROFIT (A-B - C)

1,815,115

3,703,943

2,606,924

NOTE: Pursuant to SRC Rule 68.1 (as amended in Nov. 2005), for fiscal years ending December 31, 2005 up to November 30, 20006,
« comparative format of only two (2) years may be filed to give temporary relief for covered companies as the more complex PFRSs
will be applied for the first time in these year end periods. After these first time applications, the requirement of three (3) year

comparatives shall resume for year end reports beginning Decemras 81, 2006 and

onwards.




Centrol No.:

Form Type:

PHFS1

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

MAME OF CORPORATION:
CURRENT ADDRESS:

TEL. NO.:
COMPANY TYPE :
if these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.

SHANG PROPERTIES INC.

LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

370-2700

DEVELOPER

FAX NO.: 370-2699

PSIC:

Table 2. Income Statement

FINANCIAL DATA

2020
(in P'00D )

2019
(in P'000)

2018
(in P00 )

E.

OPERATING EXPENSES (E1+E2+E3+E4)

418,912

514,105

445,799

E.1 Selling or Marketing Expenses

E.2 Administrative Expenses

358,015

445,938

408,915

E.3 General Expensas

60,887

68,167

35,885

E.4 Other Expenses, specify (4.1 +E4.2+E43+EA4 +E45+E46+E4T

+E48+E4.9+E41A0)

0

0

0

EdA

E4.2

Ed3

Ed4

E45

E48

E47

E48

E48

£.4.10

FINANCE COSTS (F1+F.2+F.3+F4+F5)

46,535

105,514

135,742

F.41 Interest on Short-Term Promissory Notes

F.2 Interest on Long-Term Promigsory Notes

46,200

104,994

135,309

F.3 Interest on bonds, morigages and other fong-term loans

F.4 Amartization

F.5 Otherinterests, specify (F51+F52+F53+F54+FbE)

335

520

433

F.5.1 Bank charges

335

520

433

F5.2

F5.3

F54

F55

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (D - E - F}

1,349,667

3,084,324

2,025,382

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (negative entry)

(16,972)

(364,920)

(251,546)

INCOME(LOSS) AFTER TAX

1,332,696

2,119,404

1,773,836

|| @

Amount of (i) Post-Tax Profit or Loss of Discontinued Operations; and (ji)
Post-Tax Gain or Loss Recognized on theMeasurement of Fair Value less
Cost to Sell or on the Disposal of the Assets or Disposal Group(s)
constituting the Discontinued Operation (if any)

4.1

J.2

. PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTEREST

PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

1,332,696

2,719,404

1,713,836

. EARNINGS {LOSS) PER SHARE

M.1 Basic

0.280

0.571

0.372

M.2 Dijuted

Page 6




Controf No.:

Form Type: PHFST
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION:  SHANG PROPERTIES INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: LEVEL 5 SHANGRILA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL.NO.:  370-2700 FAX NO.: 370-2699
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PSIC: 7012
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the capfion.
Table 3, Cash Flow Statements
2020 2019 2018
FINANCIAL DATA ({ in P00 ) {in P'000) (in P'000)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income {Loss) Before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 1,349 667 3,084,324 2,025,382
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation 21,197 20,063 11,792
Amartization, specify:
Qthers, specify: Interest expenses 46,200 104,994 135,309
Retirement Benefit Exgense 14,903 9,794 7,766
Galn on fair value of investment properies 0 (1,445,899) (814,449)
Divigend Income (1,445,141) (1,781,554) (1,394,482)
Gain on sale of property and aquipment 0 (1,051) (2)
Interest Income (63,671) (3,923) (2,722)
Share in Net Income from & Joint Venture (185,534) (101,237) 0
Others 4 3,182 5673
Write-down of Property, Plant, and Equipment
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in:
Receivables (1,092 594) 9,793 (213,256)
Properties held for sale 1,313 252,763 29847
Prepayments and Other Current Assets (21,200 119,461 (171,332
Cthers, specily:  Qther Non-current Assel 28,788 (47.981) 0
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable and Other Current tiakiliies 171,557 172,225 1,438,037
Income and Other Taxes Payable - - -
Others, specify.  Coniribution to Retirement Plan 0 (12,873) (4,788)
interest Received 63,879 3,762 2,722
Depesits from tenants 0 0 0
Retirement Benefits paid directly by the Company (1,015) (7,486)
Retirement Benefit liabilities released due to transfers (1,545)
A. Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (sum of above rows) (1,113,191) 385,844 1,048,011
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
{ncrease) Decrease in Long-Term Receivables
{Incresse) Decrease in Investrment 1,422,000 137,944 (869,110)
Reductions#{Additions) to Property, Plant, and Equipment (11,682) (19,191) (53,367)
Others, specify Dividends Received 1,414 344 1,764,454 1,394 482
Investmeitt in and advances fo 3 joint venture (10,762) (1,021,075) (1,000,000)
Deposit for future project (465,888) (422,000) (250,295)
Others (336,798) (970,177) (49,627)
B. Net Cash Provided by {Used in) nvesting Activities {sum of above rows} 2,011,214 (530,045) (827,917)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Loans 2,100,000 3,145,000 1,300,000
Long-term Debt
Issuance of Securilies
Others, specify: {nterest paid (52,217) (105,933) (130,236)
Payinents of:
Loans) (2,353,333) (1,958,333) (533,333)
(Long-term Debt)
(Stock Subscriptions)
Cthers, specify {negative entry):
Cash dividends paid to shareholders (740,176) (830,856) (925,518)
Effect of exchange saie changes (1.004) (1,809) (4,731)
C, Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (sum of above rows) (1,046,730) 248,069 (293,818)
|NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (148,708) 103,868 (73,724)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning of vear 280,739 176,871 250,595
End of year 132.031 280,739 176,871

NOTE: Pursuant to SRC Rule 68.1 (as amended in Nov. 2003), for fiscal years ending December 31, 2005 up to November 30, 2006, a
complex PFRSs will be applied

comparative formar of only two (2) years may be filed to give temporary refief for covered companies as the more
for the first time in these year end periods, After these first time applications, the requirentent of three (3)

end reports beginning December 31, 2006 und omwards, Page 7

Jear comparatives shall resume for year



Controf No,:

Form Type: PHFS1
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES ING,
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH LEVEL SHANGR-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: 370-27G0 FAX NOQ.: 370.2680
COMPANY TYPE DEVELOPER PsIC: T2
if these are hased an consofidated financial statements, please so indicale in the caption.
Table 4, Statement of Changes in Equity
{Amountin P'000)
. Cummulative
- Additional Treasury . Retained
FINANCIAL DATA Capital Stock Paickin Gapital Shares Comprehensive Earings TOTAL
Income (Loss)
A Balance, Januam 01,2018 4,764,059 1,210,074 (6.850) 47,033 15,577,284 21,591,600
A1 _Correction of Error(s) 0
A2 Changes in Accounting Policy 0
B. _Restated Balance 4,764,059 1,210,074 (6,850) 47,033 15,677,284 21,581,600
C. Surplus 0
C.1 Surplus (Deficit) an Revaluation of Properties 0
C.2 Surplus (Deficit) on Revalualion of Investments 19.753 18,753
C.3 Currency Translation Differences 0
C.4 Other Surplus (specify) 0
C 4.1 Remeasurement loss on retirement benefit obligation 81 581
C4.2 0
c43 0
C44 0
C45 0
D. _Netincome (Loss) for the Period 2,719,404 2,719,404
E. _ Dividends (negative entry) (835,717 {835,717
F. _Appropriation for (specify) 0
F1 0
F.2 0
F.3 0
F4 0
F.5 0
G. _Issuance of Capital Stock 0
G.1 Common Stock 0
G.2 Preferred Stock 0
G.3 Others 0
H. Balance, 2018 4,764 059 1,210,074 (6.850) 67,367 17,460,972 23,495 622
H.1 Correction of Error (s) 0
H.2 Changes in Accounting Policy 0
|, Restated Balance 0
J.__ Surplus 0
J.1 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of Properties 0
J 2 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of Investments (5,185) {5,185)
J.3 Currency Translation Differences 0
J.4 Other Surplus (specify) 0
J.4.1 Ramsummeﬂtgamonrswemnnlobligiﬁon (4,971) (4,971)
J4.2 0
J43 0
Ja4 0
J4.5 0
K. Net Income {Loss) for the Period 1,332,696 1,332,696
L.  Dividends (negative entry) (745,240 (745,240)
M. _Appropriation for (specify) 0
M.1 0
M2 0
M.3 0
M4 0
M5 0
N. _Issuance of Capital Stock 0
N.1 Common Stock 0
N.2 Preferred Stock 0
N.3 Others 0
0. Balance, 2019 4,764,059 1,210,074 (6,850) 57,211 18.048,427 24,072,921
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Control No.:

Farm Type: PHFS2
SOECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: 8-370-2700 FAX NO.: 8-370-2697
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PsIC: 7012
If these are based on consofidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.
Table 1. Balance Sheet
2020 2019
FINANCIAL DATA (in P'000) (in P'000)
A ASSETS(A1+A2+A3+ Ad+AS+AG+AT+AB+AS+AT 0) 63,169,958 63,353,513
AT Current Assets (A1 + A12+A1.3+A 144 A15) 11,656,215 12,085,928
A1.1 Cash and cash equivatents (A.1.1. + A1.1.2 + A1.1.3) 1,549,971 2,640,089
A.1.1.1 On hand 7,086 22,899
A.1.1.2 |n domestic banks/entities 1,542 B85 2,617,190
A.1.1.3 In foreign banks/entilies
A.1.2 Trade and Other Receivables (A1.2.1+ A.1.2.2} 4,996,338 5,219,296
A1.2.1 Due from demestic entifies (A1.2.1.1 +A1.242+ A 1213+ Al214) 4,996,338 5,219,296
A.1.2.9.1 Due from customers (rade) 3,348,003 3,696,370
A.1.2.1.2 Due from related parties 1,604,239 1,464,226
A.1.2.1.3 Others, specify (A.1.2.1.3.1 + A12132¢A1.2.1.3.3+A.1.2.1.34) 67,117 73,199
A.1.2.1.3.1 Advances 1o ofiicers and employees 4,226 4,000
A.1.2.1.3.2 Interest 4,317 2,900
A.1.2.1.3.3 Others 58,574 66,298
A.1.2.1.4 Allowance for doubiful accounis {negative entry) (23,020) (14,498)
A1.2.2 Due from foreign entities, specify 0 0
(A1221+A1.222+A1.223+A12.24)
A1221
A1222
A1223
A1.2.24 Allgwance for doubtful accounls {negative entry)
A5 Inventories (A1.3.1+ A132+A133+A134+A135+ A1.38) 3,413,065 2,876,245
A.1.3.1 Raw matenals and supplias
A1.3.2 Goods in process (including unfinished goods, growing trops, unfinished seads)
A1.3.3 Finished goods
A.1.3.4 Merchandise/Goods in fransit
A.1.3.5 Unbilled Services (in case of service providers)
A.1.3.6 Others, specify (A.1.3.8.1 +A.1.3.6.2+A.1 3.6.3) 3,413,065 2,876,245
A.1.3.6.1 Construstion in Progress 2,915,323 2,390,077
A.1.3.6.2 Condominium units held for sate 497,743 486,168
A.1.3.6.3 Real estate properties held for sale 0 0
A.14 Financial Assets other than Cash/Rece vables/Equity investments (A14.1+A142+ 4143+ 33,826 36,279
Al44+A145+A146)
A1.4.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss - Issued by demestic enlites: 33,628 36,279
(A141.1+A14.1.2+A1413+A14.14+A14.15)
A.1.4.1.1 National Government
A.1.4.1.2 Public Financial Institutions
A.1.4.1.3 Public Non-Financtal Institutions 33,626 36,279
A.1.2.1.4 Private Finencial Institutions
A.1.4.1.5 Prvate Non-Finangial lnstitutisns
AN 4.2 Held to Maturily Investments - issued by domestic entities: 0 0

(A1421+A1422+A1423+A14.24+A14.25)

A.1.4.2.1 National Government

A.1.4.2.2 Public Financial nstitutions

A14.2.3 Public Non-Financial Institutions

4.1.4.2.4 Privale Financial Institutions

A1.4.2.5 Privale Non-Financial Institutions

NOTE:

This special form is applicable to investment Companies and Publicly-hetd Comparies (enumerated in Section 17.2 of the Securities Regulation Code (SRC), except
banks and insurance companies). As a supplementsl form fo PHES, it shall be used for reporing Censalidated Financie! Statements of Parent corparations znd their

subsidianas

Domestic corporations are those which are incorporated under Phitippine laws or branches/subsidiaries of foreign corporations that are licensed to do business in the

Philippines where the center of economic interest or activity Is wilhin the Philippines. On the other hand, foreign corporations are those that are

branches of Phillppine corporations operating abroad

incorparated abroad, including

Fnanciz! Inshiulions are corporations principally engaged in financia! intermediation. faciltating financial intermediation, or auxiliary financial services Non-Finangial

inglitutions sefer lo corporations that are primarily angaged in the produclion of markel goads and non-financial services

Page 1



SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Control No.:
Form Type:

PHFS2

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

TEL.NO.:  8-370-2700 FAX NO.: 8-370-2697

COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER

If these are based on consolidated Financial stafements, please so indicate in the caption,
Table 1. Balance Shest

PSIC:

FINANCIAL DATA

2020
(in P'00D )

2019
(in P'000)

A14.3 Leans and Receivables - issued by domestic entities:
(A1431+A1432+A1433+A1434+A1435)

A.1.4.3.1 National Government

A.1.4.3.2 Public Financial Institutions

A.1.4.3.3 Public Nen-Financial Institutions

A.1.4.3.4 Private Financial Institutions

A.1.4.3.5 Private Non-Financigl Institutions

A1.4.4 Available-for-sale financial assets - issuad by domestic entities:
(A1441+A1442+A1443+A1444+A1.445)

A.1.4.4.1 National Gavernrnent

A.1.4.4.2 Public Financial Institutions

A.1.4.4.3 Public Non-Financial Institutions

A1.4.4.4 Private Financial Institutions

A 1445 Private Non-Financial Institutions

A.14.5 Financial Assets issued by foreian entities: (A.1.4.5.1+A.1.4.5.2+A.1.4.5 3+A.1.4.5 4)

A1.45.9 Financial Assets at fair vaiue through profit or ioss

A.1.4.5.2 Held-to-maturity investmenits

A 1453 Loans and Receivables

A 1454 Available-for-sale financial assets

A.1.4.6 Allowance for decline in market value (neqative entry)

A15 Other Current Assets (state separately material items) (A.151+A152+A15 3)

1,663.214

1,314,019

A.1.5.1 Creditable withholding tax

420,217

396,878

A1.5.2 |nput valye added tax

93,813

102,029

4153 Others

1,149,184

813,112

A.2 Prcperty, olant, andeqmpment{A21+A22+A23+A24+A25+A26+A27+A28)

11,684,593

12,811,490

A1 Land

9.434.803

9455443

_szmmﬂmmmmmwm improvement

48.693

04,142

A25 Otvers, soeciy (A251+A252+A251+A254+A255

6,982,848

6.978.260

A.2.5.1 Proogry, or equinment yused for education purooses

AL252 Fumilures and fixtures

6.982.848

6.978.260

AZ53

A254

A23D

_ A2E Aoprajsalincrease. soeciiv (A28 1+ A262 +AZB3+A264 +A2E5

A28

A262

A263

A2Bd

A285

A27 Accumulated Deoreclation (negative entry)

(4.781.752)

(3.676.355)

| A28 lmpairmeni Loss or Reversal (if logs, neaative eniry)

2317.911

2121615

A3 Investments accounted for using the equity methud A,3,1 +A32+A33+A34)
E L . el

2.317.911

2121618

AJ33 Others. specify (A.3.31 +A332+A333+A334+A335

0

0

A3l

A332

A333

AJ34

A335

Ad Invesiment Propery

34,913,873

32.903.377

_A.ﬁ.limhmmai Assels

__Aﬁl_MalnLﬂE.mf_&.jmﬁva611+A612\

A6.1.1 Goodwill

=l el

AS12

AB2 Others specifvAB21+AE2.2

AB21

AB22

7 S oL

5 b Diapneal STt E
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Control No.:

Form Type: PHFES2
SPECIAL FORM FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL.NO.:  &370-2700 FAX NO.: B-370.2697
COMPANY TYPE DEVELOPER PSIC; ma
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, plesse su indicate in the caption.
Table 1. Balance $heet
2020 2019
FINANCIAL DATA (in P00 (in POB0)
A9 Long-term receivables (net of current portion) (A.9.1 + A.8.2 + A9.3) 0 0
A9.1 From domestic entities, specify (A9.1.1 +A9.1.2 +A9.1.3) 0 0
A 911 Installment Contrasls Recsivables
AQ12
A9.13
A.9.2 From foreign enlities, specify (A.9.21+A.9.22 +A523) 0 0
A921
A9.22
A923
A.9.3 Allowance for doublful acgounts, net of current portion (negative entry)
A10 Cther Assats (A10.1+ A 10.2+A10.3+ A 104+ A10.5) 2,597,366 3,431,104
A.10.1 Deferred charges - net of amortization
A.10.2 Deferred Income Tax 465,151 226,922
A10.3 Advance/Miscellaneous deposits
A 104 Others, specify (A.10.4.1+ A10.4.2 + A104.3 + A.10.4 4+A.10.4.5) 2,132,215 3,204,182
A.10.4.1 Real estate development projects 0 1.487.614
A10.4.2 Available-for -sale financial assets 0 0
A.10 4.3 Other noncurrent assets 1,064,776 643,029
A.10.4.4 Goodwil 269,871 269,871
A 1045 Financial assels al fair value through other comprehensive income 797,568 803,668
A10.5 Allowance for wite-down of deferred charges/bad accounts (negative entry)
B. LIABILITIES (B.1+B.2+B.3+B.4+B.5) 21,495,591 22,083,374
B 1 Curent Liabilities (81.1+B.1.2+B.1.3+B.14+B15+B16+B.17) 10,964 472 10,902,209
B.1.1 Trade and Other Payables to Domestic Entities 9,967,328 9,722.765
B.1.1.1 Loans/Notes Payables 4,283,333 3,653,333
B 1.12 Trade Payables 744,024 925,621
B.1.1.3 Payables to Related Parties 172,557 100,489
B.1.14 Advances from Directors, Officers, Employees and Principal Stockholders
B.1.1.5 Accruals, specify material items (B.1.1.5.1 + B.1.1.5.2 +B.1.1.5.3) 1,933,705 1,637,756
B.1.1.5.1 Various Accruals 1,933,705 1,637,756
B.1.1.5.2 0 0
B.1.1.5.3
B.1.1.6 Others, specify (B.1.1.6.1 + B.1.1.6.2 + B.1.16.3+ B.1.1.6.4+B.1.1.6.5+B.1 1.6.5) 2,833,709 3,505,566
B.1.1.8.1 Excess billings over revenue 22,428 132,447
B.1.1.6.2 Customers' deposits 609,801 684,788
B.1.1.6.3 Relention Fees Payable 596,429 847,965
B.1.1.6.4 Advances from Condominium unit buyers 302,159 165,052
B.1.1.6.5 Reservation Payable 14,424 819,251
B.1.1.6.6 Deferred Qutput Vat 801,946 414,695
B.1.16.7 Others 486,521 441,367
B 12 Trade and Other Payables to Foreign Entities (specify) (B.1.2 1+ B.1.2.2 + B 1.2.3) 0 0
B.1.2.1
B.1.22
B123
B.1.3 Provisions
B 1.4 Financial Liabilities (excluding Trade and Other Payables and Provisions) 0 0
B.14.1
B142
B.14.3
B.144
B1.45
B 1.5 Liabilities for Current Tax 124,336 250,763
816 Deferred Tax Liabililies
B.1.7 Others, specify (If material, stale separalely; indicate if the item is payable to public/private or financial/non 872,808 928,681
B.17.1 Dividends declared and not paid at balance sheet date 74,031 47,545
B.1.72 Acceptances Payable
B.1.73 Liabilities under Trust Receipts
B 174 Deferred lease income 41,208 45,304
B.1.7.5 Instaliment Payable 142,751 443,918
B 1.7.6 Any other current liability in excess of 5% of Total Current Liabiilities specify. 614,727 391,914
B.176.1 Curent portion of deposit fram tenants 614,727 391,914
B.1.7.6.2
B.1.783
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Controf No.:

Form Type: PHFS2
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. ND.: 8-370-2700 FAX NO.: 8-370-2697
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PSIC: 7012
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so ngicate in the capfion.
Table 1. Balance Sheet
2020 2019
FINANCIAL DATA (in P'000 ) (in 000 )
B.2 Long-term Debt - Non-current Interest-bearing Liabilities (B.2.1+B.2.2 + B.2.3+ B.2.4 + B.2.5) 1,596,172 2,374,628
B.2.1 Domestic Public Financial Institutions 1,596,172 2,374 628
B.2.2 Domestic Public Non-Financial Institutions
B.2.3 Domestic Privale Financial Institutions
B.2.4 Domestic Private Non-Financial Institutions
B.2.5 Foreign Financial Institutions
B.3 Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties (Non-Current)
B.4 Liabilities Included in the Disposal Groups Classified as Held for Sale
B.5 Other Liabilities (B.5.1 + B.5.2) 8,934,946 8,806,538
B.5.1 Deferred Tax 8,018,042 7,865,210
B.5.2 Others, specify (B.5.2.1+B.5.2.2+B523+B5.24 + B.5.2.5) 916,905 941,328
B.5.2.1 Advance rental - net of current portion 232,962 112,001
B8.5.2.2 Deposits from Tenants - net of current portion 540,046 726,831
B.5.2.3 Accrued Employee Benefits 89,798 55,145
B.5.2.4 Deferred lease incgme - net of current portion 54,099 47,351
B.5.2.5 Installmeny payable - net of current portion 0 0
C. EQUITY (C3+C4+C5+C6+C7+CB+ C.9+C.10) 41,674,367 41,270,139
C.1 Authorized Capital Stock (no. of shares, par value and total value: show details) (C.1.1#C.1.2+4C.1.3) 8,000,000 8,000,000
C.1.1 Common shares  8,000,000,000 shares at P1 par value per share in 2018 and 2017 8,000,000 8,000,000
C.1.2 Preferred Shares
C.1.3 Others
C.2 Subscribed Capital Stock (no. of shares, par value and tolal valug) (C.214C.2.2+C.2.3) 0 0
C.2.1 Common shares
C.2.2 Preferred Shares
C.2.3 Others
C.3 Paid-up Capital Stock (C.3.1+ C.3.2) 4,764,059 4,764,059
C.3.1 Common shares  4,764,058,982 shares at P1 par value per share in 2018 and 2017 4,764,059 4,764,059
C.3.2 Preferred Shares
C.4 Additional Paid-in Capital / Capital in excess of par value / Paid-in Surplus 834,440 834,440
C.5 Minority Interest 5,950,341 6,254,206
C.6 Others, specify (C.6.1+ C.6.2 + C.6.3) 78,418 85,050
C.6.1 Equity Reserves (141,133) (141,133
C.6.2 Other comprehensive income (loss) 219,551 236,183
C6.3
C.7 Appraisal Surplus/Revaluation Increment in Property/Revaluation Surplus
C.8 Relained Earnings (C.8.1 + C.8.2) 30,053,959 29,329,234
C.8.1 Appropriated
C.8.2 Unappropriated 30,053,959 29,329,234
€.9 Head / Home Office Account (for Foreign Branches only)
C.10 Cost of Stocks Held in Treasury (negative entry) (6,850) (6,850)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (B + C) 63,169,958 63,353,513
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Controf No.:

Form Type: PHFS2
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: 8-370-2700 FAX NC.: 8-370-2697
COMPANY TYPE ; DEVELOPER PSIC:
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.
Table 2. Income Statement
2020 2019 2018
RO ANIC T IDERT & (in P00 ) (in P'000 ) (in P'000)
A. REVENUE /INCOME (A.1+A.2+A3) 7,100,758 12,079,729 12,650,054
A.1 Net Sales or Reveniue / Receipts from Operations {manufacturing, mining,utilities, trade, services, 6,220,48% 11,361,826 11,180,487
A2 Share in the Profit or Loss of Associates and Jaint Ventures accounted for using the Equity Method 185,534 101,237 0
A.3 Other Revenue (A.3.1+A32+A33+A34+A35 0 0 0
£.3.1
A3.2
A33
A3.4
A.3.5 Others, specify (A.3.5.1 + A35.2+ A353+A354+ A355+A3506 +A357+ A.3.5.8) 0 0 0
A35.1
A352
AJ3S53
A354
5355
A 356
A357
Al58
A.4 Other income (non-aperating) (A4.1 + A42 + A43 + Add) 694,736 616,665 1,469,566
A.4.1 Interest Income 382,943 217,586 190,829
A.4.2 Dividend Income 13,002 55,542 48,440
A4.3 Gain/ (Loss) from selling of Assets, specify (A4.31+A432+A 433 +A.4.3.4) 0 0 0
A434
A3z
A4.3.3
Ad34
A4.4 Others, specify 298,791 343,538 1,230,297
A4.4.1 Remeasurement arising from business cembination 0 0 0
A.4.4.2 Reversal of impairement loss on real eslate development project 0 0 0
A4.4.3 Gain on faif value adjustment of investment properties 0 276,697 879,994
A4.44 Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Exchange (3,729) (7,757) 24 187
Ad4.4.5 Disposal of investment in associates 0 0 0
A4.4.6 Others 302,520 74,597 326,116
B. COST OF GOODS SOLD (B +8.2+B.3) 0 0 0
B.1 Cost of Goods Manufactured (B.1.4 + B.1.2+ B.1.3+ 8,14 + B.1.5)
B.1.1 Direct Material Lised
B.1.2 Direct Laber
B.1.3 Other Manufacturing Cost / Qverhead
B.1.4 Goods in Process, Beginning
B.1.5 Goods in Process, End (negative entry)
B.2 Finished Goods, Beginning
B.3 Finished Goods, End (negative entry)
C. COSTOFSALES(CA+C.2+C.3 3,636,627 6,079,008 6,270,756
C.1 Purchases 3,636,627 6,079,008 6,270,756
C.2 Merchandise Inventory, Beginning
C.3 Merchandise Inventary, End (negative entry)
D. GROSS PROFIT (A -B-C) 3,464,131 6,000,721 6,379,298

NOTE: Pursuant to SRC Rule 68.1 (as amended in Nov. 2005}, for fiscal years ending December 31, 2005 ip to November 30, 2006, a comparative format of only two
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Control No.:

Form Type: PHFS2
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: 8-376-2700 FAX NO.: 8-370-2687
COMPANY TYPE ; DEVELOPER PSIC: 7012
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.
Table 2. Income Statement
2020 2019 2018
SUNEANGIAIR DATA (in P'000 } {in P'000 ) (In P'000 )
E. OPERATING EXPENSES (E.1+E.2+E.3+E.4) 1,498,689 1,251,803 1,188,180
E.1 Selling or Marketing Expenses 204,293 254,459 303,478
EZ Administrative Expenses 1,066,123 736,803 654,924
E.3 General Expenses 228,274 260,541 229,778
E.4 Other Expenses, specify (E4.1 +E4.2 +E43+E44+EAS+E46+E47T 0 0 ¢
+E48+E48+E4.10)
£.4.1 Education-related expanditures 0 0 0
E.4.2 Provision for impairement loss 0 0 0
E.4.3 Unreimbursed share in common expenses 0 0 0
Ed4
E4.5
E46
E47
£48
E4.9
E4.10
F. FINANCE COSTS (F1+F.2+F.3+F.4+F5) 139,647 272,339 358,742
F.1 Inlerest on Skort-Term Promissory Notes
F.2 Interest an Long-Term Promissory Nates
F.3 interest on bonds, mortgages and ather lang-term loans 101,541 236,040 325,123
F.4  Amortization
F.5 Other interests, specify (F5.1+F5.2+F53+F54+ F.5.5) 38,105 36,299 33,612
F.5.1 Accretion of deposits from tenants 38,105 36,299 33,612
F5.2
F53
F54
F.5.5
G. NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (D- E - F) 1,825,796 4,476,573 4,832,376
H. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (negative entry) {404,216} (1,054,810) {1,271,762}
I.  INCOME({LOSS) AFTER TAX 1,421,580 3,421,769 3,560,614
J. Amount of (i) Post-Tax Profit or Loss of Discontinued Operations; and {if}
Post-Tax Gain or Loss Recognized on theMeasurement of Fair Value less
Cost to Sell or on the Disposal of the Assets or Disposal Group(s)
constituting the Discontinued Operation (if any)
J1
J.2
K. PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTEREST 48,385 (365,767) (548,286)
L PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 1,469,965 3,056,002 3,012,328
M. EARNINGS (.O5S) PER SHARE
M.1 Basic 0.3 0.64 0.63
M.2 Diluted 0.31 0.64 (.63
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Controf No.:

Form Type: PHFS2
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL.NQ.:  8-370-2700 FAX NO.: B-370-2697
COMPANY TYPE DEVELOPER PSIC:
If these are basad on consolidated financial stalements, please so indicate in the caphisn,
Table 3. Cash Flow Statements
2020 2019 2018
i =DISIA (im £'000 ) (in P'000) (in P'000 )
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income {Loss) Before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 1,825,796 4476519 4,832,378
Adjustments to Reconclle Net Incame to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation 1,112,675 1,115,108 1,041,599
Amorizalion, epecify Amerlizalion of deferred lease incame (40,478) (37,687) (30,435)
Others, specify; Share in profit of an asseciated company (185,534) (101,237) 0
Reversal of impairement |oss or: real estals development proects
Didend Income (13.002) (55,542) (48 440)
Remeagurament arising from business combination 0 0 0
'nterest expense 138,904 271,398 357,899
Inleres! incomeafretened (1,417) 925 (137,383)
Gthers 148,066 9.223 (210,050
Increase in fair value of investment properiies 0 (276,697) (879,934)
Changes in Assels ang Liabiitres:
Decrease (Increase) in:
Recelvables 208,110 (1,837.313) (52,263)
_Properties held for sale (692.236) 800.401 2,557,996
Other Current Assels (349,186) 60,991 (272,776)
Others, specity;
Real eslate development projecls 0 (45,181) (3.096,727)
Retrement Benefit Cost 36,772 (18,505) 9,536
Other nan current assels 44141 (90,603) 21,642
Increase (Decrease} in:
Accaunt payable & ather current iiabililies (340,014) 516,712 (752.635)
Others, specify.  Instaliment payable (301,167) (97,244) (95,348)
Actrued employee benefits (12,725) 51 1
Advance rental 13,830 217,340 18,540
Deposit from tenants 45149 32,157 10,855
Income taxes paid (609,634) (722,632) (440,320
A. Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (sum of above rows) 1,028,039 4,118,245 2,835,071
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
{Increase) Jecrease in Avalable-for-sals financial assels 0 i} 0
{Increase) Decrease In fnancial assets al fai value through other comprehensive income 0 1,967
(Increase) Decrease in nvestment in assoeiales and a [oint venlyre (10,762) (1,019,989) (1.000.000)
(Increase] Decrease in Investment 0 0 0
Reductions/{Addiligns) to Property. Plant_and Equipment (152,201) (125,092) (75,081)
Others, spacify
Proceeds from sale of properly and_equipment 704 2341 289,640
Deposit for a future project (465,888 (171,705) (250.295)
Decrease in real estate development projects 0 i} 0
Dividends Received 13,002 55,542 48,440
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties (367.686) (1,109,209) (489 887)
Proceeds from sale of investment in associates 0 o 0
Acguisition of a subsidiary/nan-controlling interest. nal of cash acgured
B. Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (sum of above rows) (982,831) (2,366,147) (1,497,182)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from
Loans 2,550,000 3,145,000 1,300,000
Leng-termn Debi
Issuance of Securities
Others, specify:
Payments of;
{Loans) (2.603.333) (3,208.333) (3.687,083)
(Lorng-term Deht)
{Stock Subscriplions) ] 0 0
Othars, specify (negafive entry}
Cash dwidends payd lo shareholders & munarity sharekolders of subsidiary (973413) (1,229,324 (1,243,004)
Payment of inlerest (106.057) (246.481) (322.791)
C. Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (sum of above rows) (1,132,804) (1,539,148) (3,952,968)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B + C) (1,087,585) 212,950 (2.615,080)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Baginning of year 2,640,089 2432,097 5,030,757
Effect of exchangs rale changes (2,522} (4,959) 16,420
End of year 1,549,971 2,640,089 2,432,097

NOTE: Parsuant (o SRC Rule 681 (as ameaded in Nov. 2005), Sor fiscal years ending December 31, 2005 up 10 |
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